
VAtIasEnergy App/jew/on for Generation Lkense 

APPLICATION FOR A GENERATION LICENSE FOR 
714.495 kWp SOLAR POWER GENERATION FACILITY 

AT 

Atlas Honda Limited, 

Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern Industrial Zone 
Port Qasim Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. 

& 

Atlas Honda Limited 

F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 

Applicant:  
Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Address: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqba1, 
DHA Phase-Ill, Lahore. 



For & on behalf of 
Atlas Energy limited 

Maqsood Ahmad 
Chief Executive Officer 
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U Atlas Energy 

September 13,2024 

The Registrar 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority 
2 Floor, OPF Building, Sector G-5/2 

Islarnabad. 

Subject: Application for Generation License/Concurrence Application for 714.495 kW Solar 

Power Generation Facility  

Dear Sir, 

1, Maqsood Ahmad, being the duly authorized representative ofAtlas Energy Limited by virtue of Board 
Resolution dated Feb 04, 2019 hereby apply to National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the 
Grant of Generation License/Concurrence to Atlas Energy Limited pursuant to section 15 of the 
Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997. 

I certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and submitted iii 
conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority Licensing 
(Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021 and undertake to 
abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. I further undertake and confirm that 
the information provided in the attached documents-in-support is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and belief 

A I-IBL Pay Drder No. 13384416  dated September 11,2024, amounting Rupees 127,589/- (Rupees One 
hundred twenty-seven thousand five hundred eighty-nine Only), being the non-refundable license 
application fee calculated in accordance with Schedule II to the National Electric Power Regulatory 
Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 
2021, is also attached herewith. 
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We request NEPRAto proceed/ approve our case at the earliest. 

fCc) 

FQnvarded please 

C. action fJFor informat 

0 OG (M&E) 

DOG (Tech.) 

0 AOG (It) 

0 SEA 

o Consult (Tech,l 
For kind information please 
1 Chairman - Z M (Tech) 
3. M (tic.) '-4. M (IrS. & Fin) 5. IV? (Law) 

o DC lAdmnIF,R) 

o DG(CAD) 

o DC (Ale) 

0 ADG (Fin.) 
o Dir. (IT) 
o Consult ICTBCM) 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64-XX, Khayaban-e-Iqba1, Phase-HI, DHA, Lahore. 

Ph: (92-42) 37132636-39, (92-42) 37132644 Fax: (92-42) 37132641 
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CHECK LiST FOR EXAMINATION OF LICENCE APPLICATION 
FOR RENEWABLE POWER PROJECT  

(Regulation 3 read with 3(4XA) ofAMECPR-2021)  

Name of Company: '424$ [NER&Y £0. Installed Capacity: i'9s  19. 

Regulation # InformatiouIDocuments Required Iuformation/ Documents 
Submitted 

Application fee (including Indexation) 

3(3) Application submitted in triplicate 

3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information set out in 

Schedule Ill of these regulations; 

3(4)(b) * a prospectus 

3(4)(c)(i)(a) * certified copies of certificate of incorporation 

3(4)(c)(i)(b) * certified copies of memorandum and articles of association 

3(4)(c)(i)(c) * certified copies of annual reports of the company 

3(4)(e)ei) * the last annual return of the Company submitted in compliance of 

section 130 of the Companies Act or, in case of an applicant to 

whom section 130 of the Companies Act does not apply, a return 

comprising of all such information and particulars as required by 

the specified form under section 130 of the Companies Act, as the 

case may be; 

3(4)(c)(iii) the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the 

applicant 

3(4)(c)(iv) the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of 

shareholders holding 5% or more shares, number of shares held 

by each of them and percentage shares of the total paid-up capital 

3(4)(d)(i) evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, along 

with bank certificates; 

3(4)(d)(ii) details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant's 

assets, if any; 

3(4)(d)(iii) latest audited financial statements of the applicant; 

3(4)(d)(iv) expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with 

sources and details thereof; 

3(4)(d)(v) documents describing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios 

of the applicant, as on the date of the audited balance sheet 

accompanying the application; 

3(4)(d)(vi) * a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and the applicant's 

senior management, technical and professional staff; 

3(4)(d)(vii) employment records of engineering and technical staff of the 
applicant proposed to be employed; 

3(4)(d)(vii) profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of 

interest of such sub-contractors; 

3(4)(d)(ix) verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant 

and its proposed sub-contractors; 
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Regulation # Information/Documents Required Information/ Documents 
Submitted 

3(e) * technical and financial proposals in reasonable detail for the 

operation, maintenance, planning and development of the facility 

or system in respect of which the license is being sought; 

3(f) * Feasibility Study 

3(g) * an affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted any 

other license under the Act; 

3(h) * a duly authorised statement stating whether the applicant has been 

refused grant of license under the Act and, if so, the particulars of 

the refused application, including date of making the application 

and decision on the application; 

3(6) * Authorization &om Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 

3(7) * An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and accuracy of the 

application, 

Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 

1.  Interconnection Study 

2.  Environment Impact Assessment Study 

3 Information relating to: 

3Q) * Location (location maps, site 'nap, land) 

AStRed * Technology, size of the plant, number of units 

3Oh) 
* Water source at site for maintenance 

3(iv) * Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities 

3(v) * Project commencement and completion schedule with milestones 44 J4 
3(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans 

3(vü) * Plant characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.) 

3(viii) Control, metering, instrumentation and protection 

3(ix) * Estimated Capacity Factor at site 

3(x) Degradation Factors 
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3(4)(b) a prospectus 



Las Energy 

Ener 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
Company Prospectus 
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Atlas Energy Limited 

Atlas Energy Limited, an Atlas Group company, was incorporated as a public limited (unquoted) 
company on 18 May 2016 under the Companies Ordinance 1984. The company's registered office 
address is Building No. 641XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase Ill, D.H.A., Lahore. We provide cost-
effective solar solutions for industrial and commercial consumers. 

Vision: 

A leading Company in the Solar industry in all respects — providing cost-efièctive tailored 
solutions for industrial and commercial consumers through the sale of power, Engineering, 
Procurement and Construction (E.P.C.), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive returns 
to investors, being responsible corporate citizens and employer of choice. 

Mission: 

Being Competitive to provide unique, advanced and effective solar solutions to industrial and 
commercial customers in a safe, reliable and environment-friendly manner, acting with integrity, 
following sound practices with a sense of service in a culture that respects and values the 
satisfaction of our customers. 

For detailed Atlas Group information please visit: http://atlas.com.pkl  

Atlas Energy has successfully installed 15 MW (energy sale and E.P.C.) solar systems while 
approximately 3 MW projects are in the pipeline. 

Atlas Energy Limited 

1.1. Introduction 

1.1.1. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1.2. The registered office of the Company is situated at 64/XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase-Ill, 
DHA, Lahore. 

1.1.3, The Company was incorporated to provide cost effective tailored solar solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 



(Y6t1asEnergy 

1.1.4. The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Mr. Saquib 1-1. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry & Associations: 

S
• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 

• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 

• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 

• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 

List of Projects Completed: 
List of our successful completed projects is as follows: 

Sr. No. ('at egory Project Name! local ion 
Nature of 

Vork 

Size of 
Installation 

(kWp) 

1.  

2.  

Industrial 

Industrial 

Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

Engine Plant 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

EPC 

EPA 

497.70 

589.05 

3.  

4.  

Industrial 

Industrial 

Parking Sheds 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 1Cm Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Subassembly! Frame Line 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 

EPA 

405.79 

769.08 
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5.  Industrial EPA 663.25 
Component Parts 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

6.  Industrial 
DCC-2 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) EPA 752.40 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
7.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, 

Landhi, Karachi. 
EPC 864.56 

8.  Industrial Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E. Area Karachi. EPC 96.3 

9.  Industrial Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
D-181 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. EPC 301.74 

10.  Commercial Atlas Vocational Training Institute 
Sheikhupura EPC 72.76 

11.  Industrial Stamping Building 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) EPA 215.82 

12.  Industrial Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) EPC 970.1 

13.  Industrial CBU/SPL Building 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) EPA 2250.85 

14.  Industrial Test Track 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Kin Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) EPA 2621.45 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
15.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National Highway, 

Landhi, Karachi. 
EPC 1250.23 
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Pakistan Cables Limited 
16. Industrial	 EPC 2,023.00 

Nooriabad, Sindh 

Atlas Battery Limited Karachi
EPA 107.8 17. Industrial

D-63 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

18. Industrial Atlas Honda Warehouse Port Qasim Karachi EPA 147.15 

19. Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, SITE. Area Karachi. 

EPA 140.6 

Total 14,739 kWp 
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LWAtlasEnergy 

Profile of tV1ana2ement 

1. Mr. Frahim All Khan 
Director 
Mr. Frahim All Khan has over 50 years of experience in General Management, Finance, Investment 
and Taxation. He graduated in Commerce from the Karachi University in 1965 and also obtained 
a degree in law from the same University. He has also attended the Senior Managers' Program from 
Harvard University, USA, Financial Management from Stanford University, USA, and General 
Management Program from Insead University, France. He joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has 
served in different senior positions. 
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2. Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Director 

Saquib Shirazi is a member of the Atlas Group. 1-le is currently the President & Chief Executive 
Officer of Atlas Honda as well as the Chairman of Pakistan Auto Manufacturers' Association 
(PAMA). 
He has previously served as Chairman, Harvard Business School's Global Alumni Board as well 
as Chairman, Pakistan Business Council. 
He is currently on the Boards of Pakistan Mobile Communication (Jazz Pakistan), Tn-Pack Ltd and 
National School of Public Policy. He also serves as an advisor to British International Investment 
(Bli) for Pakistan. Jn the past, he has served on the Boards of leading national and multinational 
companies. 
He graduated from the Wharton School of Finance and has an MBA from the Harvard Business 
School. 

3. Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 
Director & CEO 

Mr. Maqsood A. Basraa has been the Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited and Atlas 
Solar Limited since 2019 and Group Director Business Development (GDBD) & Member Group 
Executive Committee (GEC) since April 2017. He is with the Atlas Group since 1989. 1-le has vast 
general management experience of working with diffbrent Companies of Atlas Group. Prior to this, 
he served State Bank of Pakistan for ten years. He has been leading the Accounts, Finance, 
Management Audit, Logistics, Commercial, Human Resource, Administration, Strategy and 
Government Business Relationship for business development for the Group as Group Director 
before the appointment at present position. 

He is the Fellow Member of Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan. Fle also did 
his Masters in Islamic Studies from Punjab University, Lahore and Banking Diplomas from 
Institute of Bankers in Pakistan. He attended Advanced Management Program from INSEAD-
France. Before that he attended various advanced courses from LIJMS, MAP, Administrative Staff 
College and British Council etc. on general management and leadership. 
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3(4)(c)(i)(a) * certified copies of certificate of incorporation 



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAICISTAN 

COMPANY RtGISTKATION OFFICE, LAIJOIIE 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

(Under sectIon 32 cUbe ompnles Qrdinarice, 1984 (XLVII of I984)J 

jheie,y 

Incocpomo4 und.r the Conipan 
cnpanyItQsi$ by 

WERtF J17JD  Is thu day 

of j9S4} and that the 

Given under 
tltnn$ mid SIK u. 

Ii FiflAth.4ay of Max1  Two 

JQSNTA(Qg$T J 4p OF C( 
COn4flNY &tGlS:TQATlO 

_______ DATEth JI.O  
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j
SECURITiES AND. EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 

CP LAtIORE 
CERTIFICATE OF mCORPORAUON ON CHANGt OF NAME 

(Und jectlon 13 of the Compass QtIr'w 2016 (Vt of1Sfl 

Curpunte UniycrtZds$ddnttqnNo 0099710 

I hereby ccrufy that røv1stors of seciwn 
sectionl2oftbecpm r 2O*6)ithenaznq 

Andthati$14 
shares un4er thfl 

miscjsflaeM 
from the dali o&f$ue  o 

fQ etna. 

came4gnr4 t 
SeCIJQn2Z 

TO BE TR UE COPY 

a —, 
r> cA, 

JQINTi!EtSSTRA OF OMPAN!ES 
YQMPANYREGISVAT •N' 

LAHORE. 
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3(4)(c)(i)(b) * certified copies of memorandum and articles of 
association 



TUE (YMIPINWV (IRj)I.% lACE. 191W 

t(OMrAIW% I.iMi ILl) ifl SlIMIESt 

ARTIClES or ASSOCIAtION 

OF 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

7KEI.IMINAKV  

Table nut to I) the kegulal iou5 coiltal ted in I able A in Ike I IF st Sc bed ole to lie 

apply. Companies Ordinance, I 984 shall lint apply to hit Company e.eept 
in so lr as they are repestted or contained in these Articles ins 
modified and altered). 

Definitions. 2j In these Articles, the lollowiicg words acid expressIons shall lint 
meanings as tinder, oliless excloded by the subject or the cofllct. 
namely: 

Article, means these Articles ol Associanon originally Ijauned 0' is 

alteted froiti I iltie to ii tue in accordance with lie pro' skins o I 'I IC 

Ordinance and he Articles. 

Board or Directors means collectively the I)ireeioi s of the ('ornp.uIv 
holding o like of Directors itir i lie time lit ing acid rout 'line to ii nit 

'hai rma n meal's the ( hai rnian of I he Board nI 1)1 rectors ai.ix I tied 
1mm time Io time pursuant to these An ides. 

ChieF Lsecutive means the thief lxeculive li,r the little being ol the 
Company appointed from time to I inte pursoai tilt, the Ad ides. 

Comminion means the Securities and l:xclmoige ('onun iion oF 
Pakistan consi fl tiled under the Securities .uid I eltaiigc I tim liii ss tot 
of PaL islan Act. I 997 

('onipany mnea,is :ti'l.tS l:Nl:lun l.l%lliF:l). 

Directors mean I he t i rectors oF the ('inn pans Itir I lie Ii nme hem Ig 

including aliername I )i rectors if any appoi 'fled by I lte In. 

Dividend includes a bomtits. 

(;encral Meeting means an Annual (ie,ierisl Meeting and/or at 
I:tctraordinary (ieticral Meeticig 

Member neaRs a member iii he ('onipail) t illilo the nicamiiic 
clause 21111 Section 1(1 

Me mnorandum means the Memuitim andiun ol A ssoc liii 
Company .ts origmimlk Im.uned 01 Is miii linic it, llllic .iltca,! 

accordance w nIt the pri 'tis tills ol the I Irdi nancc atmd t lie A rite cs 

Nlonth nicans a ealendam nunitli •mccordiuig to tIle (iregori,mil (olenti,; 

OFfice means the Itegisiered 1)111cc for the lime being til the 
Company. 

Ordinance means the Companies Ordinance. 1981 including nil 
statutory mod i lications thereof ha the Ii Inc being in birec aid such 
Other law as in ay front line to tm me he passed in s uhstit tn till ii 

amendment thereol 



Pub'ic Cuniprsiy 

I'roy neatts an itistriuttent iii writing whereby a Member atiLhtlr I/cs 
another to vole Ibr lain at a itleetilig Or itteettligs and ituitess he 
context othenvi requires, includes au attorney daly constilttied undo 
a power nt attorney. 

Register Ineauls I he 14 eg bier oF Ment hers to be kept po I stEal ii It 
Section 147. 

Section means a section iii the ()rdintntce. 

Special Kesoltition has I he ineaut ing ass goes] Itlere to by clause (lb 

ot'Section 2(l). 

Seal Incaits the cotitutson seal of the Company 

Secretary means the Secretary hr the tunic benig of the (ottspauly 

In writing and written inch tide pril ing, tvpew ri tii tg, lit lit igrapl n 

Elecuronic trattsunissiotu, including but tot tinned to lacstnille, tdc 
am] Flectronie mail or any other uechaitieai or thectroitie is 
prescribed by section 3 of the Flectuinic transactions ()rdimtuu ct'. 
2000 or partly one autd partly the other and other tnotles it 
representing or reproducing words in a visthie fliritt. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words signityittg the siitgtti.tr 
minther shall i ic lode the plural number and vice versa. 

unless the context olherwise reqitires, words signuty ing tlte unascoltute 
gender shall include the kinittine gender. 

Words importing persons shall mel ttde uutdi v iduals, thins, coin suites, 
corponitiouts, government state or agency or any association, Irtist or 
isurtnersli p (whcu her or i ni having a septirale Is legal personal ty I. 

Ihe heading and nargiiieul ntttcs trc inserted in cott' entcttec Ills 

and ,hiall not aIled the iilterpletalioul or ctiiistrticttoul til tilt 
Art ides 

lI Ill .t( ( ( )%l l'.N\  

3; lIte Company is a 1itth1ic littnted witipatty dad lIst Roard till )irecttus 
ThaI I have regard to t lie restrict oils on the cont uncutcenteni of basic 
its posed tinder sect on 146 oF I he C ) rdt mince, sti tar as tl 

restrleltons are hi ttdittg ii pun t lie (ui ttpau is 

Ill SINESS 

Business of 11w 4) Aity bratich or kind of business "Inch the t. oittpatt) Is either express 
flunpriny. or by nt p1 teatton atithorised to tinder take itsa he titide rtak en I's tic 

I )urectois at sttett ijitie UI tnuies as ties shalt thtitie lit intl tijitttci t:'.s 
1st so lkred by theni to he in abe; alice tether soett brtttch t't k itt 
htusttiess ny have been act titti ly etnttnienced or not so long as Ic 

I )irectors in ay deetn it expedient nol lo cotn lIeu ice 01 proceed 'tt 
sttclt bratteh or kind of business. 

MlNl%lIl%l SItKS('Rll'l IoN  

4liuisnnrn 5) I or the purposes of Sect ion 6848), the ti itt itttutn I s ii tsseript iot I itt 

subscription which the 13oard nay proceed to at lotnient stial I be US. I ,thtfl. it It 

Ittupees one million only). 

2 
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Issue of shares at 
discount. 

Issue of sh ares. 

6) Subject to Section ')U arid an> rules in I hat regard node or tier I Ic 

Ordi mince, any si care icr the & 'onspaul> in sty be issued with stuc Is rc it 
and restrictions as tray root tone ti tunic he dcterintneLl lit 'he 
Company in tiencrsr) Mectiuig. 

7) Subject to Section 95(4 (a) and an rules ci that regard nude LI utter I tie 
Ordinance, ihe ('ontpany nay issue shares which are to be redee ned 
OF any other redeem able se eurit) , oil sttel IC [ills .11 id Iii such i 115101cc I as 
runty be provided in the ssi Id Sect jolt aid rti let - 

8) The Coiripauty shall itO issue portly paid sltares In tile case ol an 
issue ot slitires Fir cash, he imisijunt payable tilt applicac "sit shalt he 
the bitt nominal aniotint ot the share, except wlieic shares are titled 
at a diseouni. 

9) With die prey tout ant t tor Ily oF the Company in General Meeting a. 

the sand hut ot' tile Coin iii 55011 and upon or hertv i se coin plying v' 
the provisions of Section 84. ii shall be law l'uI Iür tile Board to issue 
shares in the capitol of the Cot pttiiy at a d iscotiuit. 

ID) Fhe shores in the Ca thaI ui the toni pout>- or tlte U tie hes 
remaining un issued, ic I Lid ag suty new shares resu It i ng Iron a, 
increase ill ihe authorized share capital, shall be tinder the cii ill ro I i 
the Hoard which may allot or otherwise dispose nt I lie sac Ic to such 
jrsons, ott stich ierni s arid nmdi t ions, w hit soc Ii rrgtcrs arrd Pr lv i Ic at's 
annexed thereto as the reso I ut 'iii creating I lie suite thaI I direct, anti ii 
no such direclitin he given, its he Hoard shalt determine either ii par 
or at pretn i tim or sub cci io Article 8 ahoy c itt it di scull it. itt post ci 
to the Hoard to give aity person the rig)ri to call hjir tuid be allotted 
shares of any class oh I he C 'onttany at par or at t prei Ii t011 OF su h1ec I 
as ii lore said at a di scot Inc such olimloti he rttg e'erc I salt Ic at sucti lila Cs 

atnd in suclt ntanmier and lirr such ct,nsmderatioit, its the i)irectocs dunk 

Paine, to $5511 C 

s/s ores of t14/Jerenl 
classes. 

Redeemable shares 
and xecnritiei 

No partly paid 
shares iv be issued. 

4llotn,e,,i a Il) As regards any ailLititteilt ol shores, the Htraid shall dolt ciunlpi> ttil 
u/lures. ihe prttvisioucs iii Seemiutis 68 to 7_i as irra\ he iltpllcslllle 

Sliarei-  may be 
itsutt/,ftir 
consIderation other 
linus cash. 

('otflflhission for 
placing shiares 

llro*ertige 

12) •l lie Board nay allot intl isstie shares in lire capiiai ut die &'uilrrls.11s 
as paynsent (IF part pi> 'Dent tiir any prt peru y / assets stud ii 
transterred to the toni pal), or thr services rendered In the ( tnt, III 
in I lie ordinary course itt Its ha stness, ai id shares so all titted s.  Iliti I 
issued as titi I paid Liii hares aid if so i sstied, utah he Sc flied ti rc 
hilly paid up shares. 

13) ftc t'octijsatiy ntay at any nIne pay a contlhtissrori to ati> struts Ii 

subscribing or agreeing to stibseribe (whether absolute I) ''I 

conditionally) hur iii ty shares t ur debcittttres tif tile C 'olnpan ''r 

lg 'IF htgreelng to piocule snhscri1ititcIts I sLhctller ,chstilurs- - 
eotldctional) or an) shares or deheititires tut lie C onipsrn-. but so 'ii 
the aniotuust or rate tO' ciculitnissiun shall not exceed such ,itnot,in ii 
rate a is authorized Is> the Hoard tuft )i rectors (or stleli other rate as 
tnay he prescribed by tlte ('olD ri ssion under I lie ( )rdi naitce) ci F the 
price tt which the shares are issued or oh' the titint i no I v al tie nt lie 
debenturt in each case subscribed or to he suhscribed. In Cit5C .'ilv 
cofli in i su ion is to be pitid. he Co inpany shall corn ply tv-tub 
prcutisiticis of Section 82 of the C irdinarice. 

14) I lie Coin pony nsa> pa> such bri ikerage as cr1 a> he I asv I til In ic spec ' I 
any Issue of shares or dehenturcs. 



Regisiration as I 5) Not time ihait tour persoi ts slit! I be registered as ii liii si Lii eliol tic rs 
shareholders, except in the case ut e secotors or trustees ot a deceased member 

Shares nay be registered ii the tunic ut any limited pan> or 
oilier corporate ixidy. 

Joists shareholders, to) If any shares stttmtd in the tame of rw o or itiure persons, the perstill 
t'irst named itt the ttcg i ster tutu I, as regards rece it 01 I1l dead or 
scry ice oh not sees antI ill or any tither flatters connected w itti the 
('otis party, except VLSI lug at the tied I ng iii si the transter tit shares, he 
ikettied the sole Itolder 

Death u/joists I 7) Its the ease of the dealis of anyone or store of the perit is I tatuied ii 
shareholders. ike Register as the joint holders of any share, the rirs ivor or 

survivors shall be the only person or persons recognized by ike 
('ontpany as havittg any title to sir interest in such share 

(tR'l'il"I('A'iES  

Members right to IX) Every person whose twine is eittered as a Member iii hue l(egilcr 
certifIcate, shall he erti it led to receive a 15cr a lIon net t i sir registration OF t rat' er 

one rt I t'reate Ibr at I his shares or several cerl I Itcotes eac is tiir ink 

snore ut Isis shares upon saviiieist of stick charge, if any, its tlte hour J 
tnity determtne thr every eertilicate oiler the tirst. 

Issue of IV) In accordance with ike applicable lows, ttse ccrtitieates ui title to 

c'ertsflaues. stuaits and dtiptteates ilieresiC wlten necessary, shall be isstmed tiii,ler 
the Seal of the ('otuipany arid signed by one Director aid 
cotintersigned by the ( unipaisy Secretary or sitelt olliccrs ot I tic 
Company as shall frotut 'line iii time beauthiorizetl by the hoard lii' 
the ptirposc. Every persi iii w hose 'dine is entered its a ti em her mt 
Register shall, witttotit pavnsent, he etuhilted to recerve vs thin ninety 
(90) days after allitminetsi, or 'vitlnts lisrty'live t4Si days sit 
ttppltcatiun fir regisiiatitstt of tronsler. tine I It ccrttIisate lot 'ill it 
sltares iii each class rcgtsicictl it, Ins it,ttmie. or ii itte isi,amtt 
appro'es iii sever,ti tcihl'tcatcs each tot tote It) or nitlre ol 
shares. I lowes er, its respect sit' each add tis usat cc rt ,flcatv', the hi tm 
shall he entitled to eltmrgc sticli Ice is it nay tictcrtnine, lions 
linte. Rvery eerlsticttte iii shares shall speedy the ntunher tint 
cknotitig nunthers otilte shares in respect oh which, it is issued and rime 
amount paid tip tlteicott.lhe Uturd tttay, by resolution, determine 
either generally or in tn> part Ic tilar case, that the s igtsature tiE "ii' 
such Director or officer of the ('oinpttny tnay he tithed sin sItu 
eenut'tcates by sonic nieclsanical or electronic itleans, or lx' pititeti 
tliereott, in the inside and utiatirter specitied in such tcsiilotiisii. 

('ersiJlt'ases in the 2(0 I he Ci intpatrs sisal I not lie lxii mud iii is site Stilt C t tat, title Ce rt t tic,i it it, 

sale of joi its respect oh a slsitte or shores lie Id lot itt I> by t vtO OV lot e persoi is 'it 
lwlden. deli very uI a cert I Ileute br a shore to au> inc tit rIte lot to Ito lder sl iii 

lx' stitlitient delis cry it' 

Tiute for 'cute of 21) I tnless the conditions ut isstie iii any stiates, debentures or debenitre 
certificates. stock sit' the ('onipuny ot hery ise pi os ide. t lte toits patty sisal I wil hit 

nittety days alter the allotment and within lbrty live das alter reL- miii 
by the Coumupatiy of lie apphicutniti tsr iranster of arty such ,tt.ti cs 
tkkntttres or deheittttre stock, complete tad ha c ready kur dchivcr 

the call ticate ot alt shares. I lie de hen hires mud the cert i icale il oil 
debenture stock allotted or trot is ir red, atid tt isless Sc ill by is is 
sic hvered to Use persott cut it led i hereto sv it itt it lie period ,t lore s.t id mile 
(oisipuny sisal I irn tied ittiely therea kr give tot ice to t litt rststm Ii 

the nitisnruer prescribed ni t htese A rtl des ttir the g lvi ttg of not tee' 
Meiitbcrs that tlte certiticate is retrdv br del very. 
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Lost a, mutilated 
certifknits. 

22) If a certilicate of shares, debentures or debenture stock is proved to 
the sat isfact liii of the ('inn paii IL) isave been lost or desi ro)ed ii, 
being defaced or, mutilated or torn, is surrendered to the (olupili), 
anti the Company is requested to issue a new ecrliticate In 
replacement thereot, I he Coin pany slid' I. oiler inak ing such enqui r as 
it may deem lit, advise the ppiieant within thirty days front the date 
of application the terms and umdit ions (as lo mdci n nit> and 
otherwise and as to payttteitt of mite aeRial expenses incurred on such 
enquiry and of a fee not citceeding one rupee) on which tile (.oinpany 
ts prepared to issue a new certilicate and a time 11w compl alice 
therewith or of the reasons why the Company is unabk to issue a hew 
ceni (kale, as the case may he, and in the lt Inter case if the appl k.mt it 
shall within the lime al owed cmli Pb' V itt the te Flits and cotid It on Is 

specitied, the compan> sttall issee a new certihicale to the ipplitant 
within Usrty-Iive days from the date of application. 

'lRANSI'i'it UI" SllAl4l'S 

Execution of 23) No transfer shall he registered unless a proper instrument ol lranslcr 
tntnsfrr. together with the ccciii catch) of shares has been delivered 10 Ille 

Conspany. •lhe insirtuneni of hraitskr of ami> share sttall be sig' cd 
both by the transiëror and the transferee and lite tr-attst'eror shall be 
deemed to relti am holder of the share ottt II the name of the trio IS l cc 
is entered in the Register ill respect thercol 

Fan,, of transfer. 24) (i) 'Ihe instrtiment of transt'er of any share shall be suhstaittiail II) 

the lhliowing hi,rto or as near thereto as circumstances ttl 
admit: 

MI iarNrN(is tlMttLlk 

or ,i..,oJcigl.u.l oils. ......I K.çcc, Ic, 
,il,m m.a,J lo,flcl. ol d.c l.a.slcicci Js.a.0  

uarorc, I.. lb. I alsiciot ill' iLlJfld, I 001 15C1c4 0 
kilts ENI,K(.V I jUl Itt) so hold alto ii.. I ,.aolc,cc l'ossc ol,,n. odl.11l,.iloio..o. .1 

)1(11) o41Ict10 iIstasiAI .,.,,l.,o,,,c, lot, Isablil..........................a040a,'.,. 
141 'Sc l,a,,lc..c .5. hoot, ..o, ,ioS,lho,a4 ,balol,I 4.lo.l I.. II,. .,o.d'l,,o, I., ..,d 

Aaw,l,in.nu,b.nJ,ll,., .14) 01 20 

V1Mat 
N-at 
('Nit' No 
boall kdthns 

WFtNLSS; 

(ii) hvery ills trttinent ol' traits tër shall he let) at the ill lice I • 

leg stratiotl, acconi pal lied by he eerl i Iteale (If the s hares t. • I 
lrattsi'erred, and such other evitteitce as the Board ittay reqlll c 
10 prove t he title of I he I rails kror or his ri gin to t Fabler ttte 
shares, atid upcm payment of the proper tee, the tritnskrcc liatl 
he registered as a itseitmher in respect of stick shares. I tie Board 
may waive the produelton of any certiticale upoit evidrice 
sat isi actory to tlteni of ii s loss (IF destruct iolt. 

S 



Refuse! so register 25) 'the l)ireclors skill not relitic to register iii) Iransler of fully paid up 
transfir.	 shares unless the i tst runtent oil ranslèr I dc kci is e or in vol it or is iii 

accompanied by the cc rt ii cute of shares to wIt ich it relates or die ii 
nol i• pay Dent of a le, ii' any as Ixescri bed by he 13oard ot lii reel' w 
the l)ireetors may also decline Iii recogiti e an isirtuitent of Iran. ci 
unless it is accompanied. in addition to Ike certilicate of shares In 

which it relates, by stick oilier evidences as the I)i rectors iiiiy 
reasonably requine it' slios ilse right iii inuislcior Itt nnake the thuisiel 
the Directors Duty. tot such tcrttis and subject 10 such conditions. 
including without liiniialioo the suhni ission oh i,tdeninnics, as tIne 
I )i rectors in a) in their abso It' Ic tl isc ret ion deternsi I IC, w di c it 
requre Rent br I lie product ion of any cc ri I lie ate upon i es ide ice 
sat is l'aciory to the ni of is loss or destruct ion, 

It the Board refuses to registet a lrittnstër LII skates, it shall sv,tltinn to 

(thirty) days or suet oilier period as nay be [CLI Li red by I tic appi Ii nIl Ic 
laws, a tier I tie date on I tick (lie ills truinent of I rails k r ssas It tdged 
Wi I Ii the Corn pitny, send to the trails 1k ree and ihe transk ror iii nice ut 
writing ol' the refusal indicating Ike detect ot insailidity to lie 
translëree, who shall, alter removal of stick defect or invaihidii. l'e 
entitled to Ic - lodge the nit ruinent o I' trails Ic r w I th ike ( tn n pa 
l:urt hermore, the I) rectors shall not Incur any liability Lii. iii 
tsttuli tie manner, regtsler I ng or acting u in a trails kr iii sl nun $ 
although the saiti e na). by [east in of any I htud or oilier cause iii 
knowti to the I) rectors, be legally inoperative or i nsul liciei ii IL I 

he property in i lie shares pn 'posed I U pri I lessed to be t ransl rt ed, a 
itl though the tratis k r nay, as between t lie trans Iii br and I rntnskrec . I 
liable to he set aside, and notwitlistaitding hat the I)irectors nia> tin 
not tee that such inst rum C it of t ntnsl r was signed or ecciitcj .i i 
tie I tvcrcd by the trails flror in hIm ik as to LIe tiain ie o I' the trans lëre c 
the particulars of the shares tr,tnsiërrcd, or oihncrwisc in delëcins 
manner. 

Register nnp 26) Dii giving seven days poor tiotncc. lie Iranslen lsiiiksiuttl nIne l<egn-nr 
he rinse.!. was he closed dtititig stick tine as lie ltiiaid nil iliechuirs think lit. 

exceeding the whole lotty'lise days in cacti 'car but 001 esccctEinn 
thirty days Itt U ttine. 

l'KANSMISSR)N Oh" ItE(ils lERll) SIRItItS  

Nnrninee.v, 27) I he executor or ark is itti st ritlor of it deceased tile Other or a per si iii 
executor, nominated under Sect ion i 80 or the holder of a st icces sion cclii Ii itt' 
athninlstra tots gnu! shttll be Ike only persons reeogiiie.ed by lie ('Lila pony as hay iig 
heirs, title to the slittres. excepi In cases of j oi nil -ls,lde rs, nit s'lt ich case lie 

surviving holder or holders, or tIle cecutiir tir adnsiuiistiut,ir ill lie 
last surviving holder shall be the tipils persui eiilntled lit tx 
recognized. I lie ('otispaity shall sun be buLilid lo recogilize 50th 
executor tsr adininistialor Linless the executor or adutinistrato, shill 

hnc tihilainied sriihite or Idlers Lit ,ttlinitnitiits,nti tin olhici I 
representation, as lIne else nnt,i> lc. toni a eouit ol toItipcicini 

jtirisdicc ion provided 0ev ert hetess that in special cases as detern nil 
by lIne Hoard, il slmll be law litl 1kw the Itoand to dispense wtth the 
production of probate or letters of ad iii in i strati on or such tither Ic gil 
representation, i inc I tiding a sLIecessitiis cern I'tcatc, LI 0li sLick I ci ii 
to i ndein iii h'y or otherwise as the I toard ntay deens lit, 

Right of person 28 ) (a) Any person becotn tug entitled to shares in ctitlseqtienee ol 
euniled by ek.,1Is or deal Ii or insolvency of I lie ho Isle r of s rich shares, shah I ha sc lie 
insolvency, right, subject to verilication by the Board and on giviisg sic Ii 

iiidctnn,ties as ttiay be required, to receive and give a discharge nor 
any t)tvideud or other moneys payable or oIlier ads atitages arisnig 
in respec I Of the sh arcs no whic It he would he ci 'titled it lie "etc 
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Power to in crease, 29) 

tvn.wikhue, rub- 
divide anti cancel 
capital. 

the regIstered holder of I lie shares, hut he shall has-c no rig hi to 
receive notice ol attend or vote at au> (leneral Mecluigs or Iso c 
as aioresaid) tti au> one of I lie r gill or priVIleges ol Meltibel to 
resNci of' the shares. Liltiess mid mitt I he is i uuned on he Keg' sit'' 
as a holder the reol 

(h) - the 1)1 rectors sli.i II I Wv e the same I I gIn to dcclii ie or sti spci id 
registration as they would have had in the case of a transfer iii he 
share by that Member heijire his death or insolvency as 11w case 
may he. 

:tt,TKItA't'ION UI' ('APII.tl. 

I he ('0111 O> ID a) by oril i nary reso I Lit loll ,tnti subject to corn p1 ii ie 

wil h the requiretnents ol Section 92: 

(a) increase the atuthoru,ed share capital by stucli solD, lit he dii itcJ 
into shares of such aim urn, 'as the resolution sliis II prescribe: 

(I') consot idale and divide il s share capi tat tub shares of I a r 
antoutit than its existing shares; 

(e) by sub-division of its existing shares or ettiv of them, di mdc Ilic 

whole or any part of its share capital into shares of slita I cr 

amount than Ii sed by I lie Meitiorand otli; and 

(d) ('aneel any shares which, at he date ol the passing of I IC 

resolution have not ken taken or agreed to be taken by a' 
ierson a,id dtuninish itte tttint,nl or Its share capital by the aruoui'u 
oil lie shutres so cancel led. 

Offers of shares to .31)) 
existing Alen,hers 

Ranhing of new 
sharer. 

ftte Hoard tony Iron, liutie to tilDe illereast Ili' issued share capital h 

such sum as I hey think lii I :i,rther  issue tiE shares shalt be carried 'III 

in iccortlonce iiilii lie pu'ovitiiiis of the I )rd,n,nicc I'rot tied hat 
fractional shares shall tilt be ol tcrcd intl ill Fractions less than ,m 
shall be consolidated and disposed of by the ('outipaisy and lilt' 
proceeds troni stick disposition shill be paid to t charitable ilist,tttt,' II 
or as decided by the I toni d oft )tu eetors. 

3 I ) I s cepi so tar as otheris isc provided by I be till tilt louts ut is she, LI F by 

these Articles, any capiia I ra i seil by the creat ion oF tiess shares l all 
be considered part of the original capilal, rautking pan passtt swtli the 
exisling shares, itttd sltahl be subject to the prosisiotis tit'iei,, 
contained wit Ii re ia'ei Ice to trails lër and ti al sn' i ssion, ailul tithersi se 

32) Subject to Sect Ion 96, the ( 'milD pan) may, by Special Kesi lot 
reduce is share capital ill lily 0 auuuer consistent wills tl'e lass. 

33) Vartat iotis ol the shareho lde ti g his unity he e l'l'celed by the C.' an 
in acco,tlatwe sinhi the pros isions ,tf Section I 0$ 

34) I lie share preun toni aecottnt 11101 tttained pot suani to Scsi 'on ii ' 
nay, be applied by the ('onipauiy 

(a) in wrtt fig oAt he Inc Ii m i nary cx penses of I) Ic ( 'otnpany, 

(by In wri I itig oil' lilt cx petises 0 i Or I tie coin iii 55100 pa itt or ti isco lilt 
allowed on, any issite of shares or debe iti tires of the ('thu pan 

Ic) in providing l'or t he prein i out payable ott the redeni pt iOu' is I ,Iliy 

redeemable preference shares or deheotures of the Company, or 

Cd) tn paying Lip unissoed shares of the (oltipauiy to be issued as lit l 
paid bonus shares. 
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GFNERAI. NtEttYtINGS 

Statutory Meeting 35 Ihe statutory general ilectilig of the conipiny shall he held .iih,ti tile 
peritid required by sed ion 157 

Annual General 36) A General Meeting, designated as lIst Annual ( icneral Meeting shill 
Meeting. lx! held in accordance ith Ihe provisions ol 'eclic,ll 158. .itlnii 

eigltleen Months hunt the dale of its incorporation o the Coin pain 

and thvrealier once at kasi in every calendar year. iithin a period uI 
tour Mouths liii lowing I he close of each lioanc a year tit t tie 
Company, hal in such manner that an Annual General Meeting is lichul 
in every calendar year and fbi in lire thu is Ii teen Mont Its c lapse 
helween any two ct,nsecuhive Anittial General Meetings, and sohiect 
to I tie above, each such Annual ( ieneral Mccli ng sl all he lie Id at StiLls 
time as nay he deternuned by the Board. t inless otherwise itilois ed 
by the Coin in ission, Ani itial Genera I Mccli ngs st tall he lie Id ii tIe 
lown in which the ()liiee is situated, and each stick Annual Cienerat 
Meeting sItu II he held at such location in I hat town as I he I bard ni 
deicrin inc. 

Other meetingL 37) All General Meetings other than Annual (ietieral Meclings shall he 
called Extraordinary (icneral Meetings. 

Enrtwrdlnary 38) lIst Board may, whenever they think lit, call an I.xiraordina, 
GeneralMeeting.	 General Meeting and Extraordinary Cieneral Meetings shall also he 

cal led on such requisition. or ut del ttt It. tiny he cal led by st cli 
reqtnsitionists, as pros ided Ii,; by Sectton 159. 

NQll( i: 01 (;ENEILAI. I:l:llN(;s 

Notice of 39) (a) Notice ot a General Meeting shall he sent in lie manner 
nteetings. hereina tier neat ioned at least I wen I y one days be Ii ire I he date on 

which the titeetinu is to he ctinvencd to tll such wsuis as .tie 
under these Aiticles or the I irLllilartec entitled to icceuse '4k Ii 
uttitices troni the (ottipot) ouil slitill sliccil) the plate. LII) .nid 
hour ot list nteettug and the uaiiuc itt the business iobe tiaitsactetl 
thereat. 

(by In the ease of an emergency al kci iii g I lie husi i less Lii i lie 
Cotnpany an Lxtraordinnry I ieneral Meeting may be convened by 
sock shorter notice than that spccttied iii An ide 39(a) atsoe and 
as the Registrar of toni palues nay author lie, 

(c ) Where any special business, that is to say business sit her it 
consideration ol' the accou its, hal ance sheet and the repori 5 oh lie 
Directors and A oW tors, the dec lurat ion of ii iv Wend, the 
UpXttiittiieitt and liatioui tif the rclnhiiienttj'tii oh Aittltitirs and the 
election oil )lrccturs (all stteis ni at las hei, ig here in relë rred itt is 

ordinary business) Is lii he ti.tmistelcd ii a I ieueial Mcctuit. iliele 
shall he antiexed io the itonce ut sttcli ittceliitg tstiienseiti 'L'itiii 
out all such litets as nay 1st niatetial kir the ctinsideratitiu, of stkli 

business inelttding the nature and extent tif the interest (whether 
direct or indirect) otany Director, attd where tic tent of business 
involves approval of atsy docunie,tt, the I tile and place appotu ted 
for inspect ion thereo C and to the c stent applicable s ocl i a 
statement shall be annexed to 'lie ,solmce also in the case itt 
ordinary business to se transaetcd at the utteettng. 

(d) Where a resolution is intended U I he pi oposcd to r ct it is idei at uiii 
a Cietierat Meeting in sonic special or pai ticular Ii inn, a cci 
tltereol'shall he annexed to the nottee convening sods meeting. 
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Omission to 
give iwtlte. 

Quorum. 

(c) IF a Spec lii Keso I La loll ts intended its he passed ,it it elSe,' 

Meeting, the noncc convening iliat lileetilig shall spectly the 
t,itelii toll IL, propose lie resol 01 till as a Spec iii I Itesol LII till 

01 A not ice br a ( Iu ieral Meet Hg etll iv cited or t lie dcci loIs iii 
I )ireetors shall siale I he nuin her of I )trecl oIl lo he elected at ii at 
med i ng ,tiul like 'tallies of I lie ret hug I)i rectors. 

I he 11(11 ice ol every ( idle ral Meeti hg slut1 I proiii Joe, Ily spec II) 

Ilijul a proxy omay lie appoiitted sho sluill have the i glut iii attend, 

tkuitund and join Ii let nandi ig a lxiii and tute oIl a poD alit] speak 

iii the liteetlng In place ot tile Metnher appolllllng 11110 and shall 

he accompanied by a lkirni of proxy acceplable to the t 'olnpany 

40) the accidental 01111S111111 10 give 1101cc oF a Heel I ig to. or the it iii - 

rece pt of 11(11 ice oFas I ned ing hy. uiiy person coo tIed 10 receive no lice 
shall unit inva I idate the priiceednigs at that 'ieeE 11g. 

l'l1O('FEI)lNCS Al' (;FNUL.tl, \ii:i:IiM;s  

411 No hlililws5 shall tie iraiisaeted at any General Meeling unless a 
quorum is presenl at Ilie IlIlle "hell ihe umeeli ig prusceeds us bLIslic's. 
save as herein other" se provided (unless specked otherwise ii die 
Ordinance) at least lt o Memohe, s presemil Ill persia) or by i'' 

prese lii ing twenty-tIc e per cc uI (25%) oF the total Ltfling putt er 
sliM I be a quo roni. 

A coin pony being a Dclii her oF hit I. ounpaimy al id present h' 
represe olin lye duly appoiuuted Ii purloin ice of Sect ton 162, thus I lie 
deellied to he a Member present personally hiir hit purpose ol ti 

Article. 

42) If within half.aii htiLIr tromit the line appointed ti,r tile neelilig a 

of quorum. qtxirwn is not present, the med iuig, iF called uptal the reqtiisulioi it 
Meunhers, shall he dissolved: in any other case, ii shall si.ii.l 
aibjourned to lIme stone day in the test week iii lie sonic lilliC .iilil 

phimee, Lilid, ii dl the .tdttsiirlied ilieetilig it tIltItIllii Is list present ll':lll 

half an hour Irons the bit appommtted br the Imlecting Ike Me,illmel 
preseitt. being not less han Iwo, sliatil he a quoroin 

('Iwirmun of 43 ) I lie C 'halnnall, if any, of t lie I bard of I Ii rectors shial I preside as 

meeting. Chairman at every Uener,ml Meeting oF the ('unspany or ii there Is 'iii 

stick (hi'ainnan or I) lie sIlL! hi not he present wit bin Ii fleets I 

Initlutes atler the itne appointed Ii r I he Ito It] iumg o I Ike ned nig LI 1 

Ii lug to act, amy one of the I )i rectors present nay he elected to he 
(Imirimian of the mcclii g. or if mio di, ector Is pe sell, or ii at I I lie 
I)treetors presoit declIne to take tile chair, the Memnk'rs presetit 'hall 
choose one oF their itemmihers to be ('haii-inan Ob the ItleetilIg. 

While chair 44j No business shall he discussed am an) I ieneral MeetIng etcept lIlt' 

renmolns vitro,,,, election of a Thai rinan so long as tIle chat i r is acarit. 

Derision on 45i Iii At a General Meebimmg, a mesoloitoim 1sust to lie vole ot he mccliii, 
rewlutlons. shall he decided on a show of hands unless a poii is (hchi,re its 

the dcc titration of the shsow oF hands) denial ided 

(a) by Ihe ehan n tn ol I lie meeting, or 

h) by at least one Men her presetut iii person tsr ti plot il 
not more I luatn seve ii stick nd ii hers ire twrsnal I> tresc il, 
and by two stich 'lie Ii hers presel 1 'mm rsoml or by pit's ' I 
Bore titan seveil sue)) Inenthers are personally piesent. 'F 

be) by ally Mcnihier or Me,tihers pesent in persoIi or by proxy told ag 
gil less than one-tenth ol tIle Issued coin tat w I tick carries Vilisi ig 
rights. 
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(ii) J niess a poii be ileina nded, al any kid tent I Mccli ng a tlec anti 
by the Chit inn an oil ic i heel hg hat a i eso I Ut on has on a sltos til 
bands been carried, or carried a ian inntns I y, or by a part ciii 
najority, or lost and tn entry to that died iii ilte hook conlainitig 
the minutes of the proceedings ui ihe ('oittpaity shall until tIle 
contrary us proved, be cv deuce it F the iici iv ii ltout proof lie 
number or proportitli €il' the vines recorded in iitvour titor against 
such resolution. 

Manner of taking 46) Ii a poll is demanded, ii shall be takeui lit tectirdititee wnh lie 
t/polL prov sbus Lii Sect cmi 1b8, .inti the result iii the poD slia Ii be deetnel 

to be the rest) 101 iou ol tie fleet i hg at o4i eh I lie I  ill tv as cletn anded 

('axiing vote. 47) Every quest ion suhin it led it) a fleet ug shall he decided in I he 'it 

uiislanee by a show of hand and in case OI cqttai I ty ot totes. 'lie 
Chairman shitil I, hot h inn a siittw of hetnds and at the pott, hat 
castilig vote in add it in 0 t lie vote or votes to whit eh ic ntay he 
enl illeth as a Member aid/or prosy or corporate represeinal ye. 

Timing of polls. 48) A poll dciii anded ott the elect en LII a ( 'hai ri ian or i'll a tl tiestiol I iii 
adjournment shall he taken I ortitti ith, A pitt den untied on a' i>  oIl Ic i 

questions shall he taketi tt stielt tiltte, lot heiuig more titan Iiiurteeii 
days l'rotn Ihe day oti wh eli the pt II is dew ontled, is the t ' tat rntal I it 
the fleeting directs. 

ilnsiness may 49) I he demand of a po11 sl all not prevent I lie conti ntuanee tilt lie iltee ti tg 
proceed litr I he transact ion OF any httsi ness oIlier than the tune  it lot' mt whit In a 
not wlths landing pull 1Db been deuiiattded. 
dent and ofpoll 

't)l'l:s (II" %IE%IIWI4S 

Right to vote. 50) Subjeei to any special rights or restnet ins as It, toting 111)1)1)  t inch 
any share may be issued i ir t ta> i'ttr tile I lime hei ttg he held, €111 a dii lit 
ot' hatitl, every Me,ither plesent itt person t,td heuntg a bolder nil 

LII dittary shares shall hate title II) ote atiti ct cry persoti presetit is 

general proxy who is tot a Member iii' tile ( 'onpan> or si-Ito Is 1 

Meniher tilt qttaiilicti in tote lilt heln,nll' ill it udder or holder 
ord I nary slietre shtil I Ito' Liii Ic I vote an Li upuul a pit Ii ever) Mc lithe 
present itt person or h> P nix Thai I lint e one I I ) vote or ever) sli tie 
lie Id by hIm I respect itt wIt cit he Is Cult tied itt title. 
In ettie ol' an elect ion or rettiot al of ,t Di rec tar, the pri It is tons oi 
Sectiout 178 and Arliele 68 and 69 respeeuisei shall apply. 

Procedure where a Si) Where a coinpauty or other corporation is a Meuuiher of the tittuparn' 
company is a a persoll tlti ly appo ii ited to represent such cit fit pony at a titeet ii tg ot 
Member of the the loin puny I It aectt rdance w lilt i he prot us itt its ti' t he I ltd tl 
Company. shall not be dee,ii ed iLt be pro and ilta II he ci tilt Ic to cxc 'c lie lie 

Sante powers ttn behall' ill' the ('ittilpany itr eorporntitoti whitctt lie 
represents 'is tlu,tt eotlipalt\ tiE eihlpill,ttioti oitiltl cicreise il it 'ide 

,utdtvudual Menther ill Ite ( milntpaui) present in persitnl the 
pritduct Ion before or at the meet hg oh a copy ol melt lest) littion dma 
stgtted by one di reelttr or secretary ttf such eonipatty or corporal 'It 
and cerl i lied by him as hel ng a trite copy of t lie reso liii ion sltal I lie 
accepted by the ('Li in pan) as sit I lieient cv ide, tee of the t'al do> itt hits 
appoint unent. A company or corpoaion wh leli is a Mciii her ith' t lie 
('onipany bitt winch is lot rcstdcnt in l'akisiatt flay appilluti a 
u'eprcselstativ e as a htresuu id by hitcstnt i Ic rraltsln iii in iv lttelt if 
pttrporl i rig to be sent by such eotn pany or Cttrporitt toil, need nit I he 
certified as a trtte cops as aloresaitl 
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J'olãng shares in 52) On a pot I, a M ember entitled to inort than one ott iced not, it he 

IiJferent ways-. votes, use all his votes or cast au t lie Votes lie useS its the saute Wa 

Joint knItters. 53) In the ease of joint holders, the vote ut the senior holder present, 
whether in person or by pnixy, shall be accepted to the exel tisk) U' ii 

the votes of the tim her jo 'itt holders; and br tills pi mqxsse Sc",' if I I) 

shall he deterni i ned by the order in w hick thetr nattic s statnl ii tite 
Register. 

Member of 54) A Member of u,tsoond nt nd, or in respect of whont a'' under has keen 

unsound nit,:,!. made by nit> eott rt ltav I ng jtlrm sdiet ion in lunacy may vote, whethei titi 
a show o I kinds or on a poii, by his eont,n ii Ice or oilier legal guard t.ti 
u,td any welt con, 'ti ttec or guard Ian in ay, tin a poll, vole h no'.> 

Objections to 55) No obleem bit sital I be raised to t lie qUit1 i tic.it hni ot' any vote r except at 

Votes. I Ite meet i uig or adloor ted meet iitg at which the vote objec ted Iii I 

given or tendered, and every vote not distil lowed sIt suelt nteeit' Ic! 

skid I be Valid (or all ptirpstscs. A ny such ohje cm toil made ti due 'title 
shall be referred to tIle Chairman of the nec I ing, vl tose dee is', us sito It 
be final and eonettts ive 

Votes 56) On a poll, votes may he given either personally (including withutit 
i proxy. tin) ital ion a represcntat t ye of it coin pany Or corporstt i oil ,itti lior t/ed 

under Article SI ofiliese Articles) or by proxy. 

boxy to be in 57) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be ti writing under I he huid 

writing, of the appointer or of Ins itttorney dtii y ant lair tied ii writing, or, it tie 
appointer is it corporal ion, either ttnder seal t ir ,utder the hand cit an 
officer or attorney duly aotliori,ed. A proxy need tot be a Member it I' 
the Cotttpany, 

Instrument 58) I he instrument appoi iti ng a pro'. y and I he xtvver of ill toritey or ctilter 

appointing proxy to atmthority (il tiny) tInder vhtelt it is s tgtted. or a itota nIl> cc rt t lied 

be deposited, copy of that power or atm tlit ri ty. shut I he deposited ,tt I lie ( )ltiee itt it 
less thtnt tOny eight tours helore tIme lime litr holding the tneettttu It 
which the person tisilited in Ilte ttistrtitneitt prttlkiscs to tile, atnt itt 
de litult t he i nstrutnent ol proxy shall nol be I reated as itI td. 

Porn: of proxY. 59) A n i nstrtnn cot appointing a pro'. shut I, as tte tn>- is itt intl 1st II Ice 
will adittit, he in the t011ovittg lOrin or itt any ottter Onto uvtueh lie 
Board may approve: 

AlIAS ENERGY I.IMIltl) 

1/We  being a member of AlIAS FNlKt iY 

-I M I II I) and etmti tIed Ia - - votes, do hereby uppt ittl 

- nt , hOling lint. 

of - as tn'/tttir pro'.> to vote For Inc/Its md oil iO 0th 

belltlll at the Aiiiival or I:xtittontliitary (,ts Ike case tit-ay he) ( iettetat 
Mccl ing ol' I lie toni pall y to be held on the - via' if 

20 md li sot> .ttljttttniaitetit iltercttt' 

Signed by toe this duty oF 

(S tgttatttne o I vle, it her) 
Wit I less tO the S ignattmrc: 

Full Name & Address: 

Proxy may demuntl 60) Ilie it istromnet it appti mti ng a tirtix y dial I he deented to ci tiler 
poll. aolhority to demand tIn 1Ol) iii de titam ding a pu 11, 
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Revocatia,: of 
authority 

hi) A vole given in ziccorduice with the terms of in instrtnnent of pits> 
shall be valid utotwithstanding the previous death or insanity ui lee 
pri I ueipal or re vocal iou ii I' the [Sri ixy or of the out 111111> uP itler ii I 'eli 
the proxy was executed or the triinslix iii lie shares ii respect ol 
which lie proxy is gIen, pros dcii that ito ,tiuitahiuu, in writing il 
such death, insanil es oc.il jolt or I laOs CI OS it lorestid sun! I iii e 
been received by the Uoiiupany at (lie 1)1 lice be hire I lie 
coturnenceutsetil of ilic fleeting or adjourned itiectiiig ca i hich tic 
proxy is used. 

Dtltl:( "l'()I4S 

Number of 
Directors. 

I' iris Directors. 

flsuul twcauciei. 

Eligibilily for 
election as 
Director. 

62) I he rn in 'ilium mon her of I )ircclors of the (hut Salty skill be ihi cc. 
The Board slitil I lix the ilium her till) irecto rs of the Coot pau i) tot I tier 
titan thirty live detys before coulvening of the (kneral Meeting it 
which Directors sure to he elected, and the iitiunher xi, used shall 
be changed except with prior approval of he (icueral Meeting ot 
Company. 

63) •l he lint I )i rectors ut the Coin puny shall he as flil lows: 

I. Mr. Saquib I lussain Shirevi 
2. Mr. l:rahint  All Kltan 
3. Mr. Maqsood Ahrncd 

64) Subject to (lie provisions ni these Articles and the Ordinance, itìe 
Directors shall he elected by the Members iii C icitcral Meeting. 

65) A Director elected by the Members in (icnerul Meeting shall heLl 
o lice br a period of three y  cars Ii 1 low ii ig tie date ruin wl tide lit 
election is ellixtivc unless lie resigns earlier. becoutes disqual i lied 
(lout be ittg a I) irector or ollterwi Se ceases to told it flice. 

66) Any casual vacancy occurring utuhiiig the l)iuecitirs nay he tilled III 
by he i)irecuurx, .ini1 a periitu o eullpoiuited skull nl' hold el ice Ii 
lie reutiauitdcr oF lie ciii) il lie I )ii'ccitir ui whose pliec lie is 

appotted. l'he ( 'oHtl)ttut's' shall, prior to ever>  such euppouitluuicnt. 
secure iii the Ibruti prescribed tier tItus ptii [Site. the etotsciit itid 
certilieate of he persoit coutceriied consenting to ad .it a I )ircciitr aid 
ecu il nig that he is iou inc I igi hle 10 become a I) i rector aitd slid I 
within fourteen days of his appoitiuinetil tile such coitsetti is uth the 
Registrar olConipaitics as required hy Section 184. 

67) I lie Mciii hers to C ci ueral Meet ii tg shah I c led the I i rectors lit an 
antouigs( persouis silto, not benig inehigthle it accordance with Secioni 
187, o flër them selves tin elect out as I) i rectors in accordance is tt 1111,1 

Article. Atty person den it Dig lit he eligible is tie desires to it ci 
himself br election shall, whether he is a retiring I )ii'edior or not. iilc 
wit h the ('0111 pan>' not later than fourteen days he lore t he date til ii 
(iciteral Meeting itt it dcli I )ircctors arc tie he elected, a notice thai c. 
being eligible, intends in olkr hiiitisclt or cheettitut as a Ditect, ii 
that ttteeting and that lie coutsettts to act as a l)irecior it elected Ii 
such person is elected a 1)1 recti ir, ihtet t the Coin patty si tall Ii Ic Ins 
consenl to act as a I )i rector iv itit i he Regist rat of ('out panics is tihi is 
l'onrteen days ut his cleciiun ,ts reqinred by Section 184, A perstut 
olleri ng hi iii self for election as ci Di rector in a>' is i thdu'aw Ins 
eta id dat tire at any t i me before the holding oft Ite elect ion and nt a' to 
so by iv i I hdraw ii tg the it,,l ice in which lie ii tkred Ii lot sell br ekcl .i 
Not later that, sevei i days he litre t lie date of t lie meet ii ig. U 
Lou uipany is ill not 1 y the Meitt hers ol I lie perso its o lii it ig the usc I' es 
Iitr elect iou t as I) i rectors at such i lice ii usg. 

Election of 
Directors. 

Period of office of 
eieete,l Directors. 
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Proce.lssn'fnr 
election of 
Directors. 

Alternate 
Directors. 

OH) the provisions ol this Article shall apply ku the election iii i)necit,s 
by the Mciii hers in General Meeting lion, anitingsi the c and dare 
ci igi isle (tsr election, millie ly 

(it) every Member prcsc it in person or by proxy shall have site Ii 
inn her III votes as is equal to the product ol the ii vim tic r oh sitai ci 

carrying the right to vote held by hint .uid the nunther ol I )ircctor 
to he elected; 

(b) Ike manlier of votes calculated in accordance with the preceding 

clause (a) may be g i veil to a single candidate or may be div icicd 
heiween any two or more candidales itt such ilianner as the paso' I 
voting may choose; and 

(c) Ike candidate who gels the highest number of otes shall he 
declared elected as Director and then the candidate who gels tic 
next highest number 01' voles Slid II he so dccl ared and so tin tn Ii 

the total number of Directors to he elected has been so elected. 

69) Ike Company in General Mceliitg nay remove a Director lion, oil 
by a resolution passed w ilh the requisite number of nites ticterati, ci 
in accordance w ii h the provisions of Sect ion 18 I 

70) Use qua Ii flcat ion ut a I) irecior, except fit a no in inee tindet Sect in 
183 or a Director covered by live proviso 0 Section 187(11) shalt he 

holding o a share in 'lie ( oiiipaity of the noin i nal aloe ol' K s lit 
A lirst I )t rector in ay act lye lure tcqtttring his quaIl Itcatton, hut Miiti I Iii 

any case acquire tile same within I 'vu iiioiitlis Itoin his appoi nt,i 
and he shah I he deemed Eu have agreed to take 'lie said shtt e rout ic 
t'ontpany, and I lie same shall he al lulled to ha in accord rig ly 

7 I) - the rem unerat ion of Ii te 1)1 rectors sitol I, tiot,t t me to 11111 e. be 
tkterin med by the l4oard. 

72 Airy 1)1 rector vv ho is an ciii pit ace 01 the ( na a pait or ivho se rs Cs in 
any colil illittee or sun, dci ole s special all ciii knit • tile busi tic is uI it it 
Company, or who othieris lie perlrn nis services iviuci i iii I lie. pin toil 
of I he I ) ireelors are oiil,, ide the scope of I tte out 'liar) vIol ics itt 1 

I) ireclor, may he paid such rem uncrat ion as the Roai d it a 
deterns inc. 

.u.mKNAiI: DIKF:C'I OHS  

73) A Director who is about to leave or is ahsertt lhr a pci tod nil tivi cc 
Months or inure from 'ak tstan In a) with the approval oft he I) i reel 'is 
appoint tilty person vho is ci igihle tinder Sect ion I 87 tkir appotnin cii' 
as it Director to he an Alternate I )t rector doritig ins ahsci Ice It, nut 
l'akist,tn and such rppoinlinent shall base cheer and sitcil aplxnnlec. 
whilst he holds otlice di alt alternate l)irectr,r, shall he enliikvl to 
exercise in place oh' liii iPiki jilter dli I he hind tills of his app'. i tic, its 
a hhircehir of the nilnlun\  hut lie shill Ipso lack, ic,ite il ice kilt 
when Itis apponnier clvii 'is itt Pakistan or vacaics 0111cc as a I 
or re moves tise app.nntce Inn ii ill lice - Ais apptri I ttniei it or rein ai 
under this Article shall he ellected by itotice in writ iisg tiuidcr lie 
hand of the Director inak iitg tile same. Stich alternate I )irector iita he 
one ui the I )irceiors 1)1 the ( 'ontpan) in w tile h cisc lie 'that I 'c 
enl it led to act in Nu h captielt ics Au ailernate I) i reel' ir need nit Ii 
tiny shore quati lication. 

Removal of 
Directors. 

Qualifying .vhare. 

Remuneration of 
Directors. 

Special 
remuneration. 
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POWERS tNt) lfl'tIES OF UIKI'AlORS  

Ilorri,wine l'owert  

forty wing powers. 74) (a) the Direciors may exercise all the powers ot the ('olillkili) lii 

raise money otherwise than by the issue oh shares and to mortgage 
or charge us uiideriuking or property or any pan iheitof and iii 
issue debentures and other securities whether outright or 
security lr any ohi igat ion or lability or debt ot the to npuu I) to 
any third party. 

(b) lit exercising the atoresaid powers ol the (ounpilny, lie I )lleetiil 
flay, thu n line hi time aitd ott sue Ii tenu s and comid i hulls as I 11c 
think lit, raise money from htinks and liimncial uisuttotiouis and 
front other persons Linder aiiy penn itted syste in of Ill panel, 
wheiher pro' iding or ptymeist ol interest or sonic other tvrui ii 
returpi, and in pan leular die I )i rectors n ay raise money on tie 
lsis of mark-up on price, musharika, niudaraba or tilt) oilier 
permitted mode LII lililltcing. and without prejudice to lie 

neraliiy ui I lie tbregoing, the I )irectors may exert se all or iii' 
of the powers o I i lie ( 'tuttpany Uris i Pig Ui ide r Sect ion I OtI( 2). 

(C) Subject to tie provisions of Art pelt 7  51tt) iii regard to the issue • 
securities, the I )ireciors may exercise all or uiy of the poisel 
the Coin pitHy uris vig under Sect ions 19(21, 1(7, 121) mid 1% t 2 
and in purl ictilar i lie I )i cc tors niny I sstie at iy seth iii) as the Iii ad 
in Sect iou 2(1 IL 34 I or iiay issue atty tist ruinent or Curl' tic tie 
representing redeem able capital as de tilled 'U Sect ion 2(1)1 ii IA I 
or parlieipatory redeemable capital as delined In SectIon 2i t it? 

Oilier Poweri and l)tiiics 

Gen era! powers 75) (a) the business of the ('onipany sisall be managed by the l)ureei,tr, 

of company who may exercise all such powers of ihe Company as are ml by 

vested in the ( )rdi mace or any situ ulory modi heat Itlo tliereo I lot tIle liii IC 

Directors. being in lhrce or by uliese Alleles ttre required in he cxci c sept 
the ('urn puny us I i eneral Mcci ng, solsiec t icy erille less lii ills 
i-egtiiahion of these Articles, to the provisions ol the I )rdtnai,tc. 
and 10 such regulations being nol iiicoitststeilt with lie attiies,iitl 

regulat ions or pro' iso 'B. 'is may he presci thed by I he & 'otii pin 
in I leneral Meet lug htit iii regulation In ade by tile (.'oni pan> iii 
tienerul Meetitig shall invalidate hull) irun act ol the I )ini_-et,tls 
which wottld have been valiti if that regtilatlon tad lull liven 
niitde. 

(h) A tesottit ion itt a net ing ol the I )irectors do ly c.niv cued and it Id 
shalt lie necessary lot eemeisnig the pitwers ii die I ttliils.lIi5 

speeilied in Sectititi I *(2 ). 

1'ower of ltt,,rnet 't,) tic l)uret't,,rs lila) Itoimi tune I,, late ,intl al ,tiiy tune In hslisL 
attormie) ap1kiuuit dli) ciiuiipdii). him (it pelsoil LII hod iii 

whether nflni i utated directly to p ndiree II> I iuiclud mug ally I), rec t tilt 
oflicer of the toni p.tn y ) by the I) ireeiot s, to he t lie aliop ie 1 

attorneys of Ihe t'oni p;niy Iiir sticli purposes ml Id with stichi pos ci s. 

authorities and disc ret ions not e xeeedi mg those vested lii it 

exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and hir such twi iid 
mid subject to such condi t lulls as they nia> ili iuik hit, dud any Ii 

powers uI' Littortie) nay conitii ii such prov Is louis br I he proteettul I a' id 
convenience of persons deal ng 'v utti any sLmch attorney as I tic 
I )ireclurs nay lb ittk lit and In ay also ahithorve my sttchi attorney to 
delegate all or any of ihe powers, authorities mid dIscretions vested in 
hint; and without prejudke to the general it y of the lorego ing till) suehi 

I' 



Official vealfor 77) 

use abroad. 

Office of profit 78) 

('icitractitsg with 79) 
('unspa Sly. 

ot attorney not>- .tittltoriie lie attorney to institole, eotiditct. 
de lead, compound or abandon any legal proceed i rigs by or against lie 
Company, whet icr general I yor'.tny port ten ar case - 

ilie ('otnpainy nay exetcise the posters conterred by Section 211 
with regard to I laW I rig an u Ilk ml seal I or use abroad, to id such po t'ct 
shall be vested itt the I )i rectors. 

A Director of the ( not pony i r a ñrni oF svli ic h ate!' I) ice mr ts a 
partner or a private coin puny o F wit mcli such I ) rector 5 a director iit.my 
with lie consent of the ('onipctiy in General Meeting told otis tihhice 
of protit tinder I he (tuft pony pin vi ded thait 'to such cot' set ii 
required where the olliec held is thai nl(ltiei Executive or a loll millie 
entph.iyce or ego I or tech ti icail adviser or hanker. 

Snhjeel to author i tat toil he ittg g  iv cit by I he I )i rectors ti accordance 
with Section 216.a Director shall no; he disquashhied riot 
coat wet ing with lie Coin panty either as vendor. purchaser ii 
otherwise, nor shall ins such contract or atrrautgeuneuit entered tilt' ii 
or ott behalf of the ('otnpattty with any cottipanv or partttershtp iii or 

a w h cli ally I )ireclo r of I lie Coin pany shall be at tneiuhe, a 

otherw be interested he two ided titrr shall any such 1)1 Fec tot si 

conmraei ing or he itig such tuerube r or so interested he Ii able 0 

account to the ('out puny for Lilly FO lit rca I itS by any such ci ulilr.ic I 
or arrangement by reason of such I )ireetor holding that ol lice or at 
the liduci airy relation thereby established. 

Disclosure of 
inter flts. 

Where Director 'i 
interest lies in 
appttintsnenl Qf 
thief Executive 

Vt'.. 

Prolsil,itiou oJ 
listing by interested 
Directors. 

Regi.yter .if 
coistrocls, 

arrangements and 
ispp.flhttnients. 

80) A Director who, or whose spouse or to irior clii Id, ts 1 atry 5' _t) 

whether directly or i id i rcc tI). coitce 'ned or inhere shed itt any co miii , 
or arrangement or proposed coiti met or arrat gent emit with 
('otnpany shatl I d sc lose the ion tire 01' such coticerts or i titeresi il 
toed i ng oF the I) rectors iti accordance svi th Sect ion 21 4, 

HI) Where by tiny coniract or rcstilimtiori ot' ihe Directors, iii a1s1xttnmnrL'imi 
air a tartittittit ti the icittis of itt etstitig ap1iottttttiettt is note 
tsthcthcr ehiective mniincttiatcls or mt the tifiutet amia ('hiet I eciititc. 
svhole t till e I )irector or Sccre tory of I lie C '0111 pat]), it In ii 
aippottittlient .tti' I )ti'cctatr iii the t 'ititipatt i,, to titter tile ctitltiact 'it 
resulttttott becotties, Ii Ill) va) , whether directly alt itidiretlis 
concertied or interested, the C 'otnpittry shall inlirtn the .Mettihet s iii 

satchi uppoinirtietit or variatioti in the nanrier required by Sectititi 218 
and shall cotnply t lIt tIme requiretnents ol that Section in regard au 
the tnaitttaiising of sticit contr.tcls ttttd resolattititis open tor inspection 
by Ment hers at the C ) lice. t lie prov is ion ill cert I lied copies t hci cot 
and extracts there thint imitl attlierts tse. 

82j I';cepl as pr'ov ided in Sectioti 2 Us, a I )irector shall taiL site in tes;ieei 
ol' any ciintr,tet or rrrtittgenreitt it svlitcli lie is ctthcr directls or 

indirectly concerned or i ntetested t lair shut I his preset Ice Clii tnt I ur mime 
purpose of lorttnrig at qatorttrn at lie time iii .ttis such tite anal 
does su voie, lits vote shill lilt lie counted, 

83) I lie Coin puny shall Co ft ply with the pros taiotts ol' Sect hut t 219111! tic 
)rd i lance with regatt'd lii the keeping ut a register and the en hr -, 

therein of the particulars of till eotitruets atid arratigelnet is air 
appointtitenls of the kind referred to in Sectiuirs 21-I, 215, 216 or 8 
of the C) rdi notice separately Iii r caich Seem kin, to td 'vi tli re gawci it' 

tlsaitll ai n i tig such register open Ii tr tt tspeet ion b Mciii bets at 
0111cc, ihe provision nt eerti lied copies thereof and extracts ilK i 

l'rottt and otherw se, 
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Intvrestel 84) A I) trector ol' the ('0111 painy may he or became a ci ircelor ot any oil icr 

directorships, company promoted by the Company or in which the Coinpali> lilt> 
be interested as a vendor, shareholder or otherwise and no Soc h 
Director shalt he atcetnintahle Ilir any henvtiis received as a direclor 
or nieniher of suIt other coin pithy. 

Signing powers. 85) All cheques, protn issory notes, drafts, hills ol' exchange aial oilier 
negotiable i nstrunients, atid all receipts tiir moneys paid to ii Ic 

Company, shall be sigiied. drawn accepted, eutdorsed, or others. st 

exeeuled, as the case nay be, iii such nia,uicr as the I )irccttars skill 

From titne to time h> resolulion determine, 

Minutes f 86) I he Directors shall cause minutes uI all Board tnecting, committee ill 

mccii ngs. Directors tnecting and ( eneral Meeting ot' the Coanpauiy to he niaidc 
iii hooks provided tIn the purpose and kept •tt the otlice 

(a) ot' all appo intinents ot ol iieers made by the 1)1 teetors; 

(b) oh' the names of the I) rectors presem it a! eac Ii meeting ot at Ic 

Direclors and oh' any cotnniiitee of Directors; 

(c) of all resolutions aunt proceedings at all i tiect tugs ol the C 'fbi d A 

and ui the I) ireeloi s antI cii ec,mritii ittec it' I) rectors; 

and Ihe Directors present at any meetIng ot Directors or committee ii 
Directors and tail Memhers and proxies of Men,hets preseni ii ii> 
Cieneral Meeting shall sign their Dillies Iii book to he kept Ikur tla 

purpose; anti such in ii utiles ol sitcl t a meet mug 1 purporting 0 he 

signed by the chain ii an tl merec,i or h> el tan tHan 0 t lie 
sticceeding meeting of the same body, shall he sti I tic ietat c mdcii c 
wi thotmt any iLmrl her proo I Oh the tact s t here in stated. 

Payment of 87) [he I )ircetors on helm Ii ci F t he ('on) pa' my in ay pat> at g  rat tail> air 

pensions. jtns,n or allowance i in retirement to any I)m rector "liii hats tic Itt ala> 
oilier salaried office jr plucc'i ii profit 'mth lie ('onapami' ii ii 

widow or depetsdents aid may make crintu IhLatao,ms iii am)> 1111k1 nat 

ii pretn iu Ins lk,r he purchase or pro IsioJi ol atav such rat aaat 

penstcin or al Ii ,watnce 

Distil Al.11"l('AFION OF l)lRI'X'lolts 

fllsquullJhution  of' 88) A Director shall ipso 1tctti cease to hold uI cc itt- 

Directors, 
(at) I tc beeotnes mel igihle ho he appointed its a I) mreetoi on an!) one tar 

inure nI the grounds sped I led in Meet ion 187, or 

(b) he abseutis hi anse It I rout three consecutive ace ttiigs uI I tic 

Directors or From alll nieeiingsol the l)nectors hr a comiiianaiaas 
period oh' three Months, whichever ts lie to' iger, without lean it 

athscttce than the 1)1 reek irs: or 

(C) he or any t'trmn 01' w loch lie is at par! icr III dii) pt te ate coni pLo it 

which he is at di reelor w iLlioul the sane I to,' oh' the ('outi paul> is 
General Meeting accepts tsr holds any office of profit under die 
Company other ihan ihat ol a chief execotive or a legal or 

technical adviser or at hanker, or 

(d) 1w tails to ohiatmn within two Months t'roni tile clfreiive date oh 
his appoint nient or il alt!> time I hereai tier ceases to hold, the shire 

qual i licattion Itceessary br Ins appo iii! nient 
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PROC 'FE 1)1 N(;s Dl' UI It IC l( IRS  

Meetings of 89) the Directors nay toed together for the des1,atclt ul busutcs, 

Directors, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as I hey think it. 
I xcepl or otherwise pro tied here'u qiieslioils arisiiig at ill) intel' rig 

sb-all he decided by a in tj on y  of voles in case iii an eq ud lily • I 

voles, I he Cha I on an sf1 all I 'ave a sectli it! or casting ole. A Direct, 
nay, toid the Sec ret try on lIre requ liii ion ui a Director shitl L at a' 

line • sum non a 01 cciii ig ot' I) i rectors. 1 ic I lo,rd oF I )lrecto rs its 

dcternt inc to hold a mccli 118 ibroogh audio or video con Ic rene ii tg or 

any oilier technology w I terehy all the I) i rectors can, sun iii inneous k 
coot null teate It) and 'vi ih each o lIter - A copy of I he in Holes iii 

I )irectors intel logs shall he Furnished to etscli I) rector w 'liii n lou rice', 
days of such meeting. Notice shall he given In writing to cs cry 
l)irccior or Isis alternate I) rector for any meting of the I)trcctors and 

such notice shall Lx glv en in writ log to Ins address tn I'ak sian and by 
thcsi in lie or email Ir-ansol i ssio, i to his address outside l'-ak i stan - 

any, noti lied by it nt lit I he Contpau y for this purpose. 

Quorum of 90) Unless otherwise deterni tied unanimously by the Directors, lie 

Directors. quorum itecessary br the transact ion of the business oh the I ) i rectis 
shall he majority of di rectors hi) It! lug ol lice kir the 11111 C hen ig. A ii 
ailernate Direclor whose appointment is cl11ct1ve shall be couritetl iii 

a quorum. 

Iffect u_f UI the coot mu lug I )i red ors in a> set not wit Iisiumtd I rig any acami ii 

wwuncy. their body so long as their nuinher IS 110! reduced below the uutiilx'r 
ii xed by or pursuant to i hese A ri Ic cs its the necessary quo tim ',I 
I )irectors, 

Chairman. 1,12) I he I) i rectors may elect a ('hal rnlan oh'! heir nec! Ings and dcicrti I sc 

the period i'or which he is to hold o dice. II '10 such C 'hai ruins is 
elected, or ii' at any inceming tlte ('hainnaii is intl present withni thu 
nlinutes alter die lime •ippointed or holding the same, the I )irecimIms 
present nay choose timse il heir numbers to be lie ('hunrtan ol '15th 

niccliilg only. 

haters of nietiing. 93) A uiteci nig of the i),i ccl tlt 5 at tlt cli isqtit liii Iii I pre SC iii 'hi.il I 

coilipeteilt to exercise all or any ot il,e authorities, intl 

discretions by or under the Ordinance and these Articles br the tune 
being vested iii or exercisahie by the Directors generally. 

Power to app uint 94) lIie Directors nsa> delegate any of their lt¼crs to ctllnhlldtccs 

com,nhlren and to consisting of such member or mclii hers uI lire ii body as lucy think lit 

delegate. and ni ay irons I me lo I Hue i c yoke stick de legal nut Any cool 111111cc 

so formed shall, in ii ic exercise ii F the ptts ers so delegated, col iii iii 
to any regulations that mtias rout loire to tiitie he imposed upon then, 
by the Directoms. 

I'imlirliip of 0th. V) All ads done it am niccinti,' of tilt' I )iicciots, or ol a conrinluct- ''I 

I )ircctors, or by ally person mctlng .is a I )ircctor shall mititis rihisiatittuig 
that it shall alierwards be discovered that there was soilic detect in the 
appoi nlinenl or cuiltinuamice in oilicc uI a iy such I )ircctors or pc rsoti 
acting as al'oresa id, or that they or •tny oh' the UI were di sqi al i lied or 

had vacitted ollice, or were lilt entitled to soic, he its ahid as ii' CS Ci) 

such person had been duly appo tistcd or had duly continued in tdhl cc 
and was q ito Ii fled and had coot imiued to he a 1)1 rector and had been 
entitled to he a Director and mad been entitled to vote, 

Resolution in 96) Subject to the provisions of Article 75(b) (11 these Articles, a 

writing, resolution in writing, signed by all the I )irectors (or tn their absence 
the ir a ileniate i i rectors I for t lie time heir ig ova i I sib It (not he itt g less 

than the requisite quorum of I )irectors) or by all the ,neun hers o I a 
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coin in i tiec Fir the I line being at ailahlc shut I hens sal id and tiled 'ml 
as if it had heei, passed at a 'fleeting of he 1)1 rectors, or as the c,iw 
may 1* of s octi corn in ittee, do ly called uid cotis Iii uted in accordance 
with tile provisions of these A rue ks. Such its" lotion be cool a I ned in 
one doeuuienl or in se 5 era I docutnen is in like lii an each s gi ted h> 
one or in ott ol' the 1)1 reclttrs or inein hers ol lie coin nit 11cc co' ice Filet1 
A litesint itt or email trioisni i stilLin sent by a 1)1 rector or a meun her ol 
the comm lice shall he deemed to he a document signed hy hint in 
the pi poses of ibis Article. 

Meeting by way of 97) Subject to any rttics lathed under or usy regolattoits or d treclis Cs 
eiectrris,ic issued porstiani to lire ( )rdlnartcc, I )ircctors or Members ot 
communication. committee may lake part in a fleeting of the I )irectors or a coinflotlec 

by using aiiy coIn 'lion' eat till eq 01 pnicnt 's h cli allows cv ci> l ids 
ic pining in the 111cc till8 to s peak to and hear cacti tither. Fak trig 

part in ibis way will count as being present at the hireling Meetings 
will he treated as lakiitg ptiicc where the largest group of tic 
parliei pants are or, ii' there is no sods group. wlsere I lie ('liar mill' ii 
the tnectittg is.  present. 

('Ill LE l'.XIA'( 11W  F  

.ippolntmeni of 
('Mel Executive. 

Remuneration of 
Chief Executive. 

98) the Coin puny shut I has e ,u,iol lice of (Isie I I seetti I e which sltal It' 
tilled irons Utile to inn c by the I i rectors sslitt liii) 111)15  151 a lii ret h 
or s object to Sect ion 2(11) any other person to he the (It left xcctiI 
Ibr a period not exceeding three years arid on such lenhis intl 
condiltons as the l)ireciors ala) think lit, mid mcli appointniettt shill 
be made w itli in lotittecil dtss s loin the dale Intl wit cli the ol lice , 
(he1 Execut he liii is s acaol. I XOI I lie C x iry ot h s ten it I 
appo inlnient, the ('isief I. xecot ive shall be ci ig ide un re - appo i ultitte hi 
lithe ('mci hxeeutive at any time is not already a h)irector he shall he 
tkeined to he a I )i rector of the C 'on tpany. I he ('Ii ci I xee iii i e nit 
he removed from olli CC ill acco rdatice with t lie pru iv istu niis uI Sec inn' 
202. 

99) I lie Chief l:xeettthe shall receive such renioiterattohs as the I hhrcthuis 
insaty determine and it mniy be itiade a term of his uiliptiutlllllcili tiruti lie 
he paid a pensmott anthtIr gruttotl>  and/or oIlier heitelils ott retireiiteil 
Il'oln Isis otliec. 

Powers of chief' 1(111) I lie I) rectors nit> en' nt sl Iti at id cciii ICr oponi the ('Is id I' 'ecoti' c 
Executive. any of the powers exercisable by them as they nay itnok lit, and tia,rs 

conlCr such powers ilir awIi tone, and to he exercised timr such tiittc. 
and to he exercised I tsr 5 oci objects anti poi attd ci pon such 
terms and condi I ions, intl svi Its vocli restrict tills as they in as I liii ik iii 
and may trout ii tue no line revoke ,aitc r or 'ar) all or all) ci I it ic Ii 
powers. 

(lIlt i' ii t Pl'Ol Nt%I ENIS 

ilppoiut,nesauJ hiI1 the (otltis.tit) Secieit,\ 111.1) he ippoitited h> titc l)iuccictt,, liiniht 
'umpany to tt He Icir such term, at suds rein uileral kill .tnd uixm fl awh coisd liii its 

Secretary. as they may think lit. I ite d irecloms may lrotn It nc to line roil n 
disni Iss In in Irons otliec and ap[Xnt mit allot icr in li's place. 

lIlt, SEAt. 

('omnion Sent 102) I lie I )trediors shall prov dc hir I lie sut Ic cusiod y of I he Seal svhti cli 
shall only he used by the atilhioriiy of the Directors or of a cotliitiiti:e 
of the Directors authorized by lie Directors on that hehaU and CS ers 
ilstrunleuil to wh cli 11w Seat1 skill he ,ttli xed sila II cii tier he s ignetl lis 
one Director and cotintersigued by the Secretary or by a sec,iimtl 
Direeior or by sonic tither persots appointed by lie Direclors kn tic 
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Divi,Ie,sds payable 
alit of profits. 

Reserve. 

tpportionniesit sif 
ilividesids. 

purlxse or be signed Ii) the Chief l:xeeuiive alone, hut so lot lie 
Di rectors may by resol 'it ion deierin inc either general h or in ,III 

particular case, that the signattirt of the ('Inch Executive, any l)irettoi 
and/or Secretary ta) he ,iliixed by sonic uiecliaiiical means lii he 

specilied in such resolution including vitliout Innitatioti Is) piiiillite, 
lithography or staniping. 

l)lVIt)ENI).S ANt) lti:SEI4VI1S 

103) Use ('0111 puny in ( ie I crat Mcci iuig nay declare I )i itleiitts, hut iii 

Dividends sisal I exceed I lie zmioo it recoinnicoded by the I )i rectors 

1(14) Die l)i rectors ma> Iroin time to II 'lie to ihie Mciii her, si itli 

inter un 1)1 idends as ,Iplitr lii I lie I )trectors to be just' lied by lie 

pro his 01 the Coni pan 

105) No I )iv identls shall he paid tahienv I se than out ol pro tit iii the 'CII 

or any other untlist rihoted pro I its and in the tide Fill I Hat loll Lii lie 

pro hits available lir dividends the I) i rectors shall give due rcg.trtl is 

the provisions of the Ordinance, in particular Seettotis 3, 215 .iitii 

248. 

106) (a) Ate Directors na), hef,re iecoiniitentl ig aity dividend set aside 
out of the pro Ills oF the ('lull pany such Molts as they think prope 
as a reserve or reserves which shall, aI the discretion ot ilic 
I )irectors, he applicable Ilir meting coin i ugeiscics. or hr 
equalizing Dividends. or thr any oilier purpose io which I lie 

profits 1 the Company niay be properly applied, and peliLlilig 
such appl cat ion, .it i lie like disc retioi t. cit liet be cntpho> ed in tIle 
httsiness of the toni ptiliy or he invested, stibjeci to the prov sbus 

oh' the Ord i tiance, in SLicli tn vesti nemits lot her than shares oh the 
('on puny) as the I )i rectors niay taint ii inc to time think lit 

(h) Ilie I )ireetors may a Lo crry I iirw ard cia) profits tslu eli ilicy ott' 
hint, prudeni tot to dismribuie. w uihout seittuig tlient aside .i, a 

restre. 

11)7) All l)ividends shall tie slechiumed anti paid iecordnmg to lie iiiioti''t, 

paid OII the shares. All dt I dends sIsal I he appot t itsited atisd P"  id 

proportionally to Ilie aniouisi s pa id or eredtted 'is pa Id oii I lie s hi.ii Cs 

during any portion tir ,onions iii' ilme period in respect of winch lie 
Dividend is paid. Ii' an> share ts issued on ternis prov ding that it 
shall rank hiT dividend as t'roni a particular date, such share shall ía, ii, 
Ijir dividend accordingly. 

I OH) A trails Icr of shares shall lot t lie right to .tn) Its I dci ul dccl, red 

thieremin belitre the regisi ram miii ol the trait sler 

09) I Ite div dead in respect ol in) share shall be patd to I lie i egtstc ted 

Isilder of such sliareot Iii los lij,mukem sir iii a liiiimicial oi,tittmt itt ti, 

delitted in Section 11 t)tl5Ah) nontttt.ited h 1,1w lot tlte pot pose 

Unless oi he rw i se i nstrtmcted vi s.F It' og by I lie registered ho Ide r ml 
share, any Dividend payable in cash in respect ol such share itsisy tie 
paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post by registered inn I ti 

the registered address oh' he holder or, in the ease ui joint holders, to 
the regislered address of that one of the joint holders who us Iirst 
nanted on I lie Register or to such hanker or hi natie al inst tt tit mmiii as 

niuy have been notitinated by the registered ttolder. very such 

cheque or warrant shah I tie made payable to the order oh' the peed In 
whioni ii ts sent, A nyu lie of two or more joint Ito lders mitay is e 
elteetual receipts br any Di. idemsds payable its respect ol the shares 
held by hens us joint holders 

Decluratlo,, of 
ill wielend. 

Interim dividenils. 

kffe't of Ira ,ss,fer. 

Payment by pint. 
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Payment of 
,lividenth' in specie. 

Keeping of 
iiccotoits. 

110) All Dividends shall be paid within the periods specified iii Scciunl 
251 ol the Ordinance. 

I I) No I) iv idend payable in espect iii ii share slit1 I bear itet est again 'ii 
the Company. 

112 ) All dividends titic taitned kir one year, alter haui ig been dcc rn ed 
may 1w invested or otherwise niack use ui by ihe I )urecti,rs hr 'lie 
henelit of the Company until claimed, and the ( 'inupan> shall 101 
ticenied to he a trustee ill respect theieoi 

Ill) With the sanet ott of a (ienera I Mcci log, aity l)iv Rico d nay be pa Id 
wholly or in port by lie d sir hut ion ol spec 'lie assets and iii 
particular of paid tip si iares or dehent ores ui any oilier Coin pany or in 
anyone or tnore ol stic Ii ways. W Itere any di fIlet, I ty tin ses In regard to 
sock distribution, the I3ireelors nay sell Ic the saute Oh they th,iiik 
expedient, and in part ieu tar tn ay issue thtet iunal eert i l'teates and Ii 
Ike value Ilir disc rihu thin of such spec' lie assets or any part I beFell I 
and may detenn inc that cash payments strn II he made to utly Meitt he is 
upon the Iboting of the value so tixed, in order to adjust the rtghis of 
all Mctnlwrs, and nay vest any such specific assets iti trustees upon 
trust l'or the Menihers enlitled to the dividend is nay seem expedient 
to the Directors. 

A('( 'DI HI'S  

114) 'hlte I )ireelors shall cnise to he kept proper hooks ut aceotint ts lii 
respect 10:- 

(a) all stuns ut none y received to id cx pe I tied by I he & 'till ipanv ii 
the matters iii respect UI stli lell t lie reee qls and e pel id ii ules tiLe 
place; 

(h) all sales atid purchases ol goods by C 'uuipany 

(e ) tI I assets of the ('tHu pans 

Time for payment 
of dlvideniL 

Dui'i,lend nix to 
bear interest. 

Unclaimed 
tliviilend,. 

Cd) all liabilities tiE tile (Ilnpauiy. and 

tel where the pro' hulls nt seelioit 23u t lCd iii the C Irdnianee ,a'e 
applicable, such particulars rehtti ng to LI ili nil ion of' vi tic na I or 
letbottr or to other utptns or item s oi cost .ts nay be prescribed 

Location. 115) 11w books of account shall be kept at die (1111cc or at such other place 
in Pakislan as cite I )ireetors niay decide and shall he open to 
inspeelion by Ike Directors during business hours, If the I )Ircctors 
decide to keep the hooks of account at a 1ttce other th,tn ihe C )hlice 
they shall comply sv ith ihe dimecimints contained itt tile proviso to 
Secikin 23tft I 

Per/ui!. il(s) the ('oinpany shall preserve in good order the hooks at account iii 
the Company its respect ui any liisanemal sear or such period a I' 

rcqtm i red h> law lislhow mug 'lie ci' use uI I l,tl Sc' tin 

Inspect/un bj I I 7) 11w Directors shall t'roni I me to I itne determ inc whether and in Ii at 
Members. eslent and at what lilacs and places and iii tier sv hat euitdii slis or 

regulations the accounts and hooks of Ihe C 'ontpany or ally uI lltemn 
shall be open to the ittspeetion uI Members not being I )ireetors and 
no Member (nut being ii I )i rector) shall have any r igttt of inspecting 
any aeeottnt or hooks or papers ut tile ('otnpans except as cuinlcrmed 
by lie Ordi lance or authori,cd by the I )Irect, irs or in the (out lou 
in (jencral Meeting. 



.4unua1 accounts 118) (a) I lie Directors shall arrange to place betorc utie Arititial t cot a 
and reports,	 Meeting oF the & oni pLIny eli sum e dale hut later than e iglitce a 

Months a tier the tIle' rporat en ol I lie & 'onipeus) and suhseqttct itt 
utica in every calendar year, a duly audited balance stied atid 
pro lit and loss aceotost, couhirru tag to the reqo I reli clii ii 
Sections 234 237. 238 and 240 aitid prepared by a dole hut 'mare 
luau tiiur Months he lore I lie dale o F sticli mccli ag and having lie 
auditors report ailacited thereto, and a report ut the I )irectairs, 
viia farm i rig to t lie t etltl Ire mel is ol Sect in 136. 

(h) As required by Section 24!, the balance sheet and prolit alid hass 
account shall first he approved by the I )irectors and when so 
approved shall he signed lay the t'htef Iccutive and at least iliac 
1)1 rector, htlt ii on acellu it of' II is eth 'ice Ii, am Pakistan or uflltc 
reason I he signal tire oF the C 'Itie F I xecut iv e cantiot he ohtai tact1, 
lw balance shied and profit and loss account shalt be signed 1 at 
leash two I )i rechors har the I toe being in Pak stan, and in c er 
sitchi ea a stetteinel it s igtied by those iwo I )i rectors sit alt he 

d to I lie balance alieet a, Id pro lit and Itass Icco LIII stat lila I lie 
reason why t lie signal tire al the C 'Ii Ic II. xecul i Vt was I lot oht,tt cd 

(ci h he L) rectors ma) LI ntttorize the & hairin an or the C 'hue F Nec Lit 5 

to sign the resurt ol the I )irectors svhiclt liiay then he sijatcul 
'accordingly, httt lit the absence oFaiiy stich Ititliorlty the report iF 
the Directors shitlt he signed as requIred h) Section 236(3) in lie 
satne in antler as I he balance sheet mid pro lit ;tl Id loss itcctllllti 

copies of annual I I 9) Ia) A copy of t lie balance sheet, pro lit anti loss etcctaLll ii nid lie 
arc- pants anti reports oF ihie Directors and auditors shall he sent not tess tutu 
reports. iwenty one dttys bellire Ihe dale ol'thc Allnua! Generait Mectina it' 

the Menibers and oilier persuaits entitled to recenve notices iii 
ieneral Meetings in the ulanner ill wInch not ices are It) be go cii 

liereonder and a cop' thereat' shall he kept For a period ut at letsi 
twenty -one days he lore i tie meet it ig at 1 te ( ) 111cc I or lttspev I 
by 11w Menihers 

(hi Alter the balance sheet, protit ,iutt toss ,icc,iunt alld the reports tat 
the Directors alitt atidutusrs have becti laId hetarc the Aaiaaua,at 
&ic,teral Meeting oh Ihe &'oillp.tuly, such uinniber ol coptes thic,e,ui 
along w lilt prescribed docuunettt s, signed by t lie stgltatu aries 
thereto shall be lied w itht the Registrar oF C 'olD pa's es It ti itt 
thirty detys From the date til' the meeting and Use ('onipatty slt,tll 
also comply wiih the provisions oh Section 242(2) sv Iteic 
applicable. 

('enupliance wIth 120) 11w Directors shall in all respects coniply wull the provisions oF 
the Ordinance,	 Sect otis 230 iti 247 o I I lie C) rdunanee, or an statuti an nod i lea t oat 

here,, I For t lie ii ole being in flarv'. 

('A l'tl'% I .l'/,All( ) N (II- PIL( it'll's 

Power to capitalize. I 2 I I lie C 'ohlipully iii & ieiaer,tl Meet llg lila) tqs in lie Itixiti I ,tieutlnti,a,i til lie 
I )lredtt its re,hve Ihat it is tsunthlc to capitalize aui ttrt oF the atliotll lIlt ur 
the I line being standing to the credit tit' any of lie C Olit1)dli)s re-ct Sc 

Ixowats or to the credit oFthc prohit and loss aceoullt tir otherwise avaIlable 
For distribui ion, and accordingly thai -itch still I he set i'rn lot disinbut tan 
amongst the Melnbers svlwi wi nuld he cut it led thereto iF dis trihttted h) vva 
oIl )ividend aid in the stilt Ic prtqan tills tin condition that the smte hi.- it 
paid in cash hal he applied eiitser itt or hiss an,ls pa) ilig tip ajis ,alliouists tar 
the tIme being unNtid on auly shares held hy such Meitibets respectively ar 
fXI) ilig tip in litll unissued shiatres or debel mIres tiF the & 1 It I silly It i le 
allotted and distributed as holly paid iths to and alibi tgst at cli Mctiihcis ti 
the pnapuirtion aloresa,d, or lmnhy m the °ne vsta aid paulb in the oilier. a ath 
the I )t reciots slid I give elk-ct to such rcMilutiiill. 
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Lifec: of resolution 122) Whenever such a resolution is, aloresaid shall have been passed lie 
to capitalize. Directors shall make all appropriations and upptteations ol tite 

undivided protits resolved to be capiialtecd thereby, and all 
allotments and issues itt 11,1 I y paid shares or debeiti ii res. if au> .1' itt 
generally shall do all awls and things required 10 give died tlteicto, 
with liii I power to I he I) i rectors lo make stucti provision by I lie i ssi,e 
of tractional certilicates or by paytneiti in cash or otherwise as iticy 
think lit 4w the case ol shares or debenu tires hecoin i ng distributable 
Ibtet ions and also 0 at ii ho rite ati y person to enter on heha Il'of a I the 
Members cut ii led thereto into an agreefli cut v I ttt the tutu tpaiiv 
providing for the al lot 'lent to I Ite ni respectively c i-ed 'lcd ,ts hilly 
paid ap. ot' any lnrther shares or debentures to v htclt they itia he 
tnt i tied upon such cap it11tt tat iou, or (as I lie case it, is) requ ltd lou I Ite 
paying tip by the toni flinty on il tel r be hal 1 by I lie app I cation he ret' 
ul their respect i Sc proport otis ut the pi oil ts rest ,tved to he 
capitalized, ot' the amounts or lily part of tIle ain,unitts reltiaiuuing 
unpaid on t he ir existing shares, and any agreen ient nude tinder sue Ii 
atit hon ty shall be etl'eci iv e iii td hutiding on alt site Ii Mci tubers 

tI 1)11 

Auililurs 123) Audilors shall he appointed aitd heir tititics regulated in accordance 
with Sections 252 to 255 of the Ordinance, or any stattiltry 
niodi Ucat ions thereo II ür i lie t iilte being its loree - 

NOt'l('ttS  

Notice to Member. 124) (a) A notice tiny be gi-en by the t'onipany to any Member either 
personally or by scndutg it by post to hint to Ins registered addiess 
or by eotinier or (II' Ite has to registered address in I 'ak istan) to II 
address, if amy, wills in Pakistan so ppl ied by hi in UI the ('otti fullS 
li,r the giv'ntg nI notices to thetn. 

ib) Where a noilce is sent h post, ser ice ol lie ruitice slull Ic 
deemed io be e lice led by properly addte isitig, pie p.'' Ii Ig .111(1 

posting a letier containing the notice and, unless lie coi,trutt 
proved, to hat e been e t t ecled at the ti I xc ai icli cit the lettei 0 .0 Id 
be delivered itt the ordinary course (Ii post - 

Notices by 125) It a Member has no registered address tn Pakistan and has xiii 
advertisement	 supplied to the Contputta an address wiihin l'akistan liii ilie giving ol 

nd ices to ttim, a utol ice addressed to hun ox to Mciii hers gene raIl> 
and advertised In a new spttper ci rculai xi ig iii the pros i Itce 111w lticl te 
Office is situated skill he dee itted to be duty g I sea to hi itt mi the. Ii 
on which the ad'crtiscntcnt appears In all stiel, eases, the ( Olnl5lIt 
shall also eonsrtiv w tb lie reqtnrctticnts of lIe pr iso Ii Sctii,it 
50 I of the (Ird i naitec w I etc .pphcah Ic. 

Notice so joins 1261 A notice lilt> be giveit b- ihe ( 'onipatn to bc jttirtt li.,l,k'rs oft shituc 
tighten, by It lut the Iltilice iii lie loiiit holler ,,auncd liii ni ilic Rciitct II 

respect of the share. 

Notice to legal 127) A notice may be given by the C 'onipany to the tru is eitlitied to 
representatives,	 share in consequence at' Itt death or insolvency of a Member by 

sending it through the post in ii prepaid letter addressed to thetis h> 
'untie, or by the cii Ic of represent-it i yes of the deceased, or assignee 
the insolvent or by any like descrtptioit. at 11w address (if ii,> I in 
Pak istaji supplied litr the porpose by the peouis dunning it) he Mi 

entitled, or (until such aix address ha -  been so supplied) by giving he 
notice in any tnan,ter in wh id, t he sante nt ight have been g is-cit II I tic 
death or insolvency had not occurred. 
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Notice to foreign 128) Noiw it hsI anding anything here I nahi iv e to tim civil rary - in add ititiii lo 
shareholder, any oilier notice ii or tie shall he eolitkd to receive, a Meniher, which 

is a lore gil corporal ion coin pany' or hid k idual shall he g ii en iii 111cc. 

it' app1 i cable. by I hcs 'liii Ic I raiisni iss ion, electronic lila II add rcssc'l Iii 

such Mciii her at I he 1,c,i ni Ic ntini her r ir eleciro, ye in .ti I add rem., 
stip1ilied by it or turn to the Company 

Notices of General 129) Notice of evet-> (ieneral Meeting shall he gr en iii sonic flannel 
Meethigs. hereitihellire aultioriied lo (a) every Member eccpt itiiise Mciii xis 

who (having no registered addrcss will in l'ak isiatfl have not sttppi cd 
to 11w t'onipeniy an address within Pakisijir fir he gi% hg iii liolteem 
to iheni, (hi every Member ol the t iliilpaiiiy ticing a l'ilicigtl 
corporation or corhipan> nhicti has stipphied to the ('onipair' a 
lhesi in ile number or c led rome I liii I address fir t lie Sc iidi hg oh liii!' yes 
to ii, (ci every persiii I ci iti I led mu a s hare lit etiiiscqtrcncc uI I he ile ,tls 
or iisol veney vi a M eniber, wl to bin or his deal Ii or i ilsol ci IC'. 

would he entitled to receive, nolice oF the niecting. and id I the 
auditors oil tic Company 

Binding value of 130) Every person who, by operatIon ut law, irat,slr or other incurs 
prior notices. vvhath soc ver shall bceo 'lie clii it led to any shares shil1 he hound by 

every not ice in respect oF s tich stiares, w Ii ich pin ions ly to Ins n ,ilile 
and address being entered on tile l(egisler sharI I have been duly gi' en 

to the person from w how lie derived his tI Ic to such sh arcs - 

WIN 1)1 NC -I 'I' 

Distribu lion of 131) Ii the ( 'otn pany stial I he 'votnid tip, the I api i data r in a)-, wit Ii lie 
assets in specie, sanction oh a Special Resolution oh' the Company and .umy other 

saud jail required by the I )rd ii munec, divide ainoiigst lie NI ciii bei iii 
specie or k i id the wl,,, Ic or am iy part of itw assets o I the ( ow 
(whether they shall cons i sli ii property o I I he sailie kind or liii I  aid 
niny, flu such purpose, set such aiue its tic deems lair npon .imi 
pri upeily to he div dcii as oh iresaid and nay deterni rite hit liii cli 

div shut shalt he carried out is between the M embers r ir di II ely-ill 
classes oi Menihers. I he liquidator viny, iutm the hike mmdiii,, semi 
ttie whole or any part oF sneli assets in trustees npsii I ,tmcti trim si s I' 
the henehit oh' die Mertibers ir any iii them is the hiqtndator ssiih, lie 
like sattetioii shall think lit. htit so that no Meniber shall lie conpelled 
lo accept any shares or (It her secu ri ties whereon i lie re Is an) lab thil 

Inspection of the 132) Save as otlierw se prov ided in the I )rdinartcc. ito Member or oilier 

premises of the (not being a three toO shall be cliii tIed to i sit and Unshed I .11 I'. at 

Company. Ihe timinpanys prennscs or properties oF ttie ( 'ohilpany s ilboirl ilie 
permission oF Direciors of lie Company Fur he lime being or .rii' 
person authorized in this behal I' by the I) ihectars a r to require discos eiy 
oh' or any intiunsamion respecting aims> detail iii the I 'oiiitiany'm liading at 
any matter wtneh is or ni a Er i's I lie I atore of a trade st'cre t. niy mlvi iii 
trade or seerel pricems or iii mv nailer wliumsoescr sslncli nan elite lam 

rIte oviduct ot the htisriscs iii lie I oinpmn ,rnd sslricli ii ilic o1iiiti'ro am 

the I ) rectors will be flex tiedieiu iii I lie nile rest iii I lie NI citric Is ol I lie 
'.ini pan> to coin niunicaite to lie ptihl Ic 

iNt)t:s1NI'l'  

Inrlenuslty of h33 Every Director or otlieer oF die (oritinily and every cr5011 eniploy cal by 

Directors, Officers the t'oiirpany as A tid i lair sinaI t tic mdciii in lied (rail of I he lii ntIs oi the 

and Auditors. ('out patty against all hmahi lily incurred by tti in as sucts I hireetor, oi Ike I or 

Auditor in deknd i rig any proceedings, w hrettier civil or cr1 ni ma I it 
'.vlirehi jtidgment is given in his ta'. our, or in '.shicli lie is acqinited. 'ii in 
eoiineci ion with any aippl i muon 'rider Sect in,, -188 in which rel it- I is 

gratiled IL) trim by I he to on, 
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DlSPPrK KESOt.11lION 

Sealenieat of 134) In the event of a dispute, claim Or controversy artscs between he 
dispute through Company, its inauiageiuetit or its shareholders, or hcLween shareliuldeis 
mediation inter-sc, or the direelors intere-se, all sleps shall he taken to settle the 

dispute and resolve the issue through mediation by an accredited 
mediator bel'ore taking recourse to Ilirmal dispute resolutioti such is 
arbitration or hI igution. 

Di/Jereuces to be 135) Whenever wty dilThrence arises between the Company 012 the 01w hand 
referred to and any of the Members, their executors, adnnnisirator, or assigns on 
4,hitratlonft) the other hand, totieltits the true intent or construction, or the ineidetu 

or consequence of these Articles or of the statutes, or touclung 
anytlung Ihiere or thereafter done, executed, omitted or sulkred in 
purstianee of these Articles or of the statutes or toitchitig any breach or 
alleged breach of these Articles, or any claim on accoti lit 0 I any such 
breach, or alleged breach, or otherwise relating to the pretniscs. or to 
these Articles or to any stutute aflëeung ttte Cotnpuny or to any ot the 
afl'airs of the Company, every such difference shall, as a condition 
precedent to any other action at law he referred in conlbnuity with the 
Arbitration Act, 1940, or any statutory modificatiott thereof and any 
rules made there under, to the decision of an arbitrisur to be appointed 
by the patties in dil'ference or it' they cannot agree upon a siitglc 
arbitrator, to the decision of two arbitrators of whom one shalt be 
appointed by each of the in dt lThrence, or itt the event of the ts 
arbitrations not agreeing, then of an ttmpire to be appointed by the 
arbitrators, in writing. hellire proceeding on the reference, atid Ii 
decision shall he tinal and binding on the parties. 
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I hli,w,. 
ibtsh,, Al' 

Kh.a 

10.5111. 5.iah 
t'sk Av,ui.n. 

iiianli UIIA. Fish,,., Al, Kb.. 41ioi-a1bl3au 

huM... 
Owualvy 

M,thaaua.4 
sat' 

iS!U2.2,I23-i M.qw'ad Airnwd 

Saw I.— Saqu.b ilunam Yia..rll 
51,n.i. i2'AN-O3w*75 

We, ihe several persons, whose names and addrcssc arc subscribed, are desirous or being Ilrnicd 
into a Compiiu'y in pursuance ol'Ihis Articles of Assoelalion, and we respeeucly agree 10 take the 
number or shares in the capilal of' the Company indicated herein below againsL our respective 

names: 

1.14 saab.. .i,bstn ala 

l)alc the h3I  day or May 2016 

%iIncnea to above stg 

  

  

Nai,00.l tnsiiiuuonal Iacllulistl,,a, 1 ccl.00Io,e I'vij I mac J 
iEloor. AWl t'laa, 
II Chondripu Itoad, 
Kapohi 
Pakotan 
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The Companies Ordinance, 1984 

COMPANY LIMITED BY ShARES 

Memorandum of Association 

of 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITEI) 

I. [lie name of the Company is ATI.AS ENERGY I.IMlTH). 

II. iite Registered 0111cc of the ('ompany "ill he situated in the Province of Punjab. 

Ill. lite objects for which the Company is established are to do a11 or any of the tblltrn ing: 

I. To design, insure, build, establish, own, operate, niatutain, manage electric poser generating 

plants br the generation, supply & transmission of electric power and in relation herein, lii 
— establish, lix, carry out and maintain without limitation, any ancillary works, cables, ires, 

meter, lines, overhead lines, sub stations, switching stations, interconnect liscilities, gtid 

stations, transmission licilities, civil, electrical and mechanical works, subject to itppriRul iii 

concern authority (National Electric Power Regulator) Authority). 

2. To carry on the business of power generation and in relation thereto, to generate, accumulate. 

transmit, distribute and sell electric power to the public sector, including the Water and l'oo,cr 
Development Authority, National iransniissiomi and l)esputch ('omnpamiy, (ioverninent and 

Government bodies, and the private sector, subject to approval of concern authority tNamtional 
lileetric Power Regulatory Authority). 

3. l'e manufacture, purchase, import or otherwise acquire, construct, own, process, operate and 

maintain buildings, workshops, warehouses and other storage focilities, apparatus, tislures. 

fittings, plants, machinery, materials, and things as may be necessary, incidental to or 
cony enkn t in connection with power genei'ati rig plant for the generat ii in of electric I  mmcl ,nid 
or in cortncc ti on with supply, transni ission and di str i ho tutu of electi ic pow er. 

4. In buy, sell, manul'acture, repair, alter, improve, exchange or let (jut, inpori, expori and tic,,l in 

all works, plant, machinery, engines, tanks, cylinders, valves, regulators, testing equipment, 

tools, utensils, appliances, cookers, stoves, heaters, apparatus, products, materials, substances, 

raw materials, chemicals, natural gas (whether in vaporied fonn or liquetied), liquelied 

petroleum gas, I'uel oil, coal, lubricants, articles and things and to manutücture, experiment 

with, render murketabk and deal in all products. incidental to or obtained in the business carried 

on by the Company. 

5. In purchase, take on lease or tenancy or in exchange, hire, take options over or other se 

acquire 11w any estate or interest whatsoever and to hold, develop, work, cultivate, deal with and 

turn to account concessions, grants, decrees, licenses, privileges, claims, options, leases, 

property, real or personal or rights or pov ers ol an kind wInch nay appear mu he ncces',o' 

convenient br the business ol the (onipaily sot not to act as a Icusuuig Cullilpan) or ptL'pert) 
developer. 

6. lu sell, exchange, mortgage, let on royalty or tribute, grant licenses, casements, options and 

other rights over and in any manner deal with or dispose of tite Company's property or ally part 

thereof l'or such consideration as may be thought lit arid in particular l'or stocks, shares or 

securities oF any company hut in any event not to act as an investment comnpamiy or leasing 
company. 



7. lo establish laboratories and to employ and promote scienli lie research and iti ention. putrolitic 
such invention and enter into munutisciure in collaboration with outside panics lot transtci ol 
technology from abroad and to promote transler of technology hum Pakistan abroad, and to 
carry on business in all other allied lields pemiissible by law. 

8. to invest and deal with any surplus moneys of the Company not uninediately 11w the lime being 
required fur any of the purposes of the Company in such investments as may he thought proper 
and to hold, sell or otherwise deal with such investments hut in any event not to act as an 
investment company. 

9, For the purposes of the business of the Company only, to advance ntoiiey upon such leans as 
the Company may approve, and to guarantee the obligations and contracts of custontcis and 
others but not to act as a banking company. 

10. lu apply thr, purchase or otherwise acquil'e and protect, prolong and rcilcw whether in t'akistan 
or elsewhere any patents, patent rights, brevets d'invention, trade marks, design licenses, 
protections, concessions and the like conlèrring any exclusive or non-exclusis e or limited righL 
to tise any secret or other inlormation as to any invention, process or privilege which ma> 'ccitt 
capable oh' being used fur any of the purposes of the Company or the acquisition ol whkh nay 
seem calculated directly or indireetty to henelit the ('onipny and to use, exercise, de'elop, 
nt'anuhäcture tinder grant, licenses, privileges in respect o1 or other ise turn to account tIme 
property, rights and inlönnation SI) acquired and to cart') on any business in any way conncc Lcd 
therewith, 

II. To get insured against losses, damages, risks, accidents and liabilities of all kinds which nay 
aflct the company whether in respect ut its contracts. agreements, advances u' securities or in 
respect of servants or employees or directors of the coinpumly, or in respect of property 
belonging to or leased to or hired by the company. either by setting apart hinds of the cmtinlian) 
or by eflècting such insurance and in later case to pay the premium thereon, 

12, 'lu train personnel and workers, in Pakistan andlor abroad, to obtain technical prl'hicicmtcy in 
various specialties connected with the business of the Company. 

13. I o ii ad ertak c and cx cc tile ally proiect the u ad enS i tg wl tercol may sect'' d c I raN c'. a, kl t'mtt ci 
gral UI mm w sly or otherwise. 

14. lo procure the Company to he registered or recogtii cd in any litreign country or Iltace 

15. lo aeq u ire and undertake all or any part of the bus i ness, property, gm ittds' ill and I iah i lit cs I I all 
person or company cartying on any business which the Company is auihori,ed to catTy mn 
posseed of property suitable for the ptlrposes of the Company. 

lb. to adopt such means of making known the business andior services of the Company as nay 
seem expedient and in particular by advertising in the press, or in the tither media or by "a> oh' 
participation iii exlnbitions. 

7. For the purposes of the Company, to purchase, manage, acquire by lease, mortgage, dispose oh, 
sell. exchange. ttirn to account any part of ilie propelly and rights mit the (onihiamly. 

IX. I o employ or appoint any persons, experts, consultants ,advisers, contractors including t )&KI 
contractors), brokers in connection with the l,usiness of the Company. 

19. lo pay l'or any property or rights acquired by the Company, either in cash or fully paid shaics or 
by the issue of securities, or partly in one node and pal-thy in another and generally on such 
teums us may be determined. 
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20. ( )n ly in connect ion with the business of the C urn pany to open and i iperate any current. 
overdraft, loan, used or savings hank accouults Iir the Company. and diets', rake, accept. 
discount, endorse, execute and issue promissory notes, hilts ot exchange, bills of lading and 
other negotiable or transkrahte instruments or securities and to advance money in the 
('ompany's executives, officers and emptoyeesiagcnts'customcrs and others having dealings 
with the company hut in any event noL to act as an UB estnient. banking or tinance contpans 

2 I In connection with the business ot the ('oinpan\ only to give guarantees and indemnities tar 
the payment of money or the performance of contracts or ohligations by tins (oinpatty but in 
any event not to act as an investment, hanking or finance company. 

22. In borrow and where required, to secure the payment ot none) iii such manner as the (i'tilpany 
shall think lit and in particular hy ttte creation ol mortgages and charges ocr the (present and 
future) property, assets and/or undertaking of the Company and/or by issue ot debentures. 
participatiolt term certificates, term finance certificates and other securities charged upon all or 
any of the ('ompany's property both present and tiiture, and to purchase, redeem and pay III! 
ally such securities. 

23. l'o take, or otherwise acquire, and hold shares in any other company having objects altogether 
or in part similar tti those ot this Company or canying on any business capahle ol being 
conducted so a' directly or indirectly to benefit this Company hut In ally event aol to act ,as an 
investment company. 

24. l'o enter into rsartnersh i p or into any agreenlen t or agreei tiemi ts flu sti a' I tig proli I , on in of 
interests, cooperation, joint venture, reciprocal concession and/or facilities with any isem  son or 
company whether or not having thjects similar to those ol this Company hut in any eveom not to 
act as managing agents. 

25. So far as is permissible in law, to establish, maintain attd/or contrihute to aity pettsion, 
superannuation, death benefits, funds or schcmites for the henetit nt and to gite, aard or 
procure the giving or awarding, of' donations, petisirns, gratuities, allowances, annuities. 
enio luments or other hene Ii ts whatsi 'ever to any persoils ho ,IIc Ir las c at any tine been in the 
employment or sen ice i,t the Company or ol ala cilinpamly sshsich Is its holding or 'shivti is a 
suhsi dia> ut ci tiler the Company or ally such liii liii og ci 'iii paiy or o I ,immy ci ill pan) hi Ii is 

ottterw i se allied to or assoc kited wit El the Cool pan>, i w who arc or has c at alt) thu C I ieci I 
l)nectors i'r oftmcers (icr Iteld comparable at' cquisalciit ollices) tit the ('olilpamly ill' ot am or ill 
any such other company, and also to the wmses, widows, tantmlies and dependents uI an' soda 
persoits; to establish, suhsidise or suhscrihe to any institutions, associations, clubs ill kinds 
which may be considered likely to henelit all or any such persons: to make payments for or 
towards the insurance of any such persons; to establish, support and tnaintain an> form of 
protit-sharing, share purchase, share incentive, sttare option or employees' share scheme liii any 
such persons eligible to participate in them or kne lit hum t Item (or U I t F tlstees on tIle r lie hat ft 
for the purposes ot'or in coitnection with the operation and enjoyment tiE any stch sclienic. 

26. I o enter into atty agreement or agreements Wit II any go ernilleil t u ir ol her jut hon ty . Ui CIII C. 

municipal, local or otherwise, that may seeni conducive to a11 (Jr any of the objects ol the 
Company and/or to obtain li'ona such gosertluilent or atitltority illcludillg the Sl,tie link of 
t'ak is lan ill N atuonal I tectric Power Itegu I atory A ti ttai inits NI . I '1(A) any nights. ci lticcss his I 
privileges, licenses which the Company may tlumlk desirable to obtaimi and to can'y out, c'crcisc 
and comply with any sucit arrangetnents, rights, privileges, concessions and licenses. 

27. ho pay all or any costs charges and expenses preliminary and ittcidental to the prulnl000n, 
tormation. establishment and registration of the ('otnpany and to pay any development osts 
incurred I whetiter betore or alter the incorporation of the ('ouilpany ) by the spimlsors 'ii the 
Company in connection with any project of the ('onapany. 



2K. 10 pay brokerage or coni in i ssiiti to any persi in or persons in coils idera t I0fl ot lit ste ii 

suhscrihin, or agreeing to subscribe, ihciher absolutely or conditionally. br any shares or 
debentures of the Company, or 11w procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions hether 
absolute Or ccind i tional br I he same which broke rage or coin ni issii in in a> be paid cit her in cash 
Or shares of the Company, credited as bully paid up. 

29. Iii ni algain ate, consob iute, or in erge, cit her in whole or in PL  nit Ii I Ii 11(0 an) i [tier 
companies, associations, lirnis or persons carrying on any trade or business iii a si nilar italure 
to thai which this Company is authori ted to carry tin. 

30. I o resolve, settle disputes by negot i aLit in, ninc ii at ion, in ediui ion, art) itrat ion. Iii iga lion tlicr 
mcauis, ud ic ial in extra judicial, and to enter in corn pri ni ise agreelnen I w iii crediti irs, in em hers 
and any other persons in respect of a dilterence or dispute with them and to exercise tile power 
to sue and he stied and to i lii ii al or oppose iiIi acli fins, steps, proceedings or application si Ii ic h 
nay seem calculated directly or indirectly to bench! or prejudice, as the case nay he, the 
interest of Lhe C 'innpany or of its in embers. 

.11. lo do all or any of (he things herein in any part of the world either as principals, agents, 
con tractors or otherwise and either a Ion e or in c nj unction iv i th I )t hers but in any event iii Iii 

act as managing agents. 

32. iii provide engineering, construction, consultaney and design services and radio and tither 
communication systems and services, and any liseilities, equipment and installations n hcther 
related to such seiiees and systems or otherwise, subject to peniiissiun ,,h'concem atithnirit - 

33. to carry on any other business whether inanub*eturing or otherwise that nay seem in the 
Company capable of heing conveniently carried on in connection with the above objecis or 
cale UI ated direct I y or indirectly to enhance I he 'al tic ii f or ic itde, puilitab he any ii t he 
('ompany'r property or rights or which it may be advisable to undertake wills a vles to 
improving, developing, rendering or turning to account aity property ial or personal belonging 
to the ('onipany or in which the Company may be interesied and to do all or any of tile lllt)i c 
th i ns cii tier as principals, agents, cont rack irs or it liens ise, and cit her alone tir in ci nj intel It lit 
'vi th others and either by or through agents, sub-c' nitractors, trustees or I itliei w i se .aIll to di all 
slit1) t Ii ings as are lie dental or eondtic iv e lit [lie atti In ill COt it I tic' jib, is C tb eels hut ti an) e' en t 
not to act as nianaging agents. 

14. I ii dii all and everyt hi ng necessary, suitable or proper ii r inc dental or conducive ii t he 
acci i nip Ii shin ciii of any oF the purposes or the it iai intent of any of [lie oh I eels or t lie I lint hera nec 
of any of the powers hierei n bellire set liirth, cit her alt ire or in association with other ci it-pt nate 
hod ies, Ii rins or individuals or with any Ci ov crnin ent au tlit d ty or public or q oasi 'Ii tiN i 
aut hon ty or aity other authority, and to do ever> other ad or thing incidental tir appert inc itt to or 
arising out ol' or connected with the business or ptiwers of the ('oinpany or part tltci eo1 
provided the same be lawful. 

35. II Is llltkLlJY tJNl)LI(IAKEN Ihat the Company shall not engage in the banking business or 
ltirex. illegal brokerage, business ol a hinance, investment, leasnig or itisuraitce company. or 
non-banking finance eontpuny or as a modantl,a management company. or the business of laitd 
devclopnient or a managing agency or any tinlass flit littsiness and that nothing in the 'l'tctts 
clause shall he ci institted to entitle it 10 eng.iec ni such bus i less dii cctly ir nd i lee t I II tc 
'tim pan> shall not launch multi - level in arket i ng ( MI . Ml, l'y anti d or Pon, i schemes. 

36. Notwithstanding any thing stated in any object clatise, the company shall obtain such totier 
approval or license from the competent authority, as may he required under any law flu the tinte 
being in three, to undertake a particulars business. 

IV. Ihe liability of the Members is limited. 
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V. The authorized capital of the Company is Ks. 10,000,000 (Rupees ten million) divided into 
1,000,000 (One million) shares of Rs. 10 (l'ak Rupees len) each, with power ol the Company, 
specifically, to increase the authorized share capital to include a further issue including of 
preference shares and genemlly, to increase or reduce the capital and to divide the shares in the 
capital 11w the time being into several classes in accordance with the provisions of the 
('ompanies Ordinance, 1984 and any rules made there under, and to attach thereto respectively 
such preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions as nay he 
determined by or in accordance with the Articles of Association at the Company lbr the time 
being, and to vary, macluSt  or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner 
as may Ihr the time being be provided by the Articles of Association of the Company in 
accordance with law. 
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lul.I Niimbn' ut .b.rn inko 

Daic the I3thday olMay 2016 

Witnesses to the above signature 

National Institutional Facilitation technologies (Private) I muted 
jib loor, A W F tiil/u. 
LI. ('humirigar Road. 
Karachi 
Pakistan 

3 
(1hrt.I 

We. the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous oF being 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 



PAKISTAN 

SHIWEIMG HAMEED CHAUDHRI & Co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerqv Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Principal Office: 
HM House 
7-Bank Square, Laliore. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if 1  individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

Catalyst for success 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
• for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

ci) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

Other Matter 

The financial statements for the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who expressed unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements on September 29, 2022. 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is 
Osman Hameed Chaudhri. 

S'%zVJw.I..4w%Ma CtAaA&dk*4 
LAHORE; August 23, 2023 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO., 
UDIN: AR2O231O1O4NXURzGVW3 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
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Rupees  

474,517,025 729,049,333 

17,664,483 
9,780,216 

18,560,474 
48,324,951 
70,076,729 

2,782,986 

167,189,839 118,116,878 

6,708,522 
25,183,604 

2,454,560 
63,658,645 

4,844,867 
15,266,680 

241,784,000 
28,000,000 

269,784,000 

2,895,391 
38,517,000 

48,130,165 
14,748,349 

104,290,905 

414,588,000 
28,000,000 

442,588,000 

6638,700 
20,304,000 
69,414,802 

110,006,649 
11,930,750 
11,819,841 

230,114,742 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Note 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 4 

Current assets 
Trade debts 5 
Inventory 6 
Loans and advances 7 
Other receivables 8 
Short term investments 9 
Cash and bank balances 

Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000000 (2022: 50,000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
7400,003 (2022: 7400,003) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 
Unappropriated profits 

641,706,864 

500,000,000 

74,000,030 
193,631,929 
267,631,959  

847,166,211 

500 .000,000 

74,000,030 
100,463,439 
174,463,469 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Contract liability 
Project payable 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

10 
11 

10 
12 

13 

672,702,742 Total liabilities 374,074,905 
Contingencies and commitments 14 

Total equity and liabilities 641,706,864 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

847,166,211 

Chairmant - 9n'ectör ChiJExecutive Officer Chief Financial Officer 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Note 2023 2022 
Rupees  

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 15 354,840,501 201039,748 
Cost of sales 16 (192,391,958) (115361,365) 

Gross profit 162,448,543 85,678,383 
Administrative expenses 17 (5,764,662) (2291,030) 
Finance cost 18 (41,868,176) (7,437,175) 
Other income 19 8,785,246 4,124,077 

Other expenses (14,165,828) 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074255 
Taxation 21 (16,266,633) (12684,438) 

Profit after taxation 93,168,490 67,389,817 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive Income 93,168,490 67,389,817 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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119,500,000 

(274,091,000) 

(45,575,943) 

252,196,000 

(2,750,990) 

28,000,000 

 

(200,166,943) 277.445,010 

(12,483,694) 11,877,085 

15,266,680 3,389,595 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

Chairman ! Direà 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Note Rupees  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash (used in)I generated from operations 22 (24,531,019) 229,845161 

Taxes paid (13,338125) (873,005) 

Net cash (used in)! generated from operating activities (37,869,144) 228,972,156 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Fixed capital expenditure (31,015,234) (494540,081) 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 256,567,627 

Net cash generated from I (used In) investing activities 225,552,393 (494,540,081) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Finance cost paid 

Security deposit 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities 

Net (decrease)! increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Share 
capital 

Unappropriated 
profit Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2021 74,000,030 33073,622 107,073,652 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 67,389,817 67,389,817 

Other Comprehensive income 
67,369,817 67,389817 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,489 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Total comprehensive Income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 93,168,490 93,168,490 

Other ComprehensIve Income 
93,168,490 93,168,490 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 74,000,030 193,631,929 267,631,959 

The annexed notes form an integral part of tçese tinancial statements. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 
Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as 'the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). 
The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers. 
Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2022:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills I plant of the Company 
are as under 
Lahore Purpose 
64/XX, Khayaban -e- IqbaI, DHA Phase III. Registered office 
Karachi 
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 

Main Clifton. Branch office 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of lAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.4.1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

a) lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Under lAS 37, a contract is 'onerous' when the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual 
obligations — i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the contract and the costs of terminating it — 
outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' 
comprise both the incremental costs — e.g. direct labor and materials; and an allocation of other 
direct costs — e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 
equipment used in fulfilling the contract. 



A TLAS ENERGY LIMITED (2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS 

b) lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendment to lAS 16 (regarding proceeds before an asset's intended use) prohibit a company 
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 
items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a 
Company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The amendments 
apply retrospectively, but only to items of PRE made available for use on or after the beginning of 
the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the Company first applies the 
amendments. 

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect 
on the financial statement of the Company. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
not vet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2024 

The amendments clarify how to classify a debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The 
IASB issued amendments to lAS ito specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current 
or non-current. The amendments clarify the following: 

what is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; 
and 

only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

b) lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

c) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2023 

Amendments to lAS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, 
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions 
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all 
accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a Company's financial statements. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
significant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore, have not been presented here. 
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2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

(a) Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable, an 
estimate of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net  realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates 
of depreciation is stated in note 4.1. 

Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition white no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residual 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 

Disposal 

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 
Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16, the Company has to recognize right to use assets and a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the lease term. I he lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the Company 
may use the incremental rate of borrowing. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for ease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / mark-up income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest I mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
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3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditional right to amount of 
consideration is established. 

Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15. A loss allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as good and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3.6 Impairment 

(a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset's original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, iii certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the 
outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 



ATLAS ENERGYLIMITED (6) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairment losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset. 

3.7 Financial liabilities 

Initial measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors, accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insigniticant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft, if any. 

3.9 Contract asset 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

3.10 Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 



ATLAS ENERGYLIM! TED (7) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3.11 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement , in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly 
adjusted to reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 

Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

Current 

Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 1 1A (v) of the 
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax 
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 

Deferred 

As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 

The Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
(or those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 

Sale of energy 

Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from electricity is to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer; therefore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity is 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 
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Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to 
the buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transfer of equipment to 
the customer. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is 
to be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises 
by the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer 
represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services 
are performed. 

3.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

Operating fixed assets 4.1 455,762,888 729,049,333 

Capital work in progress 4.4 18,754,137 

474,517,025 729,049,333 
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4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Cost 

Plant and 
equipment 

Computers Vehicles Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July01, 2021 259,438,289 119,500 259,557,789 

Additions during the year 494,363,415 176,666 494,540,081 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 - 754,097,870 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Additions during the year 240,000 12,021,097 12,261,097 

Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (264,504726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884,178 536,166 11,433,897 501,864,241 

Depreciation 

Balance as at July 01, 2021 12,871,008 73,027 - 12,944,035 

Charge for the year 12,025,410 79,092 12,104,502 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Balance as at July01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Charge for the year 26,633,168 132,194 2,214,553 28,979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2,194,980 46,091,353 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2022 728,905,286 144,047 729,049333 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446,272,118 251,853 9,238,917 455,762,888 
Depreciation rate (%) 4 33 20 



Gain Sold to: 
Mode of 
disposal 

Sale 
proceeds 

Accurnu- Net 
Particulars of assets cost lated book 

depreciation value 
Rupees 
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4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of Rs.5.34 
million and Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs. 392 million (2022: Rs. Nil). 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL), a related party, for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs. 
5.588 million (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 
4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2023 2022 

apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 

Costof sales 28,847,721 12,025,410 
Administrative expenses 132,194 79,092 

28,979,915 12,104,502 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 
Vehicles 

Suzuki CoItus 587,200 19,573 567,627 567627 Company policy Mr. Tanzil Ur Rahman 
(Employee) 

Plant and equipment 
Solar Modules 263,917,526 7,917,526 256,000,000 256,000,000 Negoliation Atlas Honda Limited (a 

related paily) 

2023 264,504,726 7,937,091 256,567,627 256,567,627 

2022 

4.4 Capital work-in-progress 

Opening balance as at 1 July 

Addition during the year 

Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

4.4.1 18,754,137 494,363,415 

(494,363,415) 

18,754,137 

4.4.1 Preceding years additions to capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs for phase 03 
project determined using an average capitalization rate of 14.08% amounting to Rs. 4.873 
million. 

5. TRADE DEBTS — unsecured 
5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 

aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.17.664 million(2022: Rs.6.709 
million). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 
2023 2022 

- - - Rupees - - - 
0-3 months 17.664,483 6,708,522 
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2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

9,268,098 9413,455 
6.1 512118 15,770,149 

9,780,216 25,183,604 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 

6. INVENTORY 

Equipment inventory 

Work in progress 

6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 9.268 million (2022: 17.800 million). 
LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 

considered good Note 
2023 2022 

---Rupees--- 

Advance tax 17,488,018 2,065,106 
Loans and advances to employees 1,072,456 389,454 

18,560,474 2,454,560 

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 

Sales tax receivable 46,513,764 63,658,645 
Profit receivable 85,887 

Security deposits 1,725,300 

48,324,951 63,658,645 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 

Investment in mutual funds 9.1 45,076,729 3,844,867 

Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 25,000,000 1,000,000 

70,076,729 4,844,867 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 

Related parties: 
2023 2022 2023 2022 
- - - - Units - - - Rupees - -. 

Atlas income funds 9.336 6.809 4,896 3,564 

Atlas Money Market Funds 88,635.656 7,568. 966 45,071,833 3,841,303 

45,076,729 3,844,867 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 year and carrying markup at 18.66% (2021: 6%) per annum. 

3.  

7. 

6. 

9.  

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 

Habib Bank Limited 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

- Long term finance facility - phase I 10.1 52,144,000 59,596,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 93,157,000 102,796,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 135,000,000 272,500,000 

280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 38,517,000 20,304,000 

241,784,000 414,588,000 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SOP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SOP rate plus 1% and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

10.2 The Company, during the preceding year, has arranged long term finance facility amounting 
Rs.272.5 million having a total limit of PKR 400 million including loan from SBP under Green 
Financing Facility of Rs.150 million repayable in 40 equal quarterly instalments. This facility has 
obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital expenditure. This facility is 
secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the margin of 20%. The rate of 
mark-up is 4% for the loan facility of Rs.150 million and KIBOR plus 1% for the loan facility of 
Rs.122.5 million. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along with the payment of 
principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants, breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

12. CONTRACT LIABILITY 

This represent advance consideration received from customer in ordinary course of business. 
The breakup of the same is as follows: 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 69.414.802 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Trade creditors 19,425,665 

Provision for equipment restoration 5,588,904 5,588904 

Income tax deducted at source 43,047 3,598,924 

Accrued liabilities 6,623,313 428,760 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Retention money payable 458,458 458,458 

Others 1,824,950 1,855,704 

48,130,165 11,930,750 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

14.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 
Commitments 

14.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2022:Rs.1,000,000) have been issued to Alternative 
Energy Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through 
a bank. 

12.1 The contract liabilities outstanding as at June 30, 2022 have been recognized as revenue during 
the year. 

13.  

14.  
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15. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 

Note 

TES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Energy Revenue 178,320,838 70.485,641 
Less: Sale tax 26,575,527 10,241,503 

151,745,311 60,244,138 
Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 209,772,705 130,819,806 
Less: Sale tax 21,825,354 635,871 

187,947,351 130,183,935 
Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 17,370,506 12,001,979 
Less: Sale tax 2,222,667 1,390,304 

15,147,839 10,611,675 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

15.1 Timing of revenue recognition 

Good transferred to customer over time 151,745,311 60,244,138 
Good transferred to customer at a point in time 203,095,190 140,795610 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

16.  COST OF SALES 

Cost of solar related equipment 156,206,687 100,230,878 
Depreciation 4.2 28,847,721 12,025,410 
NEPRA generation license fees 226,704 88,516 
Operation and maintenance cost 2,493,125 1,432,466 
Insurance of plant and equipment 4,617,721 1,584,095 

192,391,958 115,361,365 

17.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 829,056 410,750 

Auditor's remuneration 17.1 361,504 330.050 
Depreciation 4.2 132,194 79,092 
Donations 17.2 2,307,741 1,120,041 

Membership and annual subscription fee 1,065,882 258,409 
Others 1,068,285 92,688 

5,764,662 2,291,030 

17.1 Auditors' remuneration 

Annual audit fee - current year 330,050 330,050 

- prior year 31,454 

361,504 330,050 

17.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1,000,000 (2022: Rs.993,196) paid to Atlas Foundation (a related 
party). Mr. Saqib Shirazi (Director) is a trustee of Atlas Foundation. 

18.  FINANCE COST 2023 2022 
- --Rupees --- 

Markup on long term finance 41,832,634 7,407,766 
Bank charges 35,542 29,409 

41,868,176 7,437,175 
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OTHER INCOME 2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Profit on term deposit receipts 7,646,899 3,353,169 
Unrealized gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 770,908 

8,785,246 4,124,077 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 
Workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

14,165,828 

TAXATION 

Current tax on profit for the year 15,815,586 12,684,438 

Adjustment in respect of prior year 451,047 

16,266,633 12,684,438 

CASH GENERATED FROM 
OPERATIONS Note 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 
Depreciation 28,979,915 12,104,502 
Finance cost 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Working capital changes 22.1 (218,944,519) 130,258,638 

(24,531,019) 229,845,161 

Working capital changes 

(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 15,403,388 70,079,556 
- trade debts (10,955,961) (460,797) 
- advances (16,105,914) (2,290,796) 
- short term investment (65,231,862) 9,883,753 
- other receivables 15,333,694 (61,562,029) 

(61,556,655) 15,649,687 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities: 

- trade and other payables 22,033,587 (14,812,500) 
- project payable (110,006,649) 110,006,649 
- contract liability (69,414,802) 19,414,802 

(157,387,864) 114,608,951 

(218,944,519) 130,258638 

19.  

20.  

21.  

21.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14. The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.14,O49JJ32 (2022: Rs.11,958,921) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and 
from engineering and consulting services. The other amount included in the above tax relate to 
minimum tax (2022: minimum tax ) paid over income earned from mutual funds and term deposit 
receipts, 

22.  

22.1 
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial 
performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the Board. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering 
specific areas, such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

23.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at 
June 30, 2023. 

(C) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these 
mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its 
investment in term deposit receipts. 

23.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
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Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, 
management per-forms credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position1  past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks 
with reasonably high credit ratings. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 
Other receivables 48,324,951 63,658,645 
Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 
Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their 
historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. 
Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating  
Name of Bank short term long term agency 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA VIS 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 

23.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit 
facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 

Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than I 

year 

Between Ito 

5 years 

More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 280,301,000 322,311,759 46,038121 208,048,884 68,224,754 

Trade and other payables 48,130,165 48,130,165 48,130,165 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 2,895,391 2,895,391 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 

359,326556 401,337,315 97,063,677 208,048,884 96,224,754 
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2022 

Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Cariying 

amount Total 
Less than 1 

year 

Between ito 5 

years 
More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 414,588,000 434,892000 62,554,000 312,770,000 59568,000 

Trade and other payables 11,930,750 11930750 11,930750 

Accrued mark-up 6,638,700 6,638,700 6,638,700 

Contract liability 69,414,802 69,414,802 69,414,802 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Project payable 110,006,649 110,006,649 110,006,649 

640,578,901 660,882,901 260,544901 312,770,000 87,568,000 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up I 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

23.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (he. an  exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices). 

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases I decreases in activity) 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming I ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
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23.5 Financial instruments by category 

Amortised cost 

Financial assets 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 

Other receivables 48,324,951 63656645 

Short term investments 70.076.729 4,844,667 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

Amortised cost 

Financial liabilities 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Long term financing 241,784,000 414,588,000 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 6,638,700 

Trade and other payables 48,130.165 11,930750 

Project payable - 110,006,649 

320,809,556 571,164,099 

23.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and I or 
issuer new shares. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net  debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 

2023 
- - - Rupees 

2022 
- - - 

Total borrowings 280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

Net debt 277,518,014 419,625,320 

Total equity 267,631,959 174,463,469 

Total capital 545,149,973 594,088,78g 

Gearing ratio 51% 71% 

For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 
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23.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest / 
mark-u D 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July01. 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

Finances obtained 119,500,000 119,500,000 
Finances repaid (274,091,000) (274,091,000) 
Finance cost paid - (45,575,943) (45,515,943) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363,757 

Mark-up / interest expense 41,832,634 41,832,634 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest / 
mark-up 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July 01, 2021 182,696,000 1,981,924 184,677,924 

Finances obtained 272,500,000 272,500,000 

Finances repaid (20,304,000) (20,304,000) 

Finance cost paid - (2,750,990) (2,750,990) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 434,892,000 (769.066) 434,122,934 

Mark-up / interest expense 7,407,766 7,407,766 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

24.1 Name of the related party 

Holding Company 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 

Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 

Atlas Power Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Limited) 

Atlas Honda Limited 

Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Atlas Battery Limited 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 
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24.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Names of Company Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 

2023 2022 

---Rupees--. 

Atlas Power Limited 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited 

Purchase of assets 

Services received 

3,922,536 

426,528 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 151,745,322 71,244,138 
Security deposit received 28,000,000 
Sales of assets 256,000,000 
Purchase of assets 5,344,561 

Atlas Battery Limited Revenue earned 37, 750 , 000 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited Revenue earned 89,327,694 85,145,695 

Atlas Foundation Revenue earned 214,803 4,099,915 
Donation paid 1,800,743 - 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited Revenue earned - 2,800,000 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited Advance received 69,414,802 
Revenue earned 105,907,090 

Atlas Insurance Limited Insurance premium paid 4,617,721 3,244,902 
Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 20,506,726 

25. PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 

Installed capacity 

Standard generation from installed capacity 

Actual net electricity billed  

2023 
KWH 

8,123 

58,975,873 

8,757,176 

8,779,818 

2022 
KWH 

8,123 

28,087,832 

4,349,885 

4,386,466 

26. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 

No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 
2023 2022 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company - - - Rupees - --
is as follows: 

Managerial remuneration 

Performance bonus 

Reimbursements 

Retirement benefits 

15,196,356 

6,500,924 

1,871,924 

909,744 

 

24,478,948 

  

Number of person 2 - 

27. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2). 
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28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 15 AUG 2023 

 

7 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

Chairman! Chief Financial Officer 
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3(4)(c)(ii) * the last annual return of the Company submitted in 
compliance of section 130 of the Companies Act or, in case of an 

applicant to whom section 130 of the Companies Act does not apply, 
a return comprising of all such information and particulars as 

required by the specified form under section 130 of the Companies 
Act, as the case may be; 
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(2 AtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(c)(iii) the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up share 
capital of the applicant 



tJ!'1At1asEncrgy 

 

No of Shares Rs. 

Authorized Share Capital 50,000,000 500,000,000 

    

    

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 7,400,003 74,000,030 

Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DI-IA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 
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3(4)(c)(iv) the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of 
shareholders holding 5% or more shares, number of shares held by 

each of them and percentage shares of the total paid-up capital 



Sc AtlasEnergy 

Pattern of Shareholding 

Name of Shareholder 

Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Ltd 

Maqsood Ahmad 

Farahim All Khan 

Saquib H Shirazi 

No of Shareholding 
Shares Percentage 

7,400,000 99.99996% 

1 0.00001% 

1 0.00001% 

1 0.00001% 

7,400,003 100% 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +92-42-37132634 
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3(4)(d)(i) evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, 
along with bank certificates. 



Re'cji ct ri r servlr P: 
(Jll'(AtlasAsset Management 

Art At las ( ,tüu  ( 'uinpatv Rated A \12 1w I'M RA 

Statement of Account 
For the Period From O1-Aug-2024 to 31-Aug-2024 

Registration Number: 12999 
MIS. Atlas Energy Limiled 
Building No. M,XX Block, 
Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore, Pakistan 

Conlact No: 0423-7132644 

Account Into 
Zakat Status : itotApplicable 
Tax Status Applicable 
Account Typo : NotApplicable 
Tax Filing Stalus Flei 
Print Date 03/09/2024 

AlP Dividend Option: Reinvest 

Atlas Income Fund 

Net LO.d.;. Net Amount Unit Price No of Units Balance Units 
Opening Balance as of 01 -Aug'2024 11.0533 

g Balance as of 31-Aug-2024 11.0533 

To al Value of investment in Plan Atlas Income Fund as of 31-Aug-2024: Rs. 6,029.70 

Atlas Money Market Fund 

Dividend Option: Reinvest 

NAV Date Transection GrossAafloWd-1 CGT' Net Load Net Amount Unit Price No. of Units Balance Units 
Opening Balance as of 01-Aug-2024 101 146.3124 
06'Aug-2024 Redemption 2000.000.00 10.29100 1,989,70300 521.32% 13,836.37401 91.309.9384 
08-Aug2024 Redemption 8,000,000.00 44,535.00 7,955,465.00 522.2177 115,319.28161 81,990 6568 
28-Aug2024 Sale 7.000.00000 . 1,000,00000 525 2973 13,325.1811 95.316 4439 
27-Aug2024 Redemption 4,000,000.00 31,783.00 3,968,217.00 527.3502 17,585.09241 81.731.3515 

Closing Balance as of 31-Aug-2024 87,731.3515 

Total Value of investment in Plan Atlas Money Market Fund S Growth Units as of 31-Aug-2024: Rs. 46,318,898.76 

Dividend Payoffl-For the Period From 01-Aug-2024 to 31-Aug-2024 
Date 'Gross Dividend WIlT Zakal Other Deductions Net Dividend 

Summary of Investment . As of 31 'Aug.2024 

FtmtNwni'. TVpeofUnits Units. Unit Pales Price Date Investment Value 
Atlas Income Fund CLASS 0 11.0533 545 5112 31-Aug-2024 6, 029. 70 
Alas Money Mantel Fund CLASS B 87.731.3515 527 9629 31-Aug.2024 46,318,898.76 

46,324,928.46 

of Unit Holding ' As of 31 'Aug'2024 

W , EWId Nanis , . 
'ASIC ElectVonlc .. . Physical CDS Book EntTy Tc4al - Available .' Block! Pledge AvaIlable 1 Blocicl Pledge 

AtasincomeFund 110533 - . - ' 11.0533 
Alas MoneyManketFund 87,731 3515 - . ' 87.731.3515 

For Atlas Asset Management Limited 

- Pieuse quote your regiseetisn number bi all coitespurdence including request terms. 
Please reieewthe statementcsehrn and report discrepancy in wilerg If anf I  ruffle eIleen (151 days of the date orthisotetemeuL othenleoe it visIt be corostered correct and accepted by one. 
ro ensure uccuo'ane record em efficient service, please nshry any change i's unit holder inlsrmahon including contact delaila ta the management company. 

Panic I 

Head Office 
(around Floor, Federation Hnejw, Sharae Firdousi, Clifton, Kar.'orhi'75600, Pakistan. 
Ph:192-21t 3537950104. Fax:I92-21) 35379280 
hAN: 192.21)11 1-MnJTUALr6-888.25) 
Websito: vAmw.aslanfundt.com.pk, Email: lnfn@aslasfunds.cnm.pk  
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3(4)(d)(ii) details of charges or encumbrances attached to the 
applicant's assets, if any; 

Not Applicable 



(J!At1asEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(ffi) latest audited fmancial statements of the applicant. 
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SHINEING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & Co. 
PAKISTAN CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report To The Members Of 
Atlas Enerqv Limited  

• ._, 
:c::. 
sw 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Atlas Energy Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows together with the notes 
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's 
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information presented along with the financial 
statements and the auditors' report thereon. With respect to the Company the other information 
comprises only the Director's Report on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Principal Office: 
HM House 
7-Bank Square, Laliore. 

www.hccpk.com Tel: +92 42 37235084-87 Other Offices:
catai"st for success 

sw.internationai Email: Ihr@hccpk.com Karachi, islamabad & Muitan .1 
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PA K IS TA N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditors' report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

Catalyst for success 
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PA K IS TA N CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies 
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were 
for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980). 

Other Matter 

The financial statements for the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by 
another firm of chartered accountants who expressed unmodified opinion on those financial 
statements on September 29, 2022. 

The Engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is 
Osman Hanieed Chaudhri. 

S'\AA.4sW's4Wt4MaA Ct.%AA&dki4 L •  

LAHORE; August 23, 2023 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & Co., 
UDIN: AR2O23101O4NX1lRzGVW3 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Catalyst for success 
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ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Plant and equipment 

14 
374,074,905 672,702,742 

641,706,864 847,166,211 

Total liabilities 
Contingencies and commitments 

Total equity and liabilities 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023 

Current assets 
Trade debts 5 
Inventory 6 
Loans and advances 7 
Other receivables 8 
Short term investments 9 
Cash and bank balances 

Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
50,000000 (2022: 50000,000) ordinary 

shares of Rs. 10/- each 

7,400,003 (2022: 7,400,003) ordinary 
shares of Rs. 10/- each 

Unappropriated profits 

2023 2022 
Rupees  

641,706,864 847,166,211 

500,000,000 500,000,000 

74,000,030 74,000,030 
193,631,929 100,463,439 
267,631,959 174,463,469 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term financing 
Security deposit 

Current liabilities 
Accrued mark-up 
Current portion of long term financing 
Contract liability 
Project payable 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for taxation 

10 
11 

12 

13 

10 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

474,517,026 

17,664,483 
9,780,216 

18,560,474 
48,324,951 
70,076,729 

2,782,986 

167,189,839 

729,049,333 

6,708,522 
25,183,604 
2,454,560 

63,656,645 
4,844,867 

15,266,680 

118,116,878 

'-' I 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

241,784,000 
28,000,000 

269,784,000 

2,895,391 
38,517,000 

48,130,165 
14,748,349 

104,290,905 

414,588,000 
28,000,000 

442,588,000 

6,638,700 
20,304,000 
69,414,802 

110,006,649 
11,930,750 
11,819,641 

230,114,742 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Note 2023 2022 
Rupees  

Revenue from contracts with customer - net 15 354,840,501 201,039,748 

Cost of sales 16 (192,391,958) (115,361,365) 

Gross profit 152,448,543 85,676,383 

Administrative expenses 17 (5,764,662) (2,291,030) 

Finance cost 18 (41,868,176) (7,437,175) 

Other income 19 8,785,246 4,124,077 

Other expenses (14,165,828) 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 

Taxation 21 (16,266,633) (12,684,438) 

Profit after taxation 93,168,490 67,389,817 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 93,168,490 67,389,817 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 



(37,869,144) 228,972,156 

(31,015,234) 

256,567,627 

(494,540,081) 

225,552,393 (494,540,081) 

119,500,000 

(274,091,000) 

(45,575,943) 

252,196,000 

(2,750,990) 

28,000,000 

 

(200,166,943) 277,445,010 

(12,483,694) 11,877,085 

15,266,680 3,389,595 

2,782,986 15,266,680 

Chairman! Direôt 

ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Note Rupees  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash (used in)! generated from operations 22 (24,531,019) 229,645161 

Taxes paid (13,338,125) (873,005) 

Net cash (used in) I generated from operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Fixed capital expenditure 

Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets 

Net cash generated from! (used in) investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long term finances - obtained 

- repaid 

Finance cost paid 

Security deposit 
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities 

Net (decrease)! increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Share 
capital 

Unappropriated 
profit 

Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July011  2021 74,000,030 33,073,622 107,073,652 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 67,389,817 67,389,817 

Other Comprehensive income 
67,389817 67,389,817 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Balance as at July01, 2022 74,000,030 100,463,439 174,463,469 

Total comprehensive income for the year: 
Profit after taxation 93,168,490 93,168,490 

Other Comprehensive Income 
93,168,490 93,168,490 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 74,000,030 193,631,929 267,631,959 

The annexed notes form an integral part of tQese financial statements. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 
Atlas Energy Limited hereafter referred as "the Company" was incorporated as an unquoted - 
public limited company in Pakistan on May 18, 2016, under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). 
The purpose of Atlas Energy Limited is to provide cost effective solar solutions for industrial and 
commercial consumers. 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited - holding company held 100% (2022:100%) ordinary shares 
of the Company. 

1.1 Geographical location and address of major business units including mills / plant of the Company 
are as under: 
Lahore Purpose 
641XX, Khayaban -e- Iqbal, DHA Phase Ill. Registered office 
Karachi 

2nd Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Fardousi, 
Main Clifton. Branch office 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
2.1 Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of: 

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Act; and 
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the 
requirements of lAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 
have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest rupees unless otherwise specified. 

2.4 INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMEMDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO 
EXISTING STANDARDS 

2.4,1 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year and 
have been adopted by the Company 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those of the previous financial year, except for change resulted due to adoption of 
amendments to accounting standards. The below mentioned amendments to approved 
accounting standards are effective for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2022 and have 
been adopted by the Company: 

a) lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
Under lAS 37, a contract is 'onerous' when the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual 
obligations — i.e. the lower of the costs of fulfilling the contract and the costs of terminating it — 
outweigh the economic benefits. The amendments clarify that the 'costs of fulfilling a contract' 
comprise both the incremental costs — e.g. direct labor and materials; and an allocation of other 
direct costs — e.g. an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and 
equipment used in fulfilling the contract. 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (2) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

b) lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amendment to lAS 16 (regarding proceeds before an asset's intended use) prohibit a company 
from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling 
items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a 
Company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The amendments 
apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made available for use on or after the beginning of 
the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the Company first applies the 
amendments. 

The adnption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect 
on the financial statement of the Company. 

2.4.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are 
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company 

a) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2024 

The amendments clarify how to classify a debt and other liabilities as current or non-current. The 
IASB issued amendments to lAS ito specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current 
or non-current. The amendments clarify the following: 

what is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

- that classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; 
and 

only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date 
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to 
disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand 
the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve 
months. 

b) lAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors Effective: January 01, 2023 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. The amendments introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that 
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between 
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a Company develops an 
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The amendments 
will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments. 

c) lAS I Presentation of Financial Statements Effective: January 01, 2023 

Amendments to lAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to 
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, 
clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions 
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all 
accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 
material to a Company's financial statements. 

The Company has assessed that the impact of above amendments is not expected to be 
significant. 

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved 
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and 
therefore, have not been presented here. 
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2.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and 
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Judgments, estimates and 
assumptions made by the management that may have a significant risk of material adjustment to 
the financial statements in the subsequent year are as follows; 

(a) Plant and equipment 

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rates of depreciation, useful lives and residual 
values for calculation of depreciation on an on-going basis. Further, where applicable, an 
estimate of recoverable amount of asset is made if indicators of impairment are identified. 

(b) Inventory 

The Company estimates the net realizable value of equipment inventory to assess any diminution 
in the carrying value. Net  realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price 
less estimated expenditure to make sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for 
obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below. These polices have been consistently applied to all the years presented. 

3.1 Plant and equipment 

Owned assets 

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on all items of plant and equipment except for vehicles is charged to statement of 
profit or loss applying the straight line method. Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing 
balance method so as to write off historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life. Rates 
of depreciation is stated in note 4.1. 

Depreciation on addition in plant and equipment is charged from the date of addition while no 
depreciation is charged in the date of disposal. The Company reviews the useful life and residual 
value of plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might 
affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of plant and equipment with a corresponding 
effect on depreciation charge. 

Disposal 

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the statement of financial position 
date less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as an 
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use. 
Impairment 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses 
are recognized in the profit and loss account. 
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liability 

As per IFRS 16, the Company has to recognize right to use assets arid a corresponding lease 
liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of the consideration (lease 
payments) to be made over the lease term. I he lease payments will be discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the tease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the Company 
may use the incremental rate of borrowing. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the 
present value of lease liability and adjusted for lease prepayments/accruals and borrowing costs. 

The right-of-use assets recognized subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are 
depreciated over the lease term using a straight line basis as it closely reflects the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets are reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of lease liability. 

3.3 Financial assets 

Initial measurement 

The Company classifles its financial assets in the following three measurement categories: 

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

measured at amortized cost. 

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Equity Instruments at FVTOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in 
statement of other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Debt Instruments at FVTQCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / mark-up income 
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and 
losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss. 

- Debt Instruments at FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net  gains and losses, including any 
interest I mark-up or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

- Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / mark-up income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. 
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3.4 Trade debts and other receivables and related impairment 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized when an unconditional right to amount of 
consideration is established. 

Trade debts are measured at the transaction price measured under IFRS 15. A loss allowance is 
recognized for trade debts based on lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting date based 
on Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. 

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less expected credit losses as explained in note 3.3. The 
trade debts mainly comprise of a balances with related parties which are considered as good and 
having no impact of expected credit loss. 

3.5 Equipment inventory 

Equipment inventory is valued principally at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable 
value except for the item in transit stated at invoice value plus other charges thereon till the 
reporting date, while item considered obsolete are carried at nil value. 

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale. Provision is made in the financial 
statements for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade based on management estimate. 

3.6 Impairment 

(a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECU') for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset's original effective interest rate. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that 
result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For 
those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, a loss allowance Is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the 
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 60 days past 
due. However, iii certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held 
by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of 
recovering the contractual cash flows. 

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime 
expected credit losses. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the 
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on 
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company reviews internal and external information available 
for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the likelihood to receive the 
outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
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(b) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of provisions for 
impairment losses. If any indications exist, the recoverable amounts of such assets are estimated 
and impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset. 

3.7 Financial liabilities 

Initial measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, creditors, accrued and other liabilities. 

Subsequent Measurement 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance 
costs in the statement of comprehensive income. 

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up 
arrangements, creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other 
liabilities. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to 
insigniticant risk ot changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash 
equivalents comprise bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank overdraft, if any. 

3.9 Contract asset 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

3.10 Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If 
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, 
a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the 
contract. 



A TLAS ENERGY LIMITED (7) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3.11 Borrowings 

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on 
accrual basis and are included in mark up accrued on loans to the extent of amount remaining 
unpaid, if any. 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in 
the period in which these are incurred. 

3.12 Trade and other payables 

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximates 
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Company. 

3.13 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligations can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and accordingly 
adjusted to reflect current best estimates. 

3.14 Taxation 

Income tax on profit and loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. 

Current 

Profit and gains derived by the Company from the power generation project are exempt from the 
tax under Clause (132) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
The Company is also exempt from the minimum tax on the turnover under Clause 1 1A (v) of the 
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

However, provision for current taxation on profits and gains other than from power generation 
project is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tax 
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. 

Deferred 

As the Company's revenue is exempt from tax, therefore no deferred tax has been recognized in 
these financial statements. 

3.15 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue recognition policy 

The Company is in the business of power generation and sale of energy. Revenue from contract 
with customer is recognized when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Specific revenue recognition details are as follows: 
Sale of energy 

Revenue from the sale of energy is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to the 
buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transmission of Net Electrical 
Output (NEO) to customer through solar solution installed at premises of customer, as agreed in 
the Agreements for sale and purchase of electricity. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from electricity is to be recognized at over time because 
the electricity element represents a promise to transfer a series of distinct goods that are 
substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer; therefore the 
electricity represents one performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Further, electricity is 
distinct and the buyer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit provided by the 
Company. 
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Sale of equipment 

Revenue from the sale of equipment is recognized upon the transfer of control of the goods to 
the buyer when performance obligation is satisfied, which refers to the transfer of equipment to 
the customer. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from sale of equipment is to be recognized at a point in 
time when the asset is actually transferred to the customer. The transfer of equipment to the 
customer represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the 
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. 

Provision of engineering and installation services 

Revenue from the provision of engineering and installation services is recognized when the 
equipment is installed at the customer premises and performance obligation is satisfied, which 
refers to the provision of installation services related to equipment sold by the Company. 

Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations 

The Company concluded that revenue from provision of engineering and installation services is 
to be recognized at a point in time when the asset is actually installed at the customer premises 
by the company. The provision of engineering and installation services to the customer 
represents a single performance obligation. Therefore, revenue is recognized when the services 
are performed. 

3.16 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized 
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

4. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

Operating fixed assets 4.1 455,762,888 729,049,333 

Capital work in progress 4.4 18,754,137 

474,517,025 729,049,333 
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4.1 Operating fixed assets 

Cost 

Plant and 
equipment 

Computers Vehicles Total 

Rupees  

Balance as at July 01 2021 259,438,289 119500 259,557,789 

Additions during the year 494,363,415 176,666 494,540,081 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 - 754,097,870 

Balance as at July01, 2022 753,801,704 296,166 754,097,870 

Additions during the year 240,000 12,021,097 12,261,097 

Disposals during the year (263,917,526) (587,200) (264,504,726) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 489,884,178 536,166 11,433,897 501,854,241 

Depreciation 

Balance as at July01, 2021 12,871,008 73,027 12,944,035 

Charge for the year 12,025,410 79,092 12,104,502 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Balance as at July 01, 2022 24,896,418 152,119 25,048,537 

Charge for the year 26,633,168 132,194 2,214,553 28,979,915 

On disposals during the year (7,917,526) (19,573) (7,937,099) 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 43,612,060 284,313 2,194,980 46,091,353 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2022 728,905,286 144,047 729,049,333 

Book value as at 
June 30, 2023 446,272,118 251,853 9,238,917 455,762,888 
Depreciation rate (%) 4 33 20 



Gain Sold to: 
Mode of 
disposal 

Sale 
proceeds 

Accuniu- Net 
Particulars of assets Cost lated book 

depreciation value 

Rupees I 
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4.1.1 The Company has purchased vehicles from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) of Rs.5.34 
million and Atlas Power Limited (a related party) of Rs. 3.92 million ( 2022: Rs. Nil). 

4.1.2 This represents assets installed at Atlas Honda Limited (AHL), a related party, for the purpose of 
generation of solar based energy for the duration of solar energy agreement. 

4.1.3 The cost of plant and equipment includes provision for equipment restoration amounting to Rs. 
5.558 million (2022: Rs. 5.588 million). 

4.1.4 There are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs.119,500 that are still in use as at year end. 

4.2 Depreciation for the year has been 2023 2022 
apportioned as under: - - - Rupees - - - 

Cost of sales 

Administrative expenses 

4.3 Disposal of Operating Fixed Assets  

28,847,721 12,025,410 

132,194 79,092 

28,979,915 12104,502 

Assets having net book value 
exceeding Rs.500,000 each 

Vehicles 

Suzuki Cuitus 587,200 19,573 567627 567627 Company policy Mr. Tanzil Ui Rahrnan 
(Employee) 

Plant and equipment 

Solar Modules 263917,526 7,917,526 256000,000 256,000,000 Negotiation Atlas Honda Limited (a 
related party) 

2023 264,504,726 7,937099 256,567,627 256,561,627 

2022 

4.4 Capital work-in-progress 

Opening balance as at 1 July 

Addition during the year 

Transfer to operating fixed assets 

Closing balance as at 30 June 

2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

4.4.1 18,754,137 494,363,415 

(494,363,415) 

18,754,137 

4.4.1 Preceding years additions to capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs for phase 03 
project determined using an average capitalization rate of 14.08% amounting to Rs. 4.873 
million. 

5. TRADE DEBTS — unsecured 

5.1 This relates to an amount receivable from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party). The maximum 
aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year was Rs.17.664 million(2022: Rs.6.709 
milliob). 

5.2 Aging of balance due but not impaired: 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

0-3 months 17.664.483 6,708,522 
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6. INVENTORY 2023 2022 
Note - - - Rupees - - - 

Equipment inventory 9,268,098 9413455 

Work in progress 6.1 512,118 151770,149 

9,780,216 25,183,604 

  

6.1 This includes stock held by related parties amounting to Rs. 9.268 million (2022: 17.800 million). 

LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured 
considered good Note 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 
- - 

Advance tax 17,488,018 2065,106 

Loans and advances to employees 1,072,456 389,454 

18,560,474 2,454,560 

OTHER RECEIVABLES - considered good 

Sales tax receivable 46,513,764 63,658,645 

Profit receivable 85,887 

Security deposits 1,725,300 

48,324,951 63,658,645 

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT 

Investment in mutual funds 9.1 45,076,729 3,844,867 

Investment in term deposit receipts 9.2 25,000,000 1,000,000 

70,076,729 4,844,867 

9.1 This represents investment in mutual funds managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited (a 
related Party), the breakup of the investment is as follows: 
Related parties: 

2023 2022 2023 2022 
- - - - Units - - - Rupees - - - 

Atlas income funds 9.336 6.809 4,896 3,564 

Atlas Money Market Funds 88,635.656 7,568.966 45,071,833 3,841,303 

45,076,729 3,844,867 

9.1.1 The fair value of these investments has been determined using their respective net assets value, 
published by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on its website at the reporting date. 

9.2 This represents an investment in term deposits with Habib Bank Limited (a commercial bank) 
having maturity of 1 year and carrying markup at 18.66% (2021: 6%) per annum. 

3.  

7.  

8.  

9.  

LONG TERM FINANCING - Secured 

Habib Bank Limited 

Note 
2023 

- - - Rupees 
2022 

- - - 

- Long term finance facility - phase 1 10.1 52,144,000 59,596,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 2 10.1 93,1 57,000 102,796,000 

- Long term finance facility - phase 3 10.2 135,000,000 272,500,000 

280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: current portion grouped under 
current liabilities 38,51 7,000 20,304,000 

241,784,000 414,588,000 
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10.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facility amounting Rs.270 million from Habib Bank 
Limited under SBP Financing Scheme for Renewable Energy. The bank against the said facility 
disbursed Rs.203 million in three tranches of different amounts. The loan is repayable in 40 equal 
quarterly installments. These finances carry mark-up at the SBP rate plus 1% and are secured 
against first charge over all present and future current and non-current assets of the Company 
with the margin of 10% and 20% respectively. 

10.2 The Company, during the preceding year, has arranged long term finance facility amounting 
Rs.272.5 million having a total limit of PKR 400 million including loan from SBP under Green 
Financing Facility of Rs.150 million repayable in 40 equal quarterly instalments. This facility has 
obtained by the Company for the purpose of financing the capital expenditure. This facility is 
secured by current and non-current assets of the Company with the margin of 20%. The rate of 
mark-up is 4% for the loan facility of Rs.150 million and KIBOR plus 1% for the loan facility of 
Rs.122.5 million. The mark-up will be payable on each quarter along with the payment of 
principal. This facility also includes certain financial covenants, breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call these bank facilities. 

11. SECURITY DEPOSIT 

This represent amount received from Atlas Honda Limited (a related party) equivalent to three 
months energy invoices. 

12. CONTRACT LIABILITY 

This represent advance consideration received from customer in ordinary course of business. 
The breakup of the same is as follows: 

2023 2022 
- --Rupees --- 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited - 69,414,802 

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2023 2022 
- --Rupees --- 

Trade creditors 19,425,665 

Provision for equipment restoration 5,588,904 5,588,904 

Income tax deducted at source 43,047 3,598,924 

Accrued liabilities 6,623,313 428,760 

Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

Retention money payable 458,458 458,458 

Others 1,824,950 1,855,704 

48,130,165 11,930,750 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

14.1 Contingencies 
There are no contingencies to be reported as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022. 
Commitments 

14.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs.500,000 (2022:Rs.1,000,000) have been issued to Alternative 
Energy Development Board (AEDB) for upgradation of vendor category of the Company through 
a bank. 

12.1 The contract liabilities outstanding as at June 30, 2022 have been recognized as revenue during 
the year. 

13.  

14.  
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15. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER - net 

Note 

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Energy Revenue 178,320,838 70,485,641 

Less: Sale tax 26,575,527 10,241,503 

151,745,311 60,244,138 

Revenue from sale of solar related equipment 209,772,705 130,819,606 

Less: Sale tax 21,825,354 635,871 

187,947,351 130,163,935 

Revenue from engineering and consultancy services 17,370,506 12,001,979 

Less: Sale tax 2,222,667 1,390,304 

15,147,839 10,611,675 

354,840,501 201,039,748 

15.1 Timing of revenue recognition 

Good transferred to customer over time 151,745,311 60,244,138 

Good transferred to customer at a point in time 203,095,190 140,795,610 

354,840,501 201,039,148 

16.  COST OF SALES 

Cost of solar related equipment 156,206,687 100,230,878 
Depreciation 4.2 28,847,721 12,025,410 

NEPRA generation license fees 226,704 88,516 

Operation and maintenance cost 2,493,125 1,432,466 

Insurance of plant and equipment 4,617,721 1,584,095 

192,391,958 115,361,365 

17.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Legal and professional charges 829,056 410,750 

Auditor's remuneration 17.1 361,504 330,050 

Depreciation 4.2 132,194 79,092 

Donations 17.2 2,307,741 1,120,041 

Membership and annual subscription fee 1,065,882 258,409 

Others 1,068,285 92,688 

5,764,662 2,291,030 

17.1 Auditors' remuneration 

Annual audit fee - current year 330,050 330,050 

- prior year 31,454 

361,504 330,050 

17.2 This includes an amount of Rs.1,000,000 (2022: Rs.993,196) paid to Atlas Foundation (a related 
party). Mr. Saqib Shirazi (Director) is a trustee of Atlas Foundation. 

18.  FINANCE COST 2023 2022 
---Rupees--- 

Markup on long term finance 41,832,634 7,407,766 

Bank charges 35,542 29,409 

41,868,176 7,437,175 
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OTHER INCOME 2023 2022 
- --Rupees --- 

Profit on term deposit receipts 7,646,899 3,353,169 

UnreaUzed gain on mutual funds 1,138,347 770,908 

8,785,246 4,124,077 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 

Workers welfare fund 1,971,617 

14,165,828 

TAXATION 

Current tax on profit for the year 15,815,586 12,684,438 

Adjustment in respect of prior year 451,047 

16,266,633 12,684,438 

CASH GENERATED FROM 
OPERATIONS Note 

2023 2022 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Profit before taxation 109,435,123 80,074,255 
Adjustments for non-cash and other items: 
Depreciation 28,979,915 12,104,502 
Finance cost 41,832,634 7407,766 
Provision for workers profit participation fund 12,194,211 - 
Provision for workers welfare fund 1,971,617 
Working capital changes 22.1 (218,944,519) 130,258,638 

(24,531,019) 229,845,161 

Working capital changes 

(Increase) I decrease in current assets: 

- inventory 15,403,388 70,079,556 
- trade debts (10,955,961) (460,797) 
- advances (16,105,914) (2,290,796) 
- short term investment (65,231,862) 9,883,753 
- other receivables 15,333,694 (61,562,029) 

(61,556,655) 15,649,687 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities: 

- trade and other payables 22,033,587 (14,812,500) 
- project payable (110,006,649) 110,006,649 
- contract liability (69,414,802) 19,414802 

(157,387,864) 114,608,951 

(218,944,519) 130,258,638 

19.  

20.  

21.  

21.1 No deferred tax assets or liability has been recognised as the revenue generated by Company is 
exempt from tax as explained in note 3.14. The above tax amount includes provision for taxation 
of Rs.14,049,032 (2022: Rs.11,958,921) on revenue from sale of solar relate equipment and 
from engineering and consulting services. The other amount included in the above tax relate to 
minimum tax (2022: minimum tax) paid over income earned from mutual funds and term deposit 
receipts. 

22.  

22.1 
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

- market risk 

- credit risk; and 

- liquidity risk. 

The Company's Board of Directors (the Board) has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for 
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. 

The Company's overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial 
performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the Board. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The 
Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering 
specific areas1  such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

23.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk. 

(a) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. The 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as all financial instruments are in local currency. 

(b) Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial 
instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 
The Company is not exposed to price risk with respect to its investments in mutual funds as at 
June 30, 2023. 

(c) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company manages these 
mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can 
be adjusted. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on long term finances and its 
investment in term deposit receipts. 

23.2 Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk 

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its obligation and 
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually 
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar 
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet 
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other 
conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's 
performance to developments affecting a particular industry. 
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Credit risk primarily arises from trade debts, advances, other receivables, short term investments 
and balances with banks. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, 
management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past 
experience and other relevant factors. Where considered necessary, advance payments are 
obtained from certain parties. The management has set a maximum credit period of 15 days to 
reduce the credit risk. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as the counter parties are banks 
with reasonably high credit ratings. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2023 along with comparative is tabulated 
below: 

2023 
- - - Rupees - 

2022 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,708,522 
Other receivables 48,324,951 53,558,645 
Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their 
historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. 
Accordingly, management does not expect any counter party to fail in meeting their obligations. 
The credit quality of the Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the 
external credit ratings as follows: 

Rating 
Name of Bank short term long term agency 
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA VIS 
Habib Bank Limited A1+ A&A VIS 

23.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 
sufficient cash and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit 
facilities. The Company's treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping 
committed credit lines available. 
Financial liabilities in accordance with their contractual maturities are presented below: 

2023 
Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than I 

year 

Between Ito 

5 years 

More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 280,301,000 322,311,759 46,038,121 208,048,884 68,224,754 

Trade and other payables 48,130,165 48,130,165 48,130,165 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 2,895,391 2,895,391 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 - 28,000,000 

359,326,556 401,337,315 97,063,677 208,048,884 96,224,754 
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2022  

Contractual cash flows 

Particulars Carrying 

amount Total 
Less than 1 

year 

Between ito 5 

years 

More than 5 

years 

 Rupees  

Long term financing 414588000 434892,000 62554,000 312770000 59,568,000 

Trade and other payables 11,930,750 11,930,750 11930,750 

Accrued mark-up 6638,700 6638,700 6638,700 

Contract liability 69,414,802 69,414,802 69,414,802 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Project payable 110,006,649 110,006,649 110,006,649 

640,578901 660,882,901 260,544,901 312,770,000 87,568,000 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the 
basis of mark-up I interest rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of mark-up I 
interest have been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. 

23.4 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date 
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels: 

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived 
from prices). 

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 
is, unobservable inputs). 

As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in the financial 
statements approximate to their fair values. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the transfer has occurred. 

The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have 
occurred includes monitoring of the following factors: 

- changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases! decreases in activity) 

changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be 
observable in the market) 

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. 
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23.5 Financial instruments by category 

Amortised cost 

Financial assets 2023 2022 
as per statement of - - - Rupees - - - 

financial position 

Trade debts 17,664,483 6,706,522 

Other receivables 48324,951 63658,645 

Short term investments 70,076,729 4,844,867 

Cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15,266,680 

138,849,149 90,478,714 

Amortised cost 

Financial liabilities 2023 2022 
as per statement of 

financial position 
- - - Rupees - - - 

Long term financing 241,784,000 414,588,000 

Security deposit 28,000,000 28,000,000 

Accrued mark-up 2,895,391 6,638,700 

48,130,165 11,930,750 Trade and other payables 
Project payable 110,006.649 

320,809,556 571,164,099 

23.6 Capital risk management 

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other 
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its 
business. 

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes 
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or 
issuer new shares. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. 
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net  debt is calculated as total 
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the 
statement of financial position plus net debt. 

2023 
- - - Rupees 

2022 
- - - 

Total borrowings 280,301,000 434,892,000 

Less: cash and bank balances 2,782,986 15266,680 

Net debt 277,518,014 419625,320 

Total equity 267,631,959 174,463,469 

Total capital 545,149,973 594,088,789 

Gearing ratio 51% 71% 

For the purpose of calculating the gearing ratio, the amount of total borrowings has been 
determined by including the effect of short term borrowings under mark-up arrangements (if any). 
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23.7 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING 
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
interest I 
mark-tm 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July 01, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

Finances obtained 119,500,000 119,500,000 

Finances repaid (274,091,000) - (274,091,000) 

Finance cost paid - (45,575,943) (45,575,943) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 280,301,000 (38,937,243) 241,363,757 

Mark-up / interest expense 41,832,634 41,832,634 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 280,301,000 2,895,391 283,196,391 

Liabilities 

Long term 
finances 

Accrued 
Interest I 
mark-up 

Total 

 Rupees  

Balance as at July01! 2021 182,696,000 1,961,924 184,677,924 

Finances obtained 272,500,000 272,500,000 

Finances repaid (20,304,000) (20,304,000) 

Finance cost paid (2,750,990) (2,750,990) 

Total changes from financing cash flows 434,892,000 (769,066) 434,122,934 

Mark-up / interest expense 7,407,766 7,407,766 

Balance as at June 30, 2022 434,892,000 6,638,700 441,530,700 

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of the Parent company, Associated companies, directors and key 
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) 
along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been 
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows: 

24.1 Name of the related party 

Holding Company 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited (100% shareholding) 

Associated Companies (due to common directorship) 

Atlas Power Limited 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited 

Atlas Solar Limited (formerly Zhenfa Pakistan New Energy Limited) 

Atlas Honda Limited 

Atlas Engineering (Private) Limited 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited 

Atlas Insurance Limited 

Atlas Battery Limited 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited 

Atlas Foundation 
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24.2 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 

Names of Company 
Nature and Description of 
Related Party Transaction 

2023 

- - - Rupees 

2022 

- - - 

Atlas Power Limited 

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited 

Purchase of assets 

Services received 

3,922,536 

426,528 

Atlas Honda Limited Revenue earned 151745,322 71244138 
Security deposit received 28000,000 
Sales of assets 256.000.000 - 
Purchase of assets 5,344,561 

Atlas Battery Limited Revenue earned 37,750000 

Atlas Autos (Private) Limited Revenue earned 89,327,694 85,145,695 

Atlas Foundation Revenue earned 214,803 4,099,915 
Donation paid 1,800,743 - 

Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited Revenue earned 2,800,000 

Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited Advance received - 69,414,802 
Revenue earned 105,907,090 - 

Atlas Insurance Limited Insurance premium paid 4,617,721 3,244,902 

Key management perosnal Salary & benefits 20.506,726 - 

25.  PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2023 2022 
KWH KWH 

Installed capacity-per hour (MW) 8,123 8,123 

Installed capacity 58,975,873 28,087,832 

Standard generation from installed capacity 8,757,176 4,349,885 

Actual net electricity billed 8,779,818 4,386,466 

26. RENUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE 

No remuneration has been paid to chief executive or to any of the director of the Company. 
2023 2022 

Remuneration paid to executives of the Company 
is as follows: 

- - - Rupees - - - 

Managerial remuneration 15,196,356 

Performance bonus 6,500,924 

Reimbursements 1,871,924 

Retirement benefits 909,744 

24,478,948 

Number of person 2 

27.  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Total number of employees obtaining remuneration as at June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2) and 
average number of employees for the year ended June 30, 2023 is 6 (2022: 2). 



ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED (21) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

28. CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate 
presentation of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. However, no significant 
reclassification has been made in these financial statements. 

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorized for issue on 15 AUG 2023 

7 
Chief Executive Officer Chairman I Chief Financial Officer 
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3(4)(d)(iv) expressions of interest to provide credit or financing 
along with sources and details thereof; 



(&tAtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(v) documents describing the net worth and the equity and 
debt ratios of the applicant, as on the date of the audited balance 

sheet accompanying the application; 
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Net Worth Rs. 

Total Assets 641,706,864 

Total Liabilities 374,074,905 

Net worth 267,631,959 

Ratios 

Debt to Asset Ratio = Total Debt = 0.44 
Total Assets 

Debt to Equity Ratio 

Interest Coverage 

= Total Debt = 1.05 
Total Assets 

Ratio = Profit before Interest & Tax = 3.61 
Interest Expense 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64/XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, DHA Phase 3, Lahore. 

Tel: +92-42-37132637-38-39, Fax: +9242-37132634 

q) 



CtWAtlas Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(vi) * a reasonably detailed proffle of the applicant and the 
applicant's senior management, technical and professional staff 
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ATLAS ENERGY LIMITED 
Company Profile 
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Atlas Energy Limited 

Atlas Energy Limited, an Atlas Group company, was incorporated as a public limited (unquoted) 
company on 18 May2016 under the Companies Ordinance 1984. The company's registered office 
address is Building No. 641XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Phase III, D.H.A., Lahore. We provide cost-
effective solar solutions for industrial and commercial consumers. 

Vision: 

A leading Company in the Solar industry in all respects — providing cost-effective tailored 
solutions for industrial and commercial consumers through the sale of power, Engineering, 
Procurement and Construction (E.P.C.), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive returns 
to investors, being responsible corporate citizens and employer of choice. 

Mission: 

Being Competitive to provide unique, advanced and effective solar solutions to industrial and 
commercial customers in a safe, reliable and environment-friendly manner, acting with integrity, 
following sound practices with a sense of service in a culture that respects and values the 
satisfaction of our customers. 

For detailed Atlas Group information please visit: http://atlas.com.pkl  

Atlas Energy has successfully installed IS MW (energy sale and E.P.C.) solar systems while 
approximately 3 MW projects are in the pipeline. 

Atlas Ener2y Limited 

1.1. Introduction 

1.1.1. Atlas Energy Limited was incorporated as an unquoted - public limited company in 
Pakistan on 18 May 2016, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. 

1.1.2. 'l'he registered office of the Company is situated at 64/XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, Phase-Ill, 
DHA, Lahore. 

1.1.3. 'lie Company was incorporated to provide cost effective tailored solar solutions for 
industrial and commercial consumer through sale of power, Engineering, Procurement and 
construction (EPC), operation and Maintenance and giving attractive return to investors. 
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1.1.4. The Applicant Company has the financial strength to meet with the requirements of the 
Projects through its parent Company Shirazi Investments Private Limited - parent company 
held 100% ordinary shares of the Company. 

1.1.5. The Applicant Company has three Directors, besides the Auditor and Legal Advisor named 
below: 

• Directors: 
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan 
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Mr. Maqsood Ahmad 

1.1.6. Membership of Industry & Associations: 

• Lahore Chamber of Commerce & Industry (LCCI) 

• Pakistan China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry (PCJCCI) 

• Pakistan Engineering Council (PEC) 

• Alternative Energy Development Board (AEDB) 

List of Prolects Completed:  
List of our successful completed projects is as follows: 

Size of 

Sr. No. Category Project Namef Location 
Nature of Installation 

Work (kWp) 

1.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

EPC 497.70 

2.  Industrial 
Engine Plant 

EPA 589.05 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp. Road, Skp) 

3.  Industrial 
Parking Sheds 

EPA 405.79 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

4.  Industrial 
Subassembly! Frame Line 

EPA 769.08 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 
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5.  Industrial 
Component Parts 

EPA 663.25 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

6.  Industrial 
DCC-2 

EPA 752.40 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
7.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National EPC 864.56 

Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 

8.  Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, S.1.T.E. Area Karachi. 

EPC 96.3 

9.  Industrial 
Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
D-181 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

EPC 301.74 

10.  Commercial 
Atlas Vocational Training Institute 
Sheikhupura 

EPC 72.76 

11.  Industrial 
Stamping Building 

EPA 215.82 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

12.  Industrial 
Honda Atlas Cars Pak Ltd. 
(43 km Multan Rd, Manga, Lahore) 

EPC 970.1 

13.  Industrial 
CBU/SPL Building 

EPA 2250.85 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

14.  Industrial 
Test Track 
(Atlas Honda Ltd. 26/27 Km Lahore-Skp Road, Skp) 

EPA 2621.45 

Atlas Industrial Park Karachi 
15.  Industrial Plot No. 347A, Shed No 2, 15th Miles, National EPC 1250.23 

Highway, Landhi, Karachi. 



(WAtlasEnergy 

16.  Industrial 
Pakistan Cables Limited 
Nooriabad, Sindh 

EPC 2,023.00 

17.  Industrial 
Atlas Battery Limited Karachi 
D-63 Central Avenue, S.I.T.E Area Karachi. 

EPA 107.8 

18.  Industrial Atlas Honda Warehouse Port Qasim Karachi EPA 147.15 

19.  Industrial 
Atlas Honda Limited Karachi 
F-36 Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E. Area Karachi. 

EPA 140.6 

Total 14,739 kWp 
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Profile of Management 

1. Mr. Frahim Au Khan 
Director 
Mr. Frahim Au Khan has over 50 years of experience in General Management, Finance, Investment 
and Taxation. He graduated in Commerce from the Karachi University in 1965 and also obtained 
a degree in law from the same University. He has also attended the Senior Managers' Program from 
Harvard University, USA, Financial Management from Stanford University, USA, and General 
Management Program from Insead University, France. He joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has 
served in different senior positions. 
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2. Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 
Director 

Saquib Shirazi is a member of the Atlas Group. He is currently the President & Chief Executive 
Officer of Atlas Honda as well as the Chairman of Pakistan Auto Manufacturers' Association 
(PAMA). 

He has previously served as Chainnan, Harvard Business School's Global Alumni Board as well 
as Chairman, Pakistan Business Council. 
He is currently on the Boards of Pakistan Mobile Communication (Jazz Pakistan), Tn-Pack Ltd and 
National School of Public Policy. He also serves as an advisor to British International Investment 
(Bli) for Pakistan. In the past, he has served on the Boards of leading national and multinational 
companies. 
He graduated from the Wharton School of Finance and has an MBA from the Harvard Business 
School. 

3. Mr. Maqsood Alimad 
Director & CEO 

Mr. Maqsood A. Basraa has been the Chief Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited and Atlas 
Solar Limited since 2019 and Group Director Business Development (GDBD) & Member Group 
Executive Committee (GEC) since April 2017. He is with the Atlas Group since 1989, He has vast 
general management experience of working with different Companies of Atlas Group. Prior to this, 
he served State Bank of Pakistan for ten years. He has been leading the Accounts, Finance, 
Management Audit, Logistics, Commercial, Human Resource, Administration, Strategy and 
Government Business Relationship for business development for the Group as Group Director 
before the appointment at present position. 

He is the Fellow Member of Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan. He also did 
his Masters in Islamic Studies from Punjab University, Lahore and Banking Diplomas from 
Institute of Bankers in Pakistan. He attended Advanced Management Program from [NSEAD-
France. Before that he attended various advanced courses from LUMS, MAP, Administrative Staff 
College and British Council etc. on general management and leadership. 



ATIF SHABBIR 
MECHANICAL ENGINEER 
Current Location: G-1/16 A Gulfishan Society, Malir Halt, Karachi Pakistan 

Mobile No: ~923452409929 

Passport No: DL5138602 

Email: atifminhasrajput@gmail.com  

CAREER SUMMARY 

Experienced and results-driven Solar Manager with a proven track record of success in overseeing solar energy projects 

from inception to completion. Possesses deep knowledge of renewable energy systems, with a focus on maximizing 

energy efficiency and sustainability. Skilled in project management, team leadership, and regulatory compliance within 

the solar industry. Adept at fostering collaborative relationships with stakeholders to achieve project goals on time and 

within budget. Strong analytical skills combined with a passion for environmental conservation and renewable energy 

solutions. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE - OBJECTIVE 

Atlas Energy Limited, Pakistan (July 2019— Present) 

(Manager Solar Project & Operation) LAt1as Energy 

• Experience in installing solar systems for residential, commercial & industrial applications. 

• Expertise in assessing site suitability for solar installations and optimizing system performance. 
• Ability to read and interpret technical drawings and schematics. 

• Demonstrated knowledge of solar panel mounting, wiring, and connection procedures. 

• Familiarity with inverters, charge controllers, batteries, and other solar system components. 

• Competence in using tools and equipment specific to solar installation. 
• Lead or participated in solar system installation projects from start to finish. 

• Coordinated with clients, engineers, and other stakeholders to ensure successful implementation. 

• Managed project timelines, budgets, and resources effectively. 
• Conducted inspections and quality control checks to ensure compliance with standards. 
• Performed system testing, including voltage measurements and performance evaluations. 

• Implemented corrective actions to address any issues or deficiencies. 

• Educated customers about the benefits of solar energy and system maintenance. 
• Demonstrated a strong commitment to safety protocols and adherence to regulations. 

• Implemented safety measures to protect personnel and ensure a safe work environment. 
• Coordinates materials and assists in the logistics, its shipment and receipt at construction site. 
• Monitors work in progress and prepares weekly report of the status of each assignment. 

Atlas Metals (PVT) Limited, Pakistan (January 2018— June 2019) 

(Assistant Manager Technical Division) UNAtlas Metals 

• Routine maintenance and troubleshooting of machines situated at Polymer, Lead and Aluminum recycle 
plants and their utilities. 

• Assist HOD in preparation of annual preventive maintenance schedule. 
• Ensure all maintenance records (SOPs, ISO Docs & PM Cards) are maintained. 

• Responsible for technical coordination with procurement department, before and after receiving the spare of 
inventory. 

• Providing assistance in ISO Certification (14001 & 45001) and implementation. 

• Assist the HOD in preparation of contracts and agreements and verification of invoices for project & 
maintenance works. 

• Coordination with vendors, suppliers and OEM for purchase and installation of equipment. 
• Contributes to team effort by accomplishing related results as needed. 



Tapal Energy Limited, Pakistan (January 2017 —January 2018) 

(Trainee Engineer- Power Generation) 

. 12x11.34 MW Wartsila Diesel Engines (Running on HFO) with MAN turbochargers. 
TAPAL 

ENENGY 

Understanding the P&lDs of plant including fuel system, lube oil system, cooling water system, air system, 
steam system and fire-fighting system. 

• Understanding of plant operations including startup, shutdown, plant island mode, equipment 
changeover and condition monitoring. 

• Understanding of Fuel and Lube Oil Purification units, RO unit, Auxiliary and Waste Heat Recovery Boilers. 

• Understanding of Reciprocating compressors and pumps, screw pumps, centrifugal pumps and 
pneumatic pumps. 

• Hands-on participation in scheduled and breakdown maintenance activities of engines and their 
auxiliaries and managing inventory, CMMS, daily and monthly reports. 

INTERNSHIPS 

Karachi Shipyard & Engineering Works (January 2015) 

(Engineering Intern) 

• Observe different activities, i.e. welding inspection and Nondestructive Testing. 

• Radiography of Steel Sheet to identify defects. 

• Manufacturing of Oil Tanker Ship, collaboration with China & Turkey. 

Pakistan International Airline (June 2015) 

(Engineering Intern) 

• Machining operations 

• NDT Testing Methods 

• Composite Material Maintenance Department 

• Engine overhauling 

H PAKISIAN 

EDUCATIONAL CREDENTIALS 

• B.E (Mechanical) from NUST-PNEC Karachi, in 2016 

• F Sc (Pre-Engineering) At from Bahria College Karsaz Karachi, in 2012 

• SSC (Science) A+ from Minhaj Model School Karachi, in 2010 

TRAINING & CERTIFICATIONS 

• Certificate in Information Technology (CIT) from Pakistan Advance Software Service (PASS) 

• Initiating and Planning Projects (online course authorized by University of California, Irvine and offered through 

Coursera) 

• Solar PV Design, Integration & Performance (PV1O1) from ETRC. 

• Technical Training on Solar Energy from Jinko Solar. 

• Introduction to Renewable (RE100) from Solar Energy International. 

• AUTOCAD from Ministry of Information Technology (Govt of Pakistan). 

• HSE Management System and Internal Auditors Training for ISO-14001 & 150-45001 

• Permit to Work (PTW) & Lock Out/Tag Out (LOTO) Training from HSE department 

• Solar Energy System design by The State University of New York. 

• Project Management Tracker from Coursera 

ADDITIONAL SKILLS 

• Efficient Team player & Team building skills 

• Time Management 

• Highly energetic and self-motivated resource. 

• Excellent communication & leadership skills. 

• Apt command on MS office applications. 



Engr.Rizwan Utah 
Postal Address: H #4090, St. # 09, H-Area, New Muzaffarabad Landhi Karachi, District Karachi Malir. 
Mobile: +92334-3114582 
Email: rizwanullah765@yahoo.com  

OBJECTIVE 

Seeking a challenging opportunity in an organization with highly competitive and demanding environment where 
I can exploit my knowledge and skill with full spirit. 

EDUCATIONAL OUALIFICATION 

Degree Institute! Board Division/Grade Year 

M.Engg. 
(Electrical Power) 

NED University of Engineering and 
Technology Karachi 

First Division 2018 

PGC 
(Electrical Power) 

CCEE NED University of Engineering 
and Technology Karachi 

First Division 2016 

B.Sc. (PEC Regr.) 
(Electrical Engineering) 

University of Engineering and 
Technology Peshawar 

First Division 2014 

HSC 
(Pre Engineering) 

Board of Intermediate Education 
Karachi 

First Division 2009 

Matric 
(Science) 

Board of Secondary Education 
Karachi 

First Division 2007 

FINAL YEAR PROJECT 

è Water flow control through IR radiations using at89s52 Microcontroller based on Tx-Rx and 
temperature sensors. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIUENCE 

+ Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-07-2019 to Present 
Designation: Manager Projects 

Job Description: 
> Monitor, Identifies and Analysis all projects costs with a view of facilitating the completion of the Project at 

minimum cost and within budget limits. 
fr Prepared the Bill of Quantities, Capability Criteria and Special Terms and Conditions for contacts of 

Installation and Commissioning of Civil, Structure and Electrical work. 
? Installation and Commissioning of 1.2MWp RCC Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Industrial Park, 

Atlas Battery and Atlas Honda Karachi Plant. 
- Installation and Commissioning of 2MWp PEB Roof Mounted Solar Power Project Atlas Honda and Atlas 

Autos, Sheikhupura. 
r Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 2.04KWp PEB roof Mounted Solar Power Project 

Pakistan Cables Site, Nooriabad. 
Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 405KWp Car Porch Solar Power Project Atlas 
Honda, Shiekhupura. 

r Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 589KWp Double Tee Roof Mounted Solar Power 
Project Atlas Honda, Shiekhupura. 

r Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of 12KWp Roof Mounted Solar Power Project DHA, 
Karachi. 

.- Design of LV Panel, SLD, AC!DC Cables as per load calculation and strings as per Invertors and Modules 
specifications. 

r Interfacing of Data Logger with Invertors and Weather Station in order to receive remote information and 
monitoring. 

- Installation, Commissioning, Operations and Maintenance of ABB, Fronius and Huawei Invertors and Jinko 
Solar Modules. 

Engr. Rizwau t)tiah CV i/3 



< Atlas Metals Pvt. Limited (Atlas Group) Karachi From: 01-01-2018 to 30-06-2019 
Designation: Assistant Manager Maiutenance 

Job Description: 
r Maintenance of DC Set on daily/monthly and running hour basis that is used in case of unavailability of power 

supply from K Electric. 
è Maintenance of power factor capacitor bank panel in order to ensure proper power factor during peak as well as 

off peak load time. 
Implementation of PTW (Permit to Work) System in all the three Lead, Aluminum and Polymer Plants 
according to ElSE Standards to ensure human safety. 

? Ensure normal operation of the complete Automation Control System that is 57-1200 PLC System and VFD's 
in all the three Plants. 

- Implementation of proper preventive, predictive maintenance by generating proper work order system in 
Maintenance Department. 
Implementation of Energy Conservation Plan by introducing Energy Audit Schemes in order to minimize per 
unit cost. 

- Ensure availability of all the utilities that is electrical power, natural gas, oxygen gas, SNO gas, LPG gas, water 
and DC set for smooth operation of all the three Plants. 

, Regular inspection of all types of machines/motors installed in all the three plants to ensure smooth running of 
the plant. 

r Ensure availability of all the spare parts in the store to meet the emergency condition in order minimize 
production loss. 

- Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers. 

• Pakistan Steel Bin Qasim Karachi From: 21-08-2015 to 20-08-2017 
Designation: Trainee Engineer 

Job Description: 
TAr Cable Selection according to the load requirement, Russian, PVC and XLPE cables joint and end termination. 
r Daily Load Calculation, analysis and trend of Gulshan-e-I-Iadeed Phase-I, Steel Town and entire Plant zone 

wise. 
e Record, analyze and report energy consumption and cost on a regular basis in order to identify Energy Saving 

Opportunities. 
Repair/Maintenance and daily patrolling of 04 Nos. of 132KV Transmission Lines consisting Single Line and 
Double Line lattice type towers configuration. 

,- Monthly reading and hence energy bill calculation for at least 8000 Domestic and Commercial Consumers of 
Gulshan-e-Hadeed and Steel Town. 

- Plan and execution of PPM and N.y Testing of BOCB's, MOCB's and VCB's ranging from 600A to 2500A 
more than 1000 units. 

Ar Schedule and its daily execution regarding the PPM, inspection and capital repair of all equipment installed in 
50 Nos. of Distribution Stations located all over the Plant. 

r Monthly/Yearly PPM, Protection and Testing of Distribution and Power Transformers ranging from 75OKVA 
to Ô3MVA. 

TECIThIcAL SKILLS AND TOOLS  

Extensive experience of Microsoft Office, and Electronics Software's like Pspice and ETAP. 
- AutoCAD 2D, C++ Programing Language, Matlab and Assembly Programming Language. 

KEY SKILLS 

> Excellent communication and interpersonal skills 
Organized and methodical with good time management and planning. 

TA'- Ability to remain calm and focused under pressure and work within strict deadlines. 
> A committed team player, able to motivate and inspire others and work in a cohesive team. 

Engr. Rizwan Utlab cv 2/3 



ACHIEVMENTS 

# Received Prime Minister Youth Award Program in 2017. 
Selected for Prime Minister Youth Program Scheme in 2016. 
Received Youth Talent Award from Chief Minister KPK in 2013. 

> Top 10 Position in Board of Secondary Education Karachi in 2007. 

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES 

Cricketer: Performed as Opener at School, College and University level. 
- Social worker: Blood Secretary and food monitor at university level. 

SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS 

> "SMART GRID, Operations Control & Implementation" by Dr. Tariq Masood, Organized by CCEE in 
NEDUET. 

r Two days "Industrial Safety and Accident Prevention Seminar" 01104 & 05 Januaiy, 2016 Organized by 
Safety Department Pakistan Steel Mills. 

PERSONAL INFORMATION 

Father's Name: 
Date of Birth: 

Muhammad Akram 
26-Feb-1991 

> Nationality: Pakistani 
> CNIC: 42501-6543984-I 
> PEC: ELECT/44899 
> Marital Status: Single 
> Languages: English, Urdu 

REFRENCE 

Will be provided on request. 
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Mahmood Ahmed 
SOLAR PV DESIGN & SIMULATION I PROJECT MANAGEMENTI 
TEAM LEAD 

Summary 

Having 12 years of experience in Solar PV System Design, 

Supervision , Esitimation, and Execuations including O&M in 

different organizations. 

Having strong Grip of System Design using *PVSYST* PVSOL*, 

SketchUp, Microsoft Office, Autocad 

Team Leads for Execution of Projects, Best Technical expertise on 

PV Grid-tied, Hybrid, BESS Hybrid and OFF Grid Systems. 

Experience 

Atlas Energy Limited (Atlas Group) 
Manager Projects Design & Executions 
January 2018- Present (5 years 2 months) 

Project Role As Manager Tecinal Operations Design and Executions. Worked 

on 

IPP 100MWp solar grid-tied system 

PPA-based 10MWp systems. 

EPC-Based 10MWp Solar Grid Tied System 

Having work experience of BESS system on 1.2MWP Grid Tied system 

Atlas Power Limited 
Technical Project Manager 
January 2018- Present (5 years 2 months) 

Greenewable solar (pvt) Ltd. 
Manager Tchnical 
February 2016- Present (7 years 1 month) 

EWORKZ POWER PVT LTD 
Manager Technical 

Page 1 of 3 

Contact 

Wapda Town Lahore, Pakistan 
~92 3004929474 
mahmood6789©yahoo.com  

w.Iinkedin.com/in/mahmood-

ahmed-0311  b948 (IrkcJIi) 

Top Skills 

Construction Management 

Troubleshooting 

Business Development 

Languages 
• d 

Urdu 

English 



September 2015- January 2016(5 months) 

Manage and lead all Technical staff 

# Manage after sale services and new installation accordingly. 

# Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Supervision of Installation, Commissioning and Manage after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Designing and Installation Supervision of Solar Tubewell. 

Solar PV Softwares: 

# PVSyst 

# PV Size 

# Helioscope 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 

Premier Energy Company PVT LTd 

Assistant Manager Technical 
February 2014- September 2015 (1 year S months) 

Position Descriptions 

Design and Estimation of Solar PV ON Grid, OFF Grid and Hybrid Systems. 

# Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Energy Audits for Solar PV System. 

# Installation, Commissioning and providing after sale services. 

# Design and Consultancy for Mega Projects. 

# Supervision of Solar PV Installation 

Brand development, advertising revenue. 

Developed brand strategy and statistics systems. 

Strategic Consulting, including business plan & sales strategy development. 

Advising new businesses on formation of corporations and business 

structures, drafting privacy policies and structuring commercial transactions. 

Solar PV Softwares: 

# PVSyst 
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# PV Size 

# Skelien 

# Compass (Lorentz) 

# Smart Draw 

# Google SketchUp 

Efficient Energy Company (EEC) 

Assistant Technical Manager 
June 2011 - February 2014(2 years 9 months) 

# Design and Estimation of Solar Systems for domestic and commercial 

Projects. 

# Solar Project Execution Plan Installation of Solar System, after completion of 

Project 

give Technical Support to the Customer 

# Research and Development (R&D) of Solar Products and Systems. 

It Establish and Develop Company's Profile. 

it Project Management and Handling Projects. 

it Manage and Control all Technical Problems. 

it PLC Control and Automation, Vfds and lnverters. 

it Sales, Maintenance and Repairing of Solar lights. 

it Sales of Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Lights Products. 

it Design of Solar System Dc cards, Calibration, troubleshoot and Repair Dc 

Cards. 

Education 

University of South Asia Lahore 

BSc Electrical Engineer, Electrical Engineering (POWER) (2007 -2011) 
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TANZIL UR REHMAN  
Mailing Address: House No: 170-A, All Town, Raiwind Road Lahore. 
Phone: +92-3136134088 Email: tnzelurrehman(Thgmail.com   

Career Objective: 

I am looking forward to work for an organization which offers Competitive and Congenial working Environment 
with immense growth opportunities, so that I may effectively utilize my technical and managerial skills to 
achieve personal and professional goals. 
Career Summary: 

As a professional Mechanical Engineer I have more than 9 years of diversified experience of working with 
Independent Power Producers. During my career, I have worked in Power Plant operations and maintenance, 
Planning of Power Plant Operations, project management and managing contractual obligations with 
relevant government agencies. Currently, I have been involved in planning and development of new 
opportunities in renewable energy sector from the platform of Atlas Energy limited. 

Qualification: 

- MBA Finance (2018-2020) 

- BSc Mechanical Engineering (2009-20 13) 

r Intermediate (2007-2009) 

r Matriculation (2005-2007) 

Work Experience: 

ll3A, University of Punjab, Lahore 

UET Lahore 

BISE Multan 

BISE Multan 

Atlas Energy Limited (April 2019-Presentj 
Currently working as Manager Solar Projects at Atlas Energy Ltd to provide complete solar off 
grid and on grid solutions for commercial, industrial & domestic purpose. 

My responsibilities are 
ft Understand scope of the project, site assessment & system sizing. 
r Generate details of annual energy yield through PV syst simulation 
ft Leading technical team for innovative PV technology solutions and assisting other team members 

with preliminary project design and implementation, modeling and commissioning. 
- Site inspections during project installation, commissioning and operation. 
'- Developing internal process and associated operating platforms in such a manner that strengthens 

long-term standardization of an effective EPC delivery approach. 
r Meeting with client and suggest best possible solar solutions. 
- Submitted proposal with competitive pricing and with advance technologies. 

ft Detailed timelines for each activity to be submitted and make sure each item to be delivered in 
time 

Responsible to make sure all the safety measures during the project implementation. 
ft Operations and maintenance of solar PV power plants installed by Atlas Energy. 

Major Projects completed  

ft 504.8 lCWp On grid solar project at Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited. 
r 3.2 Mw On grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited. 
ft 5 NWp On-grid solar project at Atlas Honda Limited SKP. 



Atlas Power Limited (225 MW) (April 2017-April 2019) 
Worked as Assistant Manager Technical at 225 MW Combined Cycle IPP Power Plant. 
My Responsibilities were:  

> Performance monitoring and analyzing the plant operating parameters to predict the potential faults 
and taking the appropriate steps. 

r Prepare and execute mitigation plan to fix performance and efficiency issues related the plant 
equipment/systems. 

> To calculate performance of critical plant equipment like Diesel Engines, Turbochargers, HRSG, 
Steam Turbine, Cooling Tower and Fuel purifiers against designed performance bench marks and 
identify negative drivers in case of declined performance. 

A- To plan daily Diesel Engines running hours in coherence with maintenance schedules to reduce 
unnecessary downtime and ensure maximum dispatch. 
I have complete understanding of Power purchase agreement (PPA) for lPP's and Fuel Supply 
Agreement with the power purchaser and responsible for preparing energy invoices (EPP) and 
capacity invoices (CPP) as per PPA. 

p EHS Evaluation of the Plant. 

Previous Experience 

Nishat Chunian Power Limited (200MW): (January 2014-March 2017) 

Worked as Operations Planning Engineer and Shift Operations Engineer at 200MW Combined Cycle 
Power Plant. 
My responsibilities include:  

r Supervise safe, efficient and smooth operation of plant during shift hours taking care of load 
demand, according to OEM recommendations. 

A- Communication with the NPCC regarding the increase and decrease in dispatch levels due to 
scheduled outages, washing outages, forced outages and partial loading of the plant. 

> Rot & cold startup of Engines & turbine according to NPCC&RCC demands in accordance with 
PPA. 

).- Responsible to prepare Daily Demand Dispatch report, Daily Operations Report (DOR) 
comprising Daily Fuel Consumption, Plant Generation, Rouse Load, Plant Heat Rate, and Plant 
Efficiency and to prepare weekly and monthly reports of plant and forward it to operations 
Manager and plant Manager. 

t Performing the functions of troubleshooting and propose remedial measures in case of emergency 

situation such as sudden breakdown, abnormal tripping or Blackout and coordinate with 
maintenance staff for preventive or corrective maintenance for reducing downtime minimum. 

r To continuously monitor the fuel oil and lube oil parameters and water chemistry for smooth 
operation of the system. 

Professional skills: 

Computer Skills:  

C++ programming, Auto CAD, Solid Edge, MATLAB, Primavera P6 basic. 

Expertise in MS Office (MS Word, MS Excel, MS Power point, MS Project). 

Management SLills:  
r An effective communicator with strong analytical, problem solving & organizational abilities. 
. Skilful Presenter (Experience of delivering Technical and Non-Technical Presentations in Front of 

50-100 people). 
A- Sound knowledge of Technical Reports Writing and Evaluation. 
r Committed team player with flexible approach to maintain better working relationships within 

and outside organization. 



U!1AtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(vii) employment records of engineering and technical staff of 
the applicant proposed to be employed. 

Atlas Energy already have experienced team having hand on experience 
of EPC and O&M of Solar Plants 



(J1At1E Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(vii) profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions 
of interest of such sub-contractors; 

Not Applicable 



aAt1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(4)(d)(ix) verifiable references in respect of the experience of the 
applicant and its proposed sub-contractors; 

Not Applicable 
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3(e) * technical and financial proposals in reasonable detail for the 
operation, maintenance, planning and development of the facility or 

system in respect of which the license is being sought; 
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Prepared by: 
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1. Executive Summary 

This feasibility study evaluates the costs, practicality, and expected outcomes of a rooftop solar 
pholovoltaic (PV) installation at two locations: 

• Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern Industrial Zone 
Port Qasim, Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. 

• Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited, F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi. 

2. Project Brief 

Atlas Energy plans to install a 714.495 kWp Solar Power Plant under PEPA mode. The proposed 
capacity is based on current and projected future loads. Key outcomes include: 

• Technical Site Analysis 

• Financial Analysis 

2.1.Technical Site Analysis 

The sites are suitable for a solar PV system, with "good" solar insolation assumed. The 
system design factors include a panel azimuth of 100  SE & NW, a panel tilt of 8°, and 
satisfactory roof conditions. 

• System Capacity: 714.495 kWp 

• Annual Production: 1,002,069 kWh 

• PV Module: JKMS4SM-72HL4-TV (545 Wp) 

• Inverters: Sizes ranging from 20KW to 125 KW 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location 

• Location 01: Latitude 24°49'SS.S"N, Longitude 67°18'34.8"E 

• Location 02: Latitude 24°52'57.5"N, Longitude 66°58'25.3"E 
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Location Map: 

A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 
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Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, 
Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. 
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Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited, 

F-36, Estate Avenue, S.1.T.E., Karachi. 



2.1.2. Site Conditions 

A comprehensive analysis was conducted, including: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation 

• Shading Analysis 

• Area Calculation for Modules 

2.1.3. Technology Review & Selection 

• PV Modules: JKMS4SM-72HL4-TV 

• Annual Generation: Location-I: 202,625 kWh, Location-2: 799,444 kWh 

• Inverters: High efficiency (98.5%-98.6%) inverters with a variety of sizes. 

2.1.4. Solar PV Yield Estimation and Simulation 

Energy yield predictions using PVSyst software provide the basis for calculating 
project revenues. The simulation considered factors like solar resource, temperature 
conditions, and plant layout. 

2.1.5. Working Conditions 

The system ensures zero grid export, with the solar production dynamically adjusted 
to match site consumption. 

2.1.6. Plant Characteristics 

The plant features a 230/400 V, 50 Hz, three-phase system with built-in inverter 
features for voltage regulation and frequency response. 

2.1.7. Design Parameters 

Key design considerations include: 

• Shading assessment 

• Optimized LV layout 

• Module cleaning strategy 
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2.1.8. Concept Design 

A detailed concept design and layout are provided. 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram 

The single line diagram includes PV arrays, DC/AC cabling, protection devices, and 
energy metering. 
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2.1.10. Operation and Maintenance Strategy 

Operation: 

o Continuous Monitoring: Online Monitoring will be opt to check 
real-time performance and detect anomalies. 



o Performance Analysis: Regular analysis of performance data to 
optimize energy yield and identify potential issues. 

o Energy Management: Implement energy management practices to 
maximize energy production and reduce losses. 

. Maintenance: 

o Routine Inspections: Conduct monthly and biannual inspections as 
detailed in the O&M plan. 

o Preventive Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance activities to 
prevent equipment failures. 

o Corrective Maintenance: Address any issues identified during 
inspections or reported by the monitoring system. 

2.1.11. Planning and Development 

• Initial Setup: 

o Site Preparation: Ensure site readiness, including structural 
integrity of mounting systems and electrical infrastructure. 

o Installation: Oversee the installation of PV modules, inverters, and 
other components according to manufacturer specifications and 
industry standards. 

• Long-term Development: 

o Expansion Plans: Develop plans for future expansions or upgrades 
to increase capacity or incorporate new technologies. 

o Technology Upgrades: Stay updated with advancements in solar 
technology and integrate them as appropriate. 

2.1.12. Technical Challenges and Mitigation 

• Dust and Debris: Implement regular cleaning schedules and consider anti-
soiling coatings. 

• Weather Conditions: Design systems to withstand local weather conditions, 
including high temperatures and humidity. 

• Technical Issues: Maintain a technical support team for rapid resolution of 
issues related to inverters, monitoring systems, and other critical 
components. 

2.2. Financial Analysis 
Project Financing Model 
The solar PV project will be financed through 100% Equity. The total capital expenditure 
(CapEx) is estimated at P1(14 144,480,309. This amount includes the expenses associated with 
the planning, design, material procurement, construction, and installation of the solar 
generation facilities. 

Capital Cost Breakdown: 
The total capital cost includes: 

I. Feasibility Studies: Costs related to site assessments, technical and environmental 
evaluations. 



2. Planning and Design: Costs for designing the solar PV system, electrical layouts, 
and structural requirements. 

3. Material Procurement: Costs of solar panels, mounting structures, inverters, 
cabling, and other electrical components. 

4. Construction and Installation: Labor, logistics, and installation costs of the rooflop 
solar system across the various sites. 

Financial Summary: 
• Total Project Cost: PKR 144,480,309 
• Financing Structure: 100% Equity (Applicant's own funds) 

Sr. 
Location 

System Size 
(kWp) 

Total 
Project Cost 

(PKR) 

TPC/Wp 
(PKR) 

Equity 
100% 

1 

Atlas Honda Limited, 
Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern 
Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim 
Town, Karachi. 

147.150 24,357,685 165.53 24,357,685 

2 
Atlas Honda Limited, 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi. 

567.330 120,122,624 211.73 120,122,624 
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Coordinate 

Latitude: 24°49'55 5"N 

Longitude: 67°18'34 8'E 

Latitude: 24°52'57.5"N 

Longitude: 66°5825.3E 

1. Executive Summary 
The feasibility study examines the costs, practicality, and likely outcome of a solar photovoltaic 
(PV) installation on the rooftop of below site: 

Locations 

Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, 
Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. 

Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 

2. Project Brief 

Atlas Energy intends to install 7 14.495 kWp Solar Power Plants in owner premises to provide 
electricity under PEPA mode. The installed capacity of plants is proposed by critically analyzing 
the current load and future load projections of site. 

The main outcomes of the feasibility report are given below: 

• Technical Site Analysis 
• Financial Analysis 

2.1.Technical Site Analysis: The project site is suitable for a solar PV energy system. For the 
purpose of estimation of power generation potential, solar insolation is assumed to be "good". 
Panel azimuth (100  South East & 10° North West), panel tilt (8°) and satisfactory roof condition 
and structure are also assumed. Anticipated System Information: The projects in will 
accommodate 7 14.495 kWp solar PV system with a projected annual production of 1,002,069 
kWh I year with use of a JKMS45M-721-1L4-TV (545 Wp) PV panel. 

2.1.1. Site Coordinates & Location: 
The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 

Location 

Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, 

Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern 
Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim Town, 

Karachi. 

Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 
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2.1.2. Location Map: 
A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 

A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 
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Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 



2.1.3. Site Conditions: 
The following tasks were carried out: 

• Global Horizontal Irradiation, annual and inter-annual variation was assessed. 

• Near shading objects were taken into account for placement of PV modules. 

• Area required for selected module technology was calculated. Keeping in view 
available area and minimum inter row shading, tilt angle and appropriate spacing 
was calculated from near shading objects. 

Technology Review & Selection: 

PV Modules 

Type of Module JKM545M-72HL4-TV 

No. of Modules 

Annual Generation 

Location-i 

Location-2 

Total 

Location-i 

Location-2 

Total 

(270 * 545 = 147.150 kWp) 
(i,041*545) = 567.330 kWp 
(i,311* 545) = 714.495 kWp) 

202,625 kWh 

799,444 kWh 

1,002,069 kWh 

S 

Type of Cell 

Dimension of each Module 

Total Module Area 

Frame of Panel 

Weight of one Module 

No of Solar Cells in each module 

Efficiency of module 

Maximum Power (Pinax) 

Voltage @ Pinax 

Current @ Pinax 

Open circuit voltage (VO4 

Short circuit current (I,) 

Maximum system open Circuit Voltage  

Mono PERC Half-Cell 

2274x1134x35mm (89.53x44.65x1.38 inch) 

2.578716 m2 

Anodized aluminium alloy 

28.9 kg 

144 (6x24) 

21.13% 

545 Wp 

41V 

13.27 A 

49.65 V 

13.94 A 

1500VDC (IEC) 



Inverters 

Description 

Size & Mode 

No. of Inverters 

Input Operating Voltage 
Range 

Efficiency of inverter 

Max. Allowable Input 
voltage 

Max. Current 

Max. Power Point 
Tracking Range 

Output electrical system 

Rated Output Voltage 

Power Factor 
(adjustable) 

Power control 

Rated Frequency 

125KW 
SGI 25CX-P2 

2 

180Vto 1000V 

98.5 % 

I IOOV 

30A 

180 V to 1000 V 

3 Phase AC 

3/N/PE,230/400V 

0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

MPP Tracker 

50Hz 

Technical Specification 

50KW 
SGSO-CX 

7 

200Vto I000V 

98.6% 

I100V 

30A 

200Vto 1000V 

3 Phase AC 

PE 

0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

MPP Tracker 

50Hz 

20KW 
SG33-CX 

2 

200 V to 1000 V 

98.5 % 

I100V 

30A 

200 V to 1000 V 

3 Phase AC 

PE 

0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

MPP Tracker 

50Hz 

230V/400V,3W+N+ 230V1400V,3W+N+ 

Mounting Structure 

Structure 

Tilt Angle 

Degradation Factor 

Rail Type Aluminum 

Location 1,2 and 6 5° 
Location 3, 4, 5, 100 

First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

Data Collecting System 

System Data Continuous online logging with data logging software to portal. 



2.1.4. Solar PY Yield Estimation and Simulation of Site: 
The energy yield prediction provides the basis for calculating project revenues. The 
aim is to predict the average annual energy output for the lifetime of the proposed 
power plant. To estimate accurately the energy produced from a PV power plant, 
information is needed on the solar resource and temperature conditions of the site. Also 
required are the layout and technical specifications of the plant components. A number 
of solar energy yield prediction software packages are available in the market. These 
packages use time step simulation to model the performance ofa project over the course 
of a year. PVSyst software has been used for energy yield prediction for this site and 
its results are given below. Details of the simulation steps are presented in the following 
sections: 

2.1.5. Working Conditions: Zero Grid Export 
The solar system will have automatic mechanism to ensure that PV power currently 
generated by the inverters always matches the current power consumption of the site 
load. A closed loop control system of inverter AC output is implemented in reference 
to energy flow at grid connection point which will reduce inverter AC output of the 
inverter if site load will be less than the solar production. 

2.1.6. Plant Characteristics 
Generation Voltage: 230/400 V three phase four wire system Power Factor at rated 
power: Frequency: 50 Hz Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of 
controllable active power ramp following grid disturbance or normal connection, 
voltage regulation and frequency response. There are no additional control metering 
and instrumentations. 

2.1.7. Design Parameters: 

The following tasks were carried out for PV layout and shading. 

a) Assessment of shading (horizon and nearby building). 
b) Outline layout of area suitable for PV development. 
c) Designing row spacing to reduce inter-row shading and associated shading losses. 
d) Designing the layout to minimize cable runs and associated electrical losses. 
e) Creating access routes and sufficient space to allow movement for maintenance 

purposes. 

0 Choosing a tilt angle that optimizes the annual energy yield according to the 
latitude of the site and the annual distribution of solar resource. 

g) Module cleaning strategy. 
h) Simulating the annual energy losses associated with various configurations of tilt 

angle, orientation and row spacing. The optimized configuration and simulation 
results are given in section "Energy Yield Prediction" 

i) PV layouts of the site are given in view in the following section. 
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2.1.8. Concept Design: 
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2.1.9. Single Line Diagram: 

The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 
• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 
• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 
• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy Metering 
• Earthing 

I 
The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram 
includes the protection devices that will be used for safe and smooth operation of the 
system. 

Protections DC Side: 'String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect 
Switches 

Protections AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

N 



2.2. Financial Analysis 
Project Financing Model 
The solar PV project will be financed through 100% Equity. The total capital expenditure 
(CapEx) is estimated at PKR 144,480,309. This amount includes the expenses associated with 
the planning, design, material procurement, construction, and installation of the solar 
generation facilities. 

Capital Cost Breakdown: 
The total capital cost includes: 

1. Feasibility Studies: Costs related to site assessments, technical and environmental 
evaluations. 

2. Planning and Design: Costs for designing the solar PV system, electrical layouts, 
and structural requirements. 

3. Material Procurement: Costs of solar panels, mounting structures, inverters, 
cabling, and other electrical components. 

4. Construction and Installation: Labor, logistics, and installation costs of the rooftop 
solar system across the various sites. 

Financial Summary: 
• Total Project Cost: PKR 144,480,309 
• Financing Structure: 100% Equity (Applicant's own funds) 

Sr. 
Location 

System Size 
(kWp) 

Total 
Project Cost 

(PKR) 

TPC/Wp 
(PKR) 

Equity 
100% 

I 

Atlas Honda Limited, 
Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern 
Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim 
Town, Karachi. 

147.150 24,357,685 165.53 24,357,685 

2 
Atlas Honda Limited, 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi. 

567.3 30 120,122,624 211.73 120,122,624 

3. Project Rationale 

It is a commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 
indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modem societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 



is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modern sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 
energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This 
energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global irradiation 
falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9-2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 Mi/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 his, in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23MJ/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal for solar thernial applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 OW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 

4. Environment Assessment Report: 

a. Study Area: 

Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in 
the western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly 
associated with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur 
throughout the year. Like, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces 
receive maximum rainfall in the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50- 
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75% of rainfall during monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAO, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 
1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). The precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main 
seasons, summer or monsoon and winter precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east 
and north east during the month of July to September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is 
received in the north and northeastern areas of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) 
are mainly received from western disturbances entering from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather 
systems entering from Afghanistan are called the primary western disturbances and cover only the north 
and north western parts of the country, whereas those approaching from the Iran are secondary and 
cover a large area of theCountry including Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and 
northern areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large amount of snowfall is received in the northern 
areas, upper Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern Balochistan and is the main source of water 
supply for water reservoirs of the country in dry season. This water received from the snow melt and 
from the seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural and socioeconomic activities of the 
country. Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent and every area has its own crops and fruits 
according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are grown in winter season in 
different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in the usual climate 
condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

b. Zone Classification: 

Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. 
Therefore, for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole 
country i.e. 30 stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. The stations 
included in this study were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, 
length of record, completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could 
be obtained. Further the selected stations have been divided into five different microclimatic zones. 
These zones were named A, B, C, D and E as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 



Zone A 

Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the north of 

Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- Sharif Skardu, Astor, Dir, 

Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 N to 38 N in the 

Himalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

Zone B 

This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31 N to 34 N. The stations 

are Sialkot, D.I.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 

Zone C  

Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 

elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 E. Stations 

included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

Zone D  

This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded 

in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert. 

Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 

Zone E  

Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. 'I'he coastal Part 

comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as 

in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are Hyderabad, 

Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

c. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

a) Physical Environment 
• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, 

making it suitable for solar energy generation. 
• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 

impact the installation. 
• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 

installing mounting structures. 

b) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and 

wildlife. There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust 

and emissions from nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 



c) Sock-Economic Environment 
• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential 

communities in close proximity to the project site. 
• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 

employment opportunities during the construction phase. 

The sites are allocated in private land (Roof Top) within the premises of Customer, and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation of the Solar 
PV Plant. 

The assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative effects. The 
proposed photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of 
green power generation with no emission and effluent discharge with have least impact on the 
ambient environment and on the host community. However, in the long term the project and related 
activities in areas may bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

The importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a 
result, some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure 
that projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making 
with a purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

The main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development" can be a possibility in the 
future by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and the 
environmental protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affects the environment. Conventional 
generating options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the 
levels of harmful radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many 
environmental and social problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar PV energy 
technology provides obvious environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy 
sources thus contributing to the sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the 
depletion of the exhausted natural resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 
emissions and normally absence of any air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

The use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 

• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of 

toxic gas emissions (S02, particulates) 

• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

5. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed project 
at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy 
is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many 
significant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 



almost an infinite energy source when corn-pared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy systems 
have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. Sonic of 
these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts:  

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 

c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

f) Impact on Air 

g) Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water 

h) Impact on Solid Waste 

i) Impact on Soil 

j) Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 

modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to the 

environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like fire. 

The possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and 

groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 

Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the 

surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a 

cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell 

applications after the construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar 

cell utilization should be planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual 

pollution. For the other application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for 

large solar cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 

of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell 

modules. 

Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells 

have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. 

The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods 

today. Some toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. 

Especially, the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and 

containing heavy metals such as cadmium. 

Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be 

some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport of the 



modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufacture. 

Transport emissions are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, 

there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 

Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase 

except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of 

air temperature. 

Impact on Ground Water! Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design phase 

except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 

Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be 

cleared from site after construction. 

Impact on Soil: No impacts as all installed systems are roof top. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There won't be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 

like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of 

usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycling by throwing it in 

ordinary dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. emails. 

6. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited (Plant) and the 

applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 

Plant. Overall findings: 

Environment 
Parameters 

Level of 
Impact 

Reasons Mitigation Measures 

   

Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) Air Impact 

Water 

Land 

Ecosystem 

Socio Eco System  

Plant will require a very low 
quantity of water for cleaning of 
PV Modules 

No impact on Land 

No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 

Total area identified for said 
Low project is in plant premises and 

no acquisition is needed  

RO Plant is already installed at site and 
water from said source may be used for 
cleaning of PV Modules 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 

Low 

Low 

Low 



7. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance 

tasks. 

• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 

from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical 

insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 

sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 

• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 

infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 

0 safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 

• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 

• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 

• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 

• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 



ENVIROMENT IMPACT ASSEMENT STUDY 



1. Introduction: 

Extensive fossil fuel consumption in almost all human activities has led to some undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been experienced 
before in known human history. Consequently, global warming, green house affect, climate 
change, ozone layer depletion, and acid rain terminologies started to appear in the literature 
frequently. Since 1970, it has been understood scientifically by experiments and research that these 
phenomena are closely related to fossil fuel uses because they emit greenhouse gases such as 
carbon dioxide (CO2) and methane (CFI4), which hinder the long-wave terrestrial radiation escape 
into space, and, consequently, the earth troposphere becomes warmer. In order to avoid thrther 
impacts of these phenomena, the two concentrative alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel 
quality with reductions in their harmful emissions into the atmosphere or, more significantly, to 
replace ibssil fuel usage as much as possible with enviromnentally friendly, clean, and renewable 
energy sources. Among these sources, solar energy comes at the top of the list due to its abundance 
and more even distribution in nature than any other renewable energy type, such as wind, 
geothermal, hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy technologies are essential components 
of a sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be inexpensive and assurances may 
have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other fossil fuels, but these fuels are 
finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 

1.1. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Atlas Honda Limited 
site in Karachi. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy costs by transitioning to 
renewable energy sources, aligning with the company's sustainability goals. 

1.2. Purpose of the EIA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report is prepared to assess the potential 
environmental impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identify, 
evaluate, and propose mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the project, 
ensuring compliance with local regulations and sustainable development principles. 

1.3. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited, located at F-
36, Estate Avenue, S.1.T.E., Karachi. The site is situated in an industrial area with existing 
infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops and open spaces that can 
accommodate solar panels. 

1.4. Objectives 

• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, lowering 
operational costs. 

• Environmental Impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the carbon 
footprint of Atlas Honda Limited. 

• Sustainability: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company's 
sustainability targets. 

2. Rationale: 

It is a commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore, in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consumption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 



indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing 
demand of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, 
economic, and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modem societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to 
underpin economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and 
less carbon intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. 
Maintaining reliable and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems 
is a key challenge for countries throughout the world. In developing economies giowth in energy use is 
closely related to growth in the modem sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but 
energy use also reflects climatic, geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). 
Energy use has been growing rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income 
economies still use almost five times as much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many 
countries are increasingly aware of the urgent need to make better use of the world's energy resources. 
Improved energy efficiency is often the most economic and readily available means of improving 
energy security and reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of 
Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is 
imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation in the country. Although natural gas is a 
cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these circumstances, the use of solar power 
in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of electric power. Further, its use does 
not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over long distances. Moreover, solar 
power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny Belt and can take advantage 
of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. The country potential for solar generation is 
beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of generation system 
those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which are away 
from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which will also 
save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has excellent 
potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every day, 
for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This 
energy source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global irradiation 
falling on horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 
sun shine hours and 1.9 - 2.3 MWh per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 
19 to 20 Mi/sq. meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 
10-12 hrs. in hot season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation 
up to 23Mi/m2, 24 (80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions 
are ideal for solar thermal applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with most regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is 
estimated to be 1600 GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure 
approximately 41 times that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines 
for 250-300 days per years in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge 
amount of energy to be used for electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power 
plants. A quick idea for the potential of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map 
of solar radiation released by National Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 



3. Environment Assessment Report: 

3.1.Study Area: 

Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in 
the western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly 
associated with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur 
throughout the year. Like, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces 
receive maximum rainfall in the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50-
75% of rainfall during monsoon season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAQ, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 
1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). The precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main 
seasons, summer or monsoon and winter precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east 
and northeast during the month of July to September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is 
received in the north and northeastern areas of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) 
is mainly received from western disturbances entering from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather systems 
entering from Afghanistan are called the primary western disturbances and cover only the north and 
northwestern parts of the country, whereas those approaching from the Iran are secondary and cover a 
large area of theCountry including Balochistan, Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, ICashmir and northern 
areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large amount of snowfall is received in the northern areas, upper 
Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern Balochistan and is the main source of water supply for 
water reservoirs of the country in dry season. This water received from the snow melt and from the 
seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural and socioeconomic activities of the country. 
Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent and every area has its own crops and fruits 
according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are grown in winter season in 
different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in the usual climate 
condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

3.2. Zone Classification: 

Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. 
Therefbre, for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole 
country i.e. 30 stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. The stations 
included in this study were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, 
length of record, completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could 
be obtained. Further the selected stations have been divided into live different microclimatic zones. 
These zones were named A, B, C, D and E as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 
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Zone A  
Zone A comprises those stations having cold climate and high mountains, situated in the north of 
Pakistan. These stations are Chitral, Gilgit, Muzaffarabad, Said-u- Sharil Skardu, Astor, Dir, 
Chilas Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostly hill stations located between 34 N to 38 N in the 
Himalaya, Hindukash and Koh-e- Sufaid mountain ranges. 

Zone B  
This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31 N to 34 N. The stations 
are Sialkot, D.I.Khan, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 
Zone C  
Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 
elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 E. Stations 
included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 

Zone D 
This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded 
in stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert. 
Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 

Zone E 
Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The coastal Part 
comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as 
in Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are Hyderabad, 
Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

3.3. Existing Environmental Conditions: 

d) Physical Environment 
• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, 

making it suitable for solar energy generation. 
• Topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 

impact the installation. 
• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 

installing mounting structures. 

e) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and 

wildlife. There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust 

and emissions from nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 

1) Socio-Economic Environment 
• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential 

communities in close proximity to the project site. 
• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary 

employment opportunities during the construction phase. 

The sites are allocated in private land (Roof 'fop) within the premises of Customer, and the 
applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation of the Solar 
PV Plant. 



The assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative effects. The 
proposed photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of 
green power generation with no emission and effluent discharge with have least impact on the 
ambient environment and on the host community. However, in the long term the project and related 
activities in areas may bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

The importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a 
result, some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure 
that projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment 
(EIA) can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making 
with a purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

The main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development" can be a possibility in the 
future by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and environmental 
protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affects the environment. Conventional 
generating options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the 
levels of harmful radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many 
environmental and social problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar PV energy 
technology provides obvious environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy 
sources thus contributing to the sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the 
depletion of the exhausted natural resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 
emissions and normal absence of any air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

The use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 

• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of 

toxic gas emissions (S02, particulates) 

• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

This Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed project 
at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar energy 
is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have many 
significant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and being 
almost an infinite energy source when compared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy systems 
have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. Some of 
these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identificatioll of Potential Impacts: 

a) Discharge of Pollutants 

b) Visual Impacts 



c) Impact on Natural Resources 

d) Air Pollution 

e) Noise Intrusion 

I) Impact on Air 

g) Impact on Ground Water! Surface Water 

h) Impact on Solid Waste 

i) Impact on Soil 

j) Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 
modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to the 
environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like lire. 
The possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and 
groundwater poses a great threat for the environment. 
Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the 
surroundings of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a 
cladding material that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell 
applications after the construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar 
cell utilization should be planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual 
pollution. For the other application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially Ibr 
large solar cell applications. Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use 
of color. Enough care should be taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell 
modules. 
Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells 
have some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. 
The energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods 
today. Some toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. 
Especially, the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and 
containing heavy metals such as cadmium. 
Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be 
some emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport of the 
modules are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufacture. 
Transport emissions are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 
Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, 
there will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 
Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase 
except Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of 
air temperature. 
Impact on Ground Water/ Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design phase 
except curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 
Impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be 
cleared from site after construction. 
Impact on Soil: No impacts as all installed systems are roof top. 
Impact on Natural Resources: There wont  be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 
like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of 
usage of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycling by throwing it in 
ordinary dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. eniails. 



5. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Honda Limited (Plant) and the 
applicant has earned out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 
Plant. Overall findings: 

Reasons Mitigation Measures 
Environment 
Parameters 

Level of 

 

Impact 

Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) Air Impact 

Water 

Land 

Ecosystem 

Socio Eco System 

Plant will require a very low 
quantity of water for cleaning of 
PV Modules 

No impact on Land 

No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 

Total area identified for said 
Low project is in plant premises and 

no acquisition is needed  

RO Plant is already installed at site and 
water from said source may be used for 
cleaning of PV Modules 

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 

Low 

Low 

Low 

6. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance 
tasks. 

• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain 
from falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical 
insulation and good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, 
sunglasses, gloves and long pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 
infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their 
safe operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 
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AFFIDAVIT - 4 
Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
Atlas Energy Limited 
Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
64 Block XX Khayaban e Iqbal DHA Phase Ill Lahore 
12-Sep-2024, 12:35:21 PM 
19-Sep-2024 
20245A8E4197F1DE 
Three Hundred Rupees Only 
Affidavit to NEPRA for Generation License Application of 714.495 kWp for conformance 

AEFIDAVIT  
.JLyJL;Lr/h.S. 

Type "eStamp <16 digit eStamp Number> send to 8100 

Maqsood Ahmad  Sb Ch. Muhammad Sadiq,  holding CNIC No. 35202-2632390-1, Chief Executive 

Officer Atlas Energy Limited, being the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy Limited, hereby 

confirm that the Applicant has been earlier granted undermentioned licenses by the authority. 

Sr. No. Generation License No. Issued To Gross Capacity Plant Type 

I. SGC/165/2022 

Atlas Energy Ltd. 

4.928 MW 

Solar Power Plant 

2.  SGC/145/2020 858.80 kW 

3.  SGC/146/2020 608.00 kW 

4.  SGC/147/2020 501.60kW 

5.  SGC/148/2020 638.40 kW 

6.  SGC/149/2020 995.60 kW 

Maqsood A. Basraa 

Chief Executive Officer 

Dated:  



AnESTE DEPONEN 

E-STAMP  

 

II I UI II U U II II I HI III 

  

   

E-Stamp ID PB-LHR-0F62CE1A744117D4 Stamp Type: Low Denomination 
Payment Reference No.: 0676-27754302 Amount: Rs 300/- 

Description 
Applicant 
Representative From 
Agent 
Address 
Issue Date 
Delisted On/Validity 
Paid Through Challan 
Amount in Words 
Reason 

AFFIDAVIT - 4 
Maqsood Abmad [35202-2632390-1] 
Atlas Energy Limited 
Maqsood Ahmad [35202-2632390-1] 
64/ XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, DHA Phase-Ill, Lahore 
12-Sep-2024, 12:36:39 PM 
19-Sep-2024 
2024626A3DED0E28 

Three Hundred Rupees Only 
Affidavit to NEPRA for Generation License Application of 714.495 kWp for Correctness 
nf Tnfnrmatinn 

Type eStamp <16 digit eStamp Number> send to 8100 

Affidavit 

I Maqsood Ahmad  Sb Ch. Muhammad Sadiq  holding CNIC No. 35202-2632390-1  Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Energy Limited, the duly authorized representative of the Applicant 
Company Solenmly Affirms and declare that the content of the accompanying application for grant 
of generation license is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and no material 
has been, concealed there form. 

DEPONENT 

Verification:  

This Affidavit is verified on this September 13, 2024  at Lahore that the Contents of the affidavit 
are and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that nothing, material and relevant, has 
been kept concealed therein. 

22 ocr 



u!rAtlasEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(h) * a duly authorised statement stating whether the applicant has 
been refused grant of license under the Act and, if so, the particulars 
of the refused application, including date of making the application 

and decision on the application; 

S 



(WAt1as Energy 
September 13, 2024 

Registrar 
NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East), 
Sector 6-5/1, 
Islamabad. 

Confirmation Statement 

1, Maqsood Ahmad Chief Executive Officer  and the duly authorized representative of Atlas Energy 
Limited, hereby confirm that Atlas Energy Limited has never been refused or denied a license by the 
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) under the Regulation of Generation, 
Transmission, and Distribution of Electric PowerAct, 1997 (NEPRAAct, 1997). 

¼ 

Maqsood Ahmad 
Chief Executive Officer 
Atlas Energy Limited 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: 64-XX, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Phase-Ill, DHA, Lahore. 

Ph: (92-42) 37132636-39, (92-42) 37132644 Fax: (92-42) 37132641 
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3(6) * Authorization from Board Resolution I Power of Attorney 



LwrAtlasEnergy 

Certified True Copy of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors through 
circulation on 4 February 2019  

Resolved: 

"That Mr. Maqsood Ahmed, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, be and is hereby authorised to file; 

(i) an application for grant of Generation License; (ii) any other clarification, submission, application, 

petition or document in support thereof; (iii) to make any oral or written representations on behalf of the 

Company before the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority and any other body, organization, 

department judicial and quasi-judicial body in relation to the aforesaid filings and to do oIl other acts 

deeds, things and matters as may be deemed expedient in giving effect to the aforesaid resolution." 

Further Resolved: 

that Mr Maqsood Ahmed, Chief Executive Officer of the Company may further delegate the aforesaid 

powers, in writing, to one or more persons, as deemed expedient from time to time." 

Further Resolved: 

"that these resolutions duly certified by one of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary 

be communicated to the concerned parties which shall constitute the Compony's mandate to the 

concerned parties and shall remain in force until revoked/changed by notice in writing to the concerned 

parties." 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

Khalid Mahmood 
Company Secretary 

Atlas Energy Limited 
Registered Office: Building No. 64/XX, Khayaban-e-lqbal, DI-IA Phase III, Lahore. 

Ph.: (92-42) 37132637-38, Fax: (92-42) 37332812 
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3(7) * An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and accuracy 
of the application, 
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3(4)(a) applicable documents-in-support and information set 
out in Schedule III of these regulations 
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1. Interconnection study 

Not Applicable: 
It is a distributed solar system and Power Generated through this system will be 

consumed in-house by the relevant Office! Plant wherein the system would be installed. 
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2. Environment Impact Assessment Study 

0 
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ENVIROMENT IMPACT ASSEMENT STUDY 
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1. Introduction: 
Extensive fossil fuel consuniption in almost all human activities has led to sonic undesirable 
phenomena such as atmospheric and environmental pollution, which have not been experienced before 
in known human history. Consequently, global warming, green house affect, climate change, ozone 
layer depletion, and acid rain terminologies started to appear in the literature frequently. Since 1970, 
it has been understood scientifically by experiments and research that these phenomena are closely 
related to fossil fuel uses because they emit greenhouse gases such as carbon dioxide (CO2) and 
methane (CH4), which hinder the long-wave terrestrial radiation escape into space, and, consequently, 
the earth troposphere becomes warmer. In order to avoid further impacts of these phenomena, the two 
concentrative alternatives are either to improve the fossil fuel quality with reductions in their harmful 
emissions into the atmosphere or, more significantly, to replace fossil fuel usage as much as possible 
with environmentally friendly, clean, and renewable energy sources. Among these sources, solar 
energy conies at the top of the list due to its abundance and more even distribution in nature than any 
other renewable energy type, such as wind, geothermal, hydro, wave, and tidal energies. Solar energy 
technologies are essential components of a sustainable energy future. Energy from fossil fuels may be 
inexpensive and assurances may have been given of the plentiful supplies of petroleum and other Ibssil 
fuels, but these fuels are finite in nature and a major source of greenhouse gas emissions. 

a. Project Overview 
Atlas Energy Limited proposes the installation of a solar power plant at the Atlas Engineering Limited 
site in Karachi. The project aims to reduce carbon footprint and energy costs by transitioning to 
renewable energy sources, aligning with the company's sustainability goals. 

b. Purpose of the EtA 
The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) report is prepared to assess the potential environmental 
impacts associated with the solar plant installation. This report will identify, evaluate, and propose 
mitigation measures to address the environmental effects of the project, ensuring compliance with local 
regulations and sustainable development principles. 

c. Project Location 
The proposed site for the solar plant is within the premises of Atlas Engineering Limited, located at 
Atlas Industrial Park, 15th Mites, National Highway, Landhi, Karachi. The site is situated in an 
industrial area with existing infrastructure suitable for the installation, including rooftops and open 
spaces that can accommodate solar panels. 

d. Objectives 

• Energy Efficiency: Reduce reliance on grid electricity and diesel generators, lowering 
operational costs. 

• Environmental Impact: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the carbon footprint 
of Atlas Engineering Limited. 

• Sustainability: Promote the use of renewable energy and contribute to the company's 
sustainability targets. 

2. Rationale: 

It is commonly knowledge that availability of electricity in any country that has direct effect on its 
economy and social factors and therefore; in order to measure the affluence of a society, the per capita 
energy consuniption is used as index. An economy's production and consumption of electricity are basic 
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indicators of its size and level of development. Although a few countries export electric power, most 
production is for domestic consumption. Expanding the supply of electricity to meet the growing demand 
of increasingly urbanized and industrialized economies without incurring unacceptable social, econoniic, 
and environmental costs is one of the great challenges facing developing countries. 

Modern societies are becoming increasing dependent on reliable and secure electricity supplies to underpin 
economic growth and community prosperity. This reliance is set to grow as more efficient and less carbon 
intensive forms of power are developed and deployed to help decarbonize economies. Maintaining reliable 
and secure electricity services while seeking to rapidly decarbonize power systems is a key challenge for 
countries throughout the world. In developing economies growth in energy use is closely related to growth 
in the modern sectors - industry, motorized transport, and urban areas - but energy use also reflects climatic, 
geographic, and economic factors (such as the relative price of energy). Energy use has been growing 
rapidly in low- and middle-income economies, but high-income economies still use almost live times as 
much energy on a per capita basis. Governments in many countries are increasingly aware of the urgent 
need to niake better use of the world's energy resources. Improved energy efficiency is often the most 
economic and readily available means of improving energy security and reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions. Pakistan's per capita energy consumption of Pakistan Generation of electricity in Pakistan is 
largely on furnace oil whose substantial quantity is imported, prices whereof adversely affect the generation 
in the country. Although natural gas is a cheaper fuel however its reserves are depleting rapidly. In these 
circumstances, the use of solar power in Pakistan appears to be quite an attractive mode of generation of 
electric power. Further, its use does not require refining, transporting and conveying fuels and power over 
long distances. Moreover, solar power does not create pollution. Naturally, Pakistan is located in the Sunny 
Belt and can take advantage of its ideal situation for A utilization of solar energy. l'he country potential for 
solar generation is beyond doubt as it has high solar irradiation and enough space for installation of 
generation system those are ideal for PV and other solar energy applications. Villages and other areas which 
are away from grid or distribution system of utilities can also benefit from solar power generation which 
will also save the extra cost of laying the system and the losses. Solar energy, on the other hand, has 
excellent potential in areas of Pakistan that receive high levels of solar radiation throughout the year. Every 
day, for example, the country receives an average of about 19 Mega Joules per square meter of solar energy 
Pakistan being in the Sun Belt is ideally located to take advantage of solar energy technologies. This energy 
source is widely distributed and abundantly available in the country. The mean global irradiation falling on 
horizontal surface is about 200-250 watt per sq.m in a day. This amounts to about 2500- 3000 sun shine 
hours and 1.9- 2.3 MWII per sq. meter in a year. It has an average daily global isolation of 19 to 20 MJ/sq. 
meter per day with annual mean sunshine duration of 8 to 8.5 hours (6-7hrs in cold and 10-12 hrs. in hot 
season) and these values are among the highest in the world. For daily global radiation up to 23MJ/m2, 24 
(80%) consecutive days are available in this area for solar energy. Such conditions are ideal for solar thermal 
applications. 

Pakistan receives about 15.5x1014 kWh of solar irradiance each year with niost regions receiving 
approximately 8 to 10 sunlight hours per day. The installed capacity of solar photovoltaic power is estimated 
to be 1600GW per year, providing approximately 3.5 PWh of electricity (a figure approximately 41 times 
that of current power generation in the country). To summarize, the sun shines for 250-300 days per years 
in Pakistan with average sun shine hours of 8- 10 per day. This gives huge amount of energy to be used for 
electricity generation by solar photovoltaic and solar thermal power plants. A quick idea for the potential 
of solar energy in Pakistan can be obtained from the satellite map of solar radiation released by National 
Renewable Energy Lab (NREL) of USA. 



 

Zono.A 
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3. Environment Assessment Report: 

a. Study Area: 
Pakistan is geographically situated approximately between 24-37 IV latitudes and 62-75 longitudes in the 
western zone of south Asia. The distribution of rainfall in Pakistan varies on wide ranges, mostly associated 
with the monsoon winds and the western disturbances, but the rainfall does not occur throughout the year. 
Like, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa (northern mountains) and Balochistan provinces receive maximum rainfall in 
the months of December to March while in Punjab and Sindh receive 50-75% of rainfall during monsoon 
season (Kaziet al, 1951; FAO, 1987; Khan, 1993 & 2002; Kureshy, 1998; Luo and Lin, 1999). 'l'he 
precipitation received in the country can be divided into two main seasons, summer or monsoon and winter 
precipitation. The monsoon rainfall enters Pakistan from east and north east during the month of July to 
September. During this duration a good amount of rainfall is received in the north and northeastern areas 
of the country. Winter precipitation (December to March) are mainly received from western disturbances 
entering from Iran and Afghanistan. The weather systems entering from Afghanistan are called the primary 
western disturbances and cover only the north and north western parts of the country, whereas those 
approaching from the Iran are secondary and cover a large area of theCountry including Balochistan, 
Punjab, Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern areas and sometimes Sindh province. A large 
amount of snowfall is received in the northern areas, upper Khyber Pukhtonkhuwa, Kashmir and northern 
Balochistan and is the main source of water supply for water reservoirs of the country in dry season. l'his 
water received from the snow melt and from the seasonal rains plays an important role in the agricultural 
and socioeconomic activities of the country. Agriculture of Pakistan is mainly climate dependent and every 
area has its own crops and fruits according to its climate. The country's most important crops and fruits are 
grown in winter season in different areas according to its climate conditions. If there is any abnormality in 
the usual climate condition the nation suffers for the whole year and there is also a huge loss to the economy. 

b. Zone Classification: 
Detection of rainfall trend is subject to limitations: there is no clear altitudinal trend of rainfall. Therefore, 
for analysis, a dataset spreads over a period of 30 years (1976-2005) covering the whole country i.e. 30 
stations from extreme north to south and east to west have been selected. 'Ihe stations included in this study 
were selected on the basis of their latitudinal position, elevation from sea level, length of record, 
completeness and reliability of data so that a synoptic view of the entire country could be obtained. Further 
the selected stations have been divided into five different microclimatic zones. These zones were named A, 
B, C, D and E as shown in Figure 1, along with their latitudinal extent. 

Zone A 2EN 

Zone A coniprises thse imate and high mountains, situated in the north of 
Pakistan. These staS s .. I  arabad, Skardu, Astor, Dir, Chilas 
Parachinar and Kakul. These are mostl - located•beten 34 N to 38 N in the I-Iimalaya, 
Hindukash and Kok Sufaid mountain r 

Zone B 
62' E 66' E TO'E 74 E ?8'E 
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This zone has mild cold climate and Sub Mountains, located between 31 N to 34 N. 'ihe stations are 
Sialkot, D.l.K.han, Islamabad, Peshawar, Cherat and Lahore. 
Zone C 
Climate is cold in winters and hot in summers. Most of them are mountainous stations with high 
elevations from mean sea level and cover an area between 27 N to 32N and 64 E to 70 E. Stations 
included in this zone are Quetta, Zhob, Kalat and Khuzdar. 
Zone 1)  
This is the hottest and dry zone of the country where highest maximum temperatures are recorded in 
stations of Sibbi and Jacobabad. The area is almost plain with some area included in Thar Desert. 
Stations included are Sibbi, Jacobabad, Bahawalpure, Khanpur, Multan and Rohri. 
Zone E  
Zone E is a big zone having many stations and coastal cities, near to Arabian Sea. The coastal Part 
comprises only a small part of this region and climate above coastal parts in Balochistan as well as in 
Sindh province is mostly arid to hyper arid. The selected stations from this zone are Etyderabad, 
Karachi, Nawabshah and Jewani. 

c. Existing Environmental Conditions: 
a) Physical Environment 

• Climate: Karachi experiences a hot desert climate with high temperatures and low rainfall, making 
it suitable for solar energy generation. 

• 'topography: The project site is relatively flat, with no significant natural features that would 
impact the installation. 

• Soil: The soil composition is mostly sandy, with moderate load-bearing capacity, suitable for 
installing mounting structures. 

b) Biological Environment 
• Flora and Fauna: The project site is within an industrial area with minimal vegetation and wildlife. 

There are no protected species or significant habitats within the vicinity. 
• Air Quality: The air quality in the area is typical for an industrial zone, with occasional dust and 

emissions from nearby factories. 
• Noise Levels: The noise levels are consistent with industrial activities, with no significant noise 

pollution expected from the solar plant. 

c) Socio-Economic Environment 
• Local Community: The surrounding area is primarily industrial, with no residential communities 

in close proximity to the project site. 
• Economic Activity: The installation of the solar plant is expected to create temporary employment 

opportunities during the construction phase. 

'the sites are allocated in private land (Roof Top) within the premises of Customer, and the applicant 
has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the sites in preparation olthe Solar PV Plant. 

lie assessment of the Project has been considered for both positive and negative effects. The proposed 
photovoltaic Power Project has been located as per international guidelines. Adoption of green power 
generation with no emission and effluent discharge with have least impact on the ambient environment 
and on the host community. However, in the long term the project and related activities in areas may 
bring about slight change in ambient air quality of area. 

the importance of the sustainable development concept has increased in the whole world. As a result, 
some new regulations enforce that all development projects should be compatible with the 
environmental criterions. An environmental impact assessment should be carried out to make sure that 
projects are compatible with the environmental criterions. Environmental Impact Assessment (EtA) 
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can be defined as a process of environmental management, planning, and decision-making with a 
purpose of keeping and improving the quality of the environment. 

'l'he main goal is to develop environmentally friendly industrialization. With this kind of 
environmentally friendly industrialization, "sustainable development' can be a possibility in the future 
by keeping the usage/protection balance between economic development and the environmental 
protection. 

Every energy generation and transmission method affect the environment. Conventional generating 
options can damage air, climate, water, land & wildlife, landscape as well as raise the levels ofhannful 
radiation. PV technology is substantially safer offering a solution to many environmental and social 
problems associated with fossil and nuclear fuels. Solar PV energy technology provides obvious 
environmental advantages in comparison to the conventional energy sources thus contributing to the 
sustainable development of human activities. Not counting the depletion of the exhausted natural 
resources, their main advantage is related to the reduced CO2 emissions and normally absence of any 
air emissions or waste products during their operations. 

The use of solar power has additional positive implications such as: 
• Reduction of the emissions of the greenhouse gases (mainly CO2, NOx) and prevention of toxic 

gas emissions (S02, particulates) 
• Reduction of the required transmission lines of the electricity grids. 

4. Project Environmental Impacts & Mitigation Measures: 

l'his Section discusses the potential environmental impacts, assesses the significance, recommends 
mitigation measure to minimize the adverse effect and identifies the residual impacts associated with 
the proposed activities of the project during the construction and operation phase of the proposed 
project at the proposed site and of secondary actions like potable, raw water and wastewater lines. Solar 
energy is a lot cleaner when compared with conventional energy sources. Solar energy systems have 
many significant advantages, like being cheaper and not producing any pollutants during operation and 
being almost an infinite energy source when com-pared with fossil fuels. Nevertheless, solar energy 
systems have some certain negative impacts on the environment just like any other energy system. 
Some of these impacts will be summarized in this section. 

Identification of Potential Impacts:  
a) Discharge of Pollutants 
b) Visual Impacts 
c) Impact on Natural Resources 
d) Air Pollution 
e) Noise Intrusion 
1) Impact on Air 
g) Impact on Ground Water! Surface Water 
h) Impact on Solid Waste 
i) Impact on Soil 
j) Impact on Natural Resources 

Discharge of Pollutants: Solar cells do not emit any pollutants during their operations. But solar cell 
modules contain some toxic substances, and there is a potential risk of releasing these chemicals to the 
environment during a fire. Necessary precautions should be taken for emergency situations like fire. 'Ihe 
possibility of an accidental release of the chemicals of the solar cell modules to soil and groundwater poses 
a great threat for the environment. 
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Visual Impacts: There will be some visual impacts depending on the type of scheme and the surroundings 

of the solar cells. Especially for applications on buildings, solar cells can be used as a cladding material 
that could be integrated into the building during the construction phase. Solar cell applications after the 
construction phase of the buildings might cause negative visual impacts. Solar cell utilization should he 

planned at the architectural phase and fitted to the building to minimize visual pollution. For the other 
application areas, proper sitting and design are important factors, especially for large solar cell applications. 

Another important factor about the control of the visual impacts is the use of color. Enough care should be 
taken for the usage of proper colors while assembling the solar cell modules. 
Impacts on Natural Resources: Despite being a benign energy system during operation, solar cells have 

some negative impacts on the environment during their production phase like many other systems. The 
energy needed for the production of solar energy systems is still produced in conventional methods today. 

Some toxic chemical substances used during the production phase are produced as a by-product. Especially, 
the solar cell batteries pose a threat on natural resources by having a short lifespan and containing heavy 

metals such as cadmium. 
Air Pollution: Solar cells do not emit any substances to the air during operation. But there could be sonic 
emissions during manufacturing and transport. The emissions associated with the transport of the modules 

are insignificant when compared with the emissions associated with the manufacture. Transport emissions 
are 0.1-1% of the manufacturing emissions. 

Noise: Intrusion Solar cells do not make a noise during operation. But during the construction phase, there 
will be a little noise as usual in other construction activities. 
Impact on Air: There would be no hazardous emissions at site as well as during construction phase except 

Motor Vehicle and Crane. Moreover, there are no objectionable odors as well as alternation of air 
temperature. 

impact on Cround Water/ Surface Water: There would be no use of water during design phase except 

curing of civil pads during construction, which have no negative impact on environment. 
impact on Solid Waste: It may only Create litter and trash waste which is recyclable and may be cleared 
from site after construction. 
Impact on Soil: No impact as all installed systems are rooftop. 

Impact on Natural Resources: There wont be any increase in the rate of usage of any natural resource 
like any minerals, additional fuel other than vehicles. But there would be increase in the amount of usage 
of Paper for mapping, enlisting items etc. However, paper may be recycled by throwing it in ordinary 

dustbin, further ensure the maximum usage of electronic system e.g. emails. 

5. Environment Assessment! Conclusion: 

The site allocated is private land within the premises of Atlas Engineering Limited (Plant) and the 

applicant has carried out a detailed environment assessment of the site for installation of solar PV 

Plant. Overall findings: 

l:iivironiiiciit 

Pa ratiuct ers 

I .cvcl of 

I nipaict 
Reasons litigaIion ileasures 

   

Air impact Low Solar Energy is Carbon Free (No Emissions) 

Plant will require a very low RO Plant is already installed at site and 
Water Low quantity of water for cleaning of water from said source may be used for 

PV Modules cleaning of PV Modules 



Low No impact on Land 

Low 
No ecologically sensitive area 
lies with in premises 
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Land 

Ecosystem 

Socio Eco System  
Total area identified for said 

Low project is in plant premises and 
no acquisition is needed  

As said project is purely roof based 
which have no impact on Land 

There is no significant vegetation 
cover within the selected area 

Not Applicable 

S 
6. Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance tasks. 
• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain from 

falling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical insulation and 
good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, sunglasses, gloves and long 
pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 
These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 
infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their safe 
operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 

I 
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3(i) Location (Location Map, Site Map, Land) 
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1. Location maps, site maps, land 

A bird's eye view of the project site is given in the figure below: 

Q
Atlas Honda 
Warehouse 
Perivr.e' :Iosed 

Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, 

Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern Industrial Zone Port Qasim Bin Qasim Town, Karachi. 



I.. 

t 

onda Limited 

S 
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0. Search this area r 
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Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 
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Location 01: Atlas Honda Limited, 

Warehouse, Plot W-2, W-3, Northwestern 
Industrial Zone Port Qasirn Bin Qasim 

Town, Karachi. 
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2. Site Coordinates & Location: 

The project site is the rooftop and exact coordinates of the project site are as below: 

Location 02: Atlas Honda Limited 
F-36, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E., Karachi 

Coordinate 

Latitude: '4°49'55 SN 

Longitude: 67°l 834 SE 

Latitude: "4°5"57 5'N 

Longitude: 66°58'25.3'E 



(J!1At1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(u) Technology, size of plant, number of units 
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PV !\lodules 

'lype of Module 

No. of Modules 

JKM545M-721-1L4-TV 

Location-I (270 * 545 = 147.i50 kWp) 

Location-2 (1,041*545) = 567.330 kWp 

Total (1,311* 545) = 714.495 kWp) 

Location-i 202,625 kWh 

Annual Generation Location-2 799,444 kWh 

Type of Cell 

Dimension of each Module 

Total Module Area 

Frame of Panel 

Weight of one Module 

No of Solar Cells in each module 

Efliciency of module 

Maximum Power (Pnia) 

Voltage 

Current ( 

Open circuit voltage (V0 ) 

Short circuit current (I) 

Maximum system open Circuit Voltage  

Total 1,002,069 kWh 

Mono PERC Half-Cell 

2274x II 34x35mm (89.53x44.65x 1.38 inch) 

2.578716 m2 

Anodized aluminium alloy 

28.9 kg 

144 (6x24) 

21.13% 

545 WI) 

41 V 

13.27 A 

49.6W 

13.94 A 

1SOOVDC (IEC) 

I nvcrters 

Description 

Size & Mode 

No. of Inverters 

Input Operating Voltage 
Range 

125KW 
SGI25CX-P2 

2 

180Vto 1000 V 

Technical Specification 

50 KW 20 KW 
SG5O-CX 8G33-CX 

7 9 

200Vtol000V 200Vtol000V 



0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

MPP Tracker 

50 Hz 

0.8 LG...0.8 LI) 

MPP 'l'racker 

50 Hz 

t1asEnergy Application /0) (Jenera tio L kense 

Efficiency of inverter 98.5% 98.6% 98.5% 

Max. Allowable Input 

voltage 

Max. Current 

Max. Power Point 

Iracking Range 

Output electrical system 

Rated Output Voltage 

Power Factor 

(adj ustable) 

Power control 

Rated Frequency  

IIOOV Il00V I100V 

30A 30A 30A 

l80Vtol000V 200Vtol000V 200Vto1000V 

3 Phase AC 3 Phase AC 3 Phase AC 

3/N/PE,230/400V 230V/400V,3W+N+ 230V/400V,3W+N+ 

PE PIE 

0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

MPP Tracker 

50Hz 

1oii iii I iig Striu et ii it 

Structure Rail Type Aluminum 

Location 1,2 and 6 5° 
Tilt Angle Location 3, 4,5, 100 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

I )a t a ( ollecti ug Svsl em 

System Data Continuous online logging with data logging software to portal. 



U' 'At!asEnergy Application for Generation License 

Single Line Diagram: 

1' ,'h' 
t I 

' r*l.. 

The electrical system comprises the following components: 
• Array(s) of PV modules 
• DC/AC cabling (module, string and main cable) 
• DC connectors (plugs and sockets) 
• Junction boxes and combiners 
• Disconnects/switches 
• Protection devices e.g. fuses, surge protective devices, beakers 
• Energy Metering 
• Earthing 

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram 
includes the protection devices that will be used for safe and smooth operation of the 
system. 
Protections DC Side: String Fuses, Surge Protective Device and DC Disconnect 
Switches Protections AC Side: MCBs, Main Breaker 

Concept Design: 
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Concept Design: 
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3(iii) Water Source at site for maintenance 

The Applicant Company shall use a limited quantity of the tap water 
available at the generation site for the purposes of washing the PV 
modules and shall use the available sewerage for disposal to avoid 

any negative impact on the environment. 
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3(iv) Infrastructure: road, rail, staff colony, amenities 

The site is well-served by existing road and rail infrastructure, with 
the nearest railway station approximately 4 kilometers away, and 

offers essential amenities to support the solar facility, with no need 
for a staff colony as the site is located within the main city. 



C!At1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(v) Project Commencement and completion schedule with 

milestones 

0 
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3(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans 
0 



0 
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Safety plans, emergency plans 

• Only qualified and authorized electricians will be allowed to undertake servicing or maintenance tasks. 
• The authorized personnel will wear appropriate equipment, including a safety harness to restrain from 

fatling off the roof, sturdy shoes that will have thick rubber soles to provide electrical insulation and 
good grip and appropriate clothing for personal protection, including a hat, sunglasses, gloves and long 
pants and sleeves. 

• Lock out and tag out procedures will be used before commencement of maintenance tasks. 
• On-going operation and maintenance concerns for solar power systems will be addressed properly. 

These systems are exposed to outdoor weather conditions that enhance the aging process, and the 
infrastructure needs to be in place for the on-going maintenance of these systems to assure their safe 
operation. 

• Properly grounded or double insulated power tools will be used for maintenance tasks. 
• Tools will be maintained in good condition. 
• Working on electrical equipment and circuits will be carried out in de-energized state. 
• Proper pathways will be available for operation, maintenance and firefighting. 
• Fire protection and suppression will be placed at site. 

0 



(J!1At1asEnergy Application for Generation License 

3(vii) Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 

S 
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Plant characteristics (generation voltage, power factor etc.) 

Generation Voltage 380 to 480 

Power Factor 0.8 LG...0.8 LD 

Frequency 50Hz 

Automatic Generation Control Included 

Ramping Rate N/A 

0 
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3(vii) Control Metering and Instrumentation 
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Control Metering and Instrumentation 

Control Metering and Instrumentation 

DC circuit breaker 

AC circuit breaker 

DC overload protection (Type 2) 

Overheat protection 

Grid monitoring 

Insulation monitoring 

Ground fault monitoring 
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3(ix) Estimated Capacity Factor at Site 

S 



ULWAt1as Energy Application for Generation License 

3(x) Degradation Factor 

Degradation Factor First Year 2.5% & remaining 24 Years 0.6% 

S 

S 
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